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Innovate Expand Excel

About

the Company

Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited (KKCL), established in 1992, is one of

India’s leading lifestyle companies with strong presence across Asia

and the Middle East. With end-to-end capabilities from design to retail,
KKCL delivers quality fashion through iconic in-house brands like Killer,
Integriti, Lawman, Easies, and Junior Killer. Strengthening its portfolio
further, KKCL has recently acquired a 50% stake in Kraus Casuals Private
Limited, marking a strategic step towards expanding its presence

in the women’s denim and casual wear segment. KKCL's world-class
manufacturing units power consistent innovation and excellence across

its product portfolio.
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Achieve
Acquire
Accelerate

FY25 was a defining year for Kewal Kiran
Clothing Limited (KKCL)—one where the
foundation of consistent performance met

the momentum of forward-looking ambition.

In a volatile consumer environment, we
stayed rooted in our core strengths while
taking decisive steps towards shaping the
next chapter of growth.

Achieve
We surpassed a key milestone by crossing
% 1,000 crore in consolidated revenue from
operations, reflecting the resilience of our
business model and the growing equity of
our brands across markets and channels.

Acquire

Our 50% strategic acquisition of Kraus
Casuals Private Limited strengthened
KKCLs presence in the women’'s denim
and casual wear segment, broadening
our addressable market and aligning with
evolving consumer demand. This move
also marked the Company’s first inorganic
expansion, bringing fresh synergies in
design, retail and category development.

Accelerate

Looking ahead, our Vision 2028 charts a
clear course: to grow our revenue base
to R 1,500 crore, backed by category
diversification, distribution expansion,

digital-first thinking, and operational agility.

With a sharper strategic lens, KKCL is
geared to scale faster, serve wider, and
lead stronger.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED
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Financial Performance

< 1,002.8 c-

Revenue from Operations
@ 16.5%

? 1 906 Cr

EBITDA
@ 7.6%

< 416.5c

Gross Profit

41.5«

Gross Profit Margin

19.0x

EBITDA Margin

@ YoY Growth

04 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Financial and Operational Highlights of FY25

A Year of
Steady Gains

;s ) L "
M M

Operational Performance

Channel-wise Sales Break-up

Shs

Retail

LBs

Non-Retail

Product-wise Sales Break-up

(%)

46
FY25

53
FY24

21

HWJeans B Shirts MTrousers W T-shirts M Others

12

EBOs (As on March 31, 2025)

Total Number of EBOs — 609
EBOs under Development — 59
Break-up of EBOs

404

Killer

83

Lawman + Integriti

12

Kraus Jeans

109

K-Lounge Stores

1

Factory Outlet
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Chairman and Managing Director’s Message

Dear Shareholders,

India’s economy has long been powered
by personal consumption, driven by rising
disposable incomes and evolving lifestyle
aspirations. This dynamic has endowed
the country with robust economic shock
absorbers, making it more resilient to
external disruptions.

INnFY25, the global economy faced
turbulence amidst geopolitical tensions,
geoeconomic fragmentation, and
heightened trade disputes. Yet, in this
challenging global environment, the
Indian economy exhibited remarkable
resilience, supported by strong
macroeconomic fundamentals and
proactive policy measures. Economic
activity was bolstered by improvements
in consumption demand and net exports
on the expenditure side, while buoyant
services and a recovery in agricultural
production drove the supply side. Growth
in private final consumption expenditure
(PFCE) - the largest component of
aggregate demand - was buoyed by
rising rural consumption.

06 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

A

“Crossing ? 1,000 crorein
revenue marks a new era

of growth, innovation, and
customer focus for KKCL.”

India’s consumption growth is fuelled by
a potent combination of factors: alarge,
fashion-conscious young population;
rising per capita income; rapid
urbanisation; and a digital revolution that
has democratised access to affordable
internet and smartphones. The country’s
expanding middle-income segment is
leading this growth, backed by economic
development, increasing employment
formalisation, and a structural shift

from agriculture to manufacturing

and services. As disposable incomes

Resilient
Today,
Ready for
Tomorrow

rise, this segment is spending more
ondiscretionary items, aided by
enhanced access to consumer credit.
With these growth drivers, India has
emerged as a highly attractive market for
sustained expansion.

The fashion and apparel industry
mirrors this opportunity. A young,
style-aware demographic and rising
disposable incomes have fuelled
spending on apparel and accessories,
reflecting changing lifestyles. As

the market evolves, consumer
behaviour is increasingly shaped by
global innovations and trends. Social
media has amplified exposure to
international fashion, accelerating
demand for branded clothing while also
integrating local cultural influences.
This environment creates constant
renewal in consumer interest and
drives a steady pipeline for new product
introductions. Consequently, there has
been a marked shift towards branded

N

“In FY25, the global economy faced turbulence
amidst geopolitical tensions, geoeconomic
fragmentation, and heightened trade disputes.
Yet, in this challenging global environment,

the Indian economy exhibited remarkable
resilience, supported by strong macroeconomic
fundamentals and proactive policy measures.”

apparel, strengthening demand for
organised players.

At KKCL, we remain focused on
capitalising on India’'s dynamic

market potential through disciplined
expansion, focused execution, and

a customer-centric approach. Our
brands have evolved from being denim-
centric to becoming a comprehensive
lifestyle portfolio, offering apparel and
accessories across categories and price
points. Strategic initiatives such as the
launch of kidswear and the acquisition of
women's casualwear brand ‘Kraus Jeans’
underscore our strong market position.
These moves, supported by in-house
technical capabilities and state-of-the-
art facilities, are the outcome of our
renewed efforts towards accelerating
sales growth.

FY25 marked a milestone year for KKCL,
with consolidated operating revenues
crossing 2 1,000 crore, a testament

to our unwavering commitment to

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

growth, innovation, and excellence. This
achievement strengthens our passion
to reach greater heights and refiects the
inherent strength of our business model,
balance sheet, and leadership team.

Our ethos is grounded in financial
discipline, timely project delivery, and
the '3S’ principles of Business Stability,
Business Sustainability, and Business
Scalability. Time and again, our vision and
strategies have proven resilient, enabling

A

“By crafting innovative,
high-quality products
with compelling designs,
we are well-positioned to
emerge even stronger and
deliver sustainable, long-
term performance.”

T190.6 crore

EBITDA

19.01%

EBITDA Margin

us to navigate competitive industry
dynamics while laying the foundation for
long-term value creation.

As the fashion apparel ecosystem
continues to evolve, we see immense
opportunities ahead that align with
our strengths. By crafting innovative,
high-quality products with compelling
designs, we are well-positioned to
emerge even stronger and deliver
sustainable, long-term performance.

To our valued stakeholders, | extend

my sincerest gratitude for your trust
and support. We look forward to your
continued partnership as we embark on
the next phase of our growth journey.

Sincerely,

Kewalchand P. Jain
Chairman and Managing Director
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Joint Managing Director’s Message

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to connect
with you once again andreflecton a
year marked by progress, resilience,
and purposeful action. In FY25, we
undertook a major step forward in
shaping the future of KKCL. The year
saw us strengthening our market
position, expanding our reach, and
taking bold strides to transform into
amore diversified, consumer-centric
fashion powerhouse.

Our strategic initiatives this year, coupled
with a focus on product innovation,
design excellence, and unique
offerings, have propelled us forward.
We achieved operating revenues of 2
1,00,277.27 lakh against ? 86,049.86
lakhin the previous year, registering a
growth of 16.53% YoY. This was backed
by an industry-competitive EBITDA of

% 19,060.27 lakh and an EBITDA margin
of 19.01%. The successful consolidation
of Kraus Casuals Private Limited further
demonstrated the impact of our
strategies. Robust volume expansion,

08 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

A

“Our objective is clear
— to transform KKCL
into a future-ready,
multi-category fashion
powerhouse that
reflects the aspirations
of new India.”

fuelled by strong design capabilities
and enhanced inventory management,
also contributed significantly. Together,
these factors highlight our ability to
integrate acquisitions effectively while
leveraging operational efficiencies for
sustainable growth.

Our objective is clear, to transform KKCL
into a future-ready, multi-category

Building
Momentum
for the
Future

fashion powerhouse that refiects the
aspirations of new India. Our evolution
into a lifestyle Company with a diversified
product portfolio is supported by
initiatives such as the launch of Junior
Killer and the acquisition of Kraus Jeans.
These moves have strengthened our
position in casual wear, enabling us to
serve a wider customer base and tap into
new markets.

India’'s demographic advantage makes it
one of the most attractive consumption
markets in the world. KKCL is poised

to drive this rapidly evolving fashion
landscape forward, with a clear vision
to achieve ? 1,500 crore in revenue by
FY28 while maintaining robust operating
margins. Our focus is on building a high-
growth, capital-efficient business that
balances scale with sustainability.

Retail store expansionremains a
cornerstone of our growth strategy.
INFY25, we added 121 net Exclusive
Brand Outlets (EBOs), taking the total

N

Our strategic initiatives this year, coupled with a focus on product
innovation, design excellence, and unique offerings, have propelled us
forward. We achieved operating revenues of % 1,00,277.27 lakhs against
2 86,049.86 lakhs in the previous year, registering a growth of 16.53% YoY.

to 609 as of March 31, 2025. We aim to
grow this network to over 900 by FY28,
targeting both Tier-1 cities and deeper
penetration into Tier-2 and Tier-3
markets through cost-effective formats.
This balanced approach will strengthen
our distribution network and support our
growth ambitions.

Over the years, we have continually
enhanced our product portfolio to
address gaps in our target consumer
segments. While our menswear brands,
such asKiller, will continue to anchor
our portfolio, we are actively expanding
into womenswear and kidswear to build
acomplete lifestyle offering. We are
also revitalising the Lawman brand,
transforming it into a distinct, fast-
fashion D2C label to drive stronger
consumer engagement and broaden our
presence across the fashion spectrum.

Our initiatives are underpinned by four
decades of manufacturing expertise,
which give us a competitive edge.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Our design, merchandising, marketing,
and procurement teams work in

close synergy to create innovative,
trend-responsive products. Bi-annual
trade shows further strengthen

client relationships, improve supply
chain planning, and optimise
inventory management.

By widening distribution, diversifying
product categories, and streamlining
supply chain operations, we have laid a

A

“By widening distribution,
diversifying product
categories, and
streamlining supply chain
operations, we have laid
a solid foundation for
sustained growth.”

solid foundation for sustained growth.
We now stand at the threshold of a new
era of opportunities. With strategic
initiatives, innovative products, and a
dedicated team, we are well-positioned
to capitalise on emerging trends and
drive long-term value creation.

As we move ahead, | am confident

our efforts will yield positive results.

I extend my sincere gratitude to our
customers, partners, employees, and
all stakeholders for their trust and
support as we continue to build on our
strengths and embrace the limitless
possibilities ahead.

With warmregards,

Hemant P. Jain
Joint Managing Director
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Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited
(KKCL) is one of India’s most
successful homegrown
fashion houses, known for
driving innovation across every
link of the apparel value chain.

With over three decades of experience, KKCL
blends design, manufacturing, branding, and
retailing into a seamless engine of style and
performance. Our in-house brands—Killer, Integriti,
Lawman, Easies, and Junior Killer—reflect our deep
understanding of evolving consumer tastes and
have become fashion staples across the country.
Strengthening this portfolio further, KKCL has
recently acquired a 50% stake in Kraus Casuals
Private Limited, enabling a stronger play in the
women’'s denim and casualwear segment. Inspired
by global trends and powered by cutting-edge,
sustainable manufacturing, our collections bring
contemporary style to diverse audiences. With
exclusive retail formats and brand outlets like
K-Lounge, Killer, Integriti, Lawman, Junior Killer,
Kraus Jeans, and a growing accessories portfolio
under Addiction, KKCL continues to shape

modern India’s fashion journey while expanding its
footprint across international markets.

Business Ethos

Morality ‘

v

10 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

About Us

Designing
What's Next

Vision

To be aworld-class
business organisation
which enables value,
best services, and
enhancement of

net worth for all

the stakeholders.

Rightness

@

Mission

4 Driving excellence through
our people, business partners
and other stakeholders.

4 Focusing on consumer
satisfaction and executing
a customer-centric
business module.

4 Executing the business
pased on the three core
growth principles of: Stability,
Sustainability and Scalability.

4 Adopting international
standards and best practices
across our operations.

l" Ethical Practices
a

AN
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Our Core Values
Experience

The Company enjoys an
experience of more than three
decades in this industry.

Diversified Product Base

The Company’s all-encompassing
product portfolio artfully caters
to the discerning requirements of
its esteemed customers.

Environment-friendly

With a steadfast commitment
to sustainability, the Company
prudently invests in state-of-
the-art, environment-friendly
manufacturing techniques,
ensuring the production of
consumer-friendly apparel.

State-of-the-art
Manufacturing Facilities
Embracing cutting-

edge technologies in our
manufacturing process is the
cornerstone of our success. Our
commitment towards innovation
and continuous improvement,
empowers us with core

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

competence, allowing us to craft
the finest products that delight
our customers.

Strong Distribution Network

Our expansive presence reaches
far and wide, as we proudly serve
customers across 26 states and

over 388 towns and cities in India.

Impeccable Quality

Our brand’s value is underscored
by product quality and
environmental certifications,
reflecting our commitment to
excellence. We prioritise both
quality and sustainable practices.
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Product Portfolio

The House
of Iconic

Brands

KILLER YK

this is us

Launched in 1989, Killer has
grown into one of India’s

top denim brands, offering
edgy, trend-driven lifestyle
products for men and women,
and leading the premium
menswear segment with
international flair. Its bold
identity and innovative spirit
continue to shape youth
fashion across the country.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

KKCLs product portfolio is a testament to
our evolution from a denim-led brand to

a full-fledged lifestyle powerhouse. With
a deep understanding of India’s diverse
fashion sensibilities, we have built a
curated suite of brands, each distinct in
personality, price point, and appeal.

¢

LAWWAN

Lawman is a bold and fashion-
forward western wear brand
known for its high glamour
quotient and trendsetting
designs that appeal to a wide
age group. With several iconic
styles like Y-Fi, Vertebrae,

and Swan Stitch, it delivers
exclusivity that sets it apart.

# L]
=>easlies

=5 WILLER M=
Easies-by Killer offers a
classic, yet contemporary
range of apparel tailored
for the modern, style-
conscious man, redefining
corporate fashion with a
fresh, fashionable twist. With
trendy cuts, vibrant colours,
and a strong focus on quality,
Easies strikes the perfect
balance between style,
comfort, and durability.

From everyday essentials to trend-
forward fashion, our offerings span
denim jeans, shirts, t-shirts, trousers,
women’s wear, and accessories,
delivering style that resonates across
generations and geographies.

-:}! -

omtegrltl

Integriti offers a wide range
of casual and semi-formal
wear—jeans, t-shirts, shirts,
and jackets—designed for
college students and young
professionals. As KKCL's
second-largest brand, it
blends style, quality, and
affordability, making it a
reliable choice across diverse
price segments.

Our iconic brands—Killer, Integriti, Lawman, Easies, Junior
Killer and Kraus Jeans—are refiections of the unique attitudes
and aspirations of the consumers they serve. By blending
fashion with functionality and relevance with creativity, each
brand holds its own in a competitive market landscape. This
multi-brand, multi-category strategy enables KKCL to stay
agile, meet varied customer needs, and continue defining
contemporary Indian fashion.

Kraus Jeans is a women-
centric fashion brand offering
stylish, well-fitted denim

and western wear designed
for modern Indian women.
With a focus on comfort, cut,
and contemporary trends, it
caters to confident, fashion-

forward consumers across
urban markets.
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Our Journey

From Denim to
_Lifestyle: Charting
the Path Forward
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KKCLs journey began Our journey continues, with fashion as our language of progress. 2
. o)
as a focused denim =
i Launched ‘Killer’ Incorporation of Kewal Kiran Launched Lawman and Easies
ma?thaCturslr’ roo;edd_m Commenced Brand Clothing Ltd. (erstwhile .
crartsmanshnip an riven Manufacturing as Keval known as Kewal Kiran - :
by ambition Kiran & Co. KILLER th?s!s& Apparels Pvt. Ltd.) LAWAN ..-—EBSIES 8
o
Over the years, we have evolved into a §
leading lifestyle brand by expanding our Hit ¥ 1,000 crore g
offerings across casualwear, semi-formal inrevenue from
apparel, and accessories. This strategic operations
diversification has allowed us to reach
new customer segments, increase Crosse_d 600 EBOs
our market presence, and respond for various brands o
to the shifting preferences of India’s Launched K-Lounge Launched Integriti g
fashion-forward consumers. Today, : 3
KKCL stands as a symbol of aspiration L hed EBO AEINEE @ 3
aunche S 8
and adaptability, built on a foundation of Killer, Lawman Debuted as a public K-LOUMNGE I“tEgrltl
of quality, innovation, and a deep and Integriti company THE SPIRIT CALLEG YOUTH
understanding of style.
g
« Launched Junior Killer £
Launched . . 3
ADDICTIONS - e Killer partners with BCCl as ¢
division womenswear brand cricket team in Kraus Jeans
JUNIOR
KRAUS -
ADDICTIONS ebuie KILLERK
a 2010 2018 2023 2024
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marked by disciplined execution, strategic investments,
and progress across brands, channels, and operations. The
year reflected KKCL's focus on scaling its presence, deepening
consumer connections, and strengthening its business
fundamentals to stay future-ready in a dynamic and competitive
apparel landscape. These efforts laid a strong fou

. tionfor - -
sustained growth and value creatio head- .

ninthe ye
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Our Year in Review

Achieve: 8
Crossing “i%
the ¥ 1,000

Crore Mark

-

In FY25, KKCL achieved a landmark feat -
surpassing ? 1,000 crore in consolidated
revenue from operations for the first time in our
history. This achievement reflects consistent
execution, strategic brand-building, and a deep
understanding of evolving market needs.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

The Drivers behind the Milestone

Strong Financial Performance

16.5%

YoY Annual Revenue Growth

19%

EBITDA Margin

Expanding Retail Footprint

This year saw the addition of 121 new
exclusive brand outlets (EBOs), bringing
the total to 609 stores across India. Our
presence now extends to over 2,700
large format counters and over 4,000
multi-brand outlets, ensuring greater
accessibility for consumers nationwide.

4,000+

Multi-brand Outlets

2,700+

Counters

Streamlined Operations

KKCL has an end-to-end, in-house value chain that transforms design ideas into
retail-ready products with speed, quality, and consistency.

(o

onceptualisation -
Designing with Purpose

Leveraging global and local

trend insights, KKCL works with
international designers to create
customer-focused collections that
stay true to each brand’s identity.

Manufacturing - Concept to
Creation

Strong sourcing relationships and
efficient production processes ensure
high-quality garments with reduced

Qad times.

~

Logistics - Efficient Fulfilment

Organised warehousing, brand-
aligned packaging, and optimised
logistics systems enable timely and
cost-effective delivery.

Retailing - Wider Consumer
Reach

A multi-channel retail

presence, enhanced customer
experience, and consistent

visual merchandising strengthen
consumer connection across physical
and digital touchpoints.

80+

Distributors

Building a Sustainable Moat

Leveraging cutting-edge technology
and sustainable practices, KKCLs
manufacturing operations are built to
deliver quality at scale.

State-of-the-art Facilities for
Sustainable Production

KKCLs manufacturing units integrate
certified green chemicals, advanced blue
technology, and energy conservation
practices. The use of ozone systems

for denim washing further reduces
environmental impact.

Global Expertise in R&D

Aninternational talent pool drives
research and development, ensuring
innovative designs, improved processes,
and quality excellence.

Efficient Supply Chain
Management

Led by the promoters, KKCLs supply
chain operations ensure seamless
coordination between sourcing,
production, and distribution.

Optimised Manufacturing
Operations

Critical operations are keptin-

house for tighter control and faster
turnaround, while less critical functions
are strategically outsourced to
enhance efficiency.

Data-driven Inventory Planning

Seasonal trade events provide
valuable insights into inventory trends,
enabling informed production and
stocking decisions.

19
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Our Year in Review

Acquire:
Boosting Brand
Equity with 50%
Stake Iin Kraus
Casuals

This year, KKCL acquired a 50% stake in Kraus
Casuals Private Limited (KCPL) for Z.166.51
crore through a combination of primary
infusion and secondary purchase. This
strategic move reinforces KKCLs presence in
the women'’s denim and casual wear category,
an important step towards broadening our
product portfolio and strengthening our
market presence in India and the UAE.

20 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED
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Kraus Jeans, a well-established brand,
specialises in manufacturing, designing,
selling, and exporting women'’s clothing,
with a core focus on denim and casual
wear for women, teens, and kids. The
acquisition leverages KKCL's strong
retail network, operational expertise,
and brand equiity to accelerate Kraus's
growth and unlock synergies across
design, sourcing, and distribution.

Integration Success

The first nine months of
consolidation delivered R 162
crore in sales, boosting the
Group’s revenue and profitability.
Focused integration efforts
improved operational efficiency
and resource optimisation, helping
Kraus achieve EBITDA margins
aligned with KKCL's target range of
16%-20%.

Growth Initiatives

INFY25, Kraus was introduced in select
export markets, opening new avenues
for global sales. The brand already has
its presence in large format stores and
e-commerce, and will further leverage
KKCLs strong distribution network and
export channels to expand its footprint.
The next phase of integration will
focus on strengthening distribution,
refining working capital management,
and driving operational efficiency for
sustainable expansion.
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Introducing Vision 2028

- Innovation as a Growth Driver / \ El
' ' e e I a t e Leveraging in-house manufacturing and Channel Strategy §
= Al-driven personalisation, KKCL aims %
- to deliver high-quality, differentiated K I L L E R >I< >
products at scale. Operational this is us
u I efficiencies and supply chain agility will
underpin both margin stability and faster - Target: 600+ Exclusive Brand - 50+EBOs
- = market response. Outlets (EBOs) . Expansion through Shop-in-Shop X
I s I 0 n - Expand Large Format Store (LFS) (SIS) format in Multi-Brand Outlets g
counter space (MBOs) S
- Strengthen Tier-1 city presence 5
Zoasi
o . . ] ) ) . LA AN - eaS'eS g
KKCLs Vision 2028 is a forward-looking growth blueprint aimed at delivering
. . . . Reinforce ‘First & Right
2 1,500 crore in revenue by FY28 — with a healthy operating margin of 17-18%. . 175+ EBOS Price’ positioning
This ambition is powered by scale, diversification, and innovation, ensuring . Sharpened focus on 9
. . g . . . 0]
that the Company strengthens its leadership position while tapping into the e-commerce presence ﬁ’rll.ole RK S
evolving aspirations of Indian and global consumers. tisis us 2
o Growth via traditional multi-brand é
|“tegr|t| outlets (MBOs) and shop-in-shop )
Expanding Retail Presence Diversifying beyond Denim WE SHIMIT CALLED YOUTH formats in MBOs and large format
The cornerstone of Vision 2028 is an KKCL is transforming from a denim-led business into a multi-category lifestyle - Deeper penetrationinto stores (LFS)
aggressive retail scale-up. brand portfolio. modern trade
. . K-Lounge & Others
KKCL pl(ans ‘So grow its Exclusive Brand « Accelerated growth in Tier-2 and . Lougnge ctores and o
Outlet (EBO) network from 609 stores to Tier-3 cities ] e
over 900 by FY28. The expansion will be KILLER >I< :': eaSie S LAMMAN related formats %
weighted towards Tier 2 and Tier 3 cities, fhis s us - gl a
where rising disposable incomes and Exports °
aspirational lifestyles are driving higher Flagship Brand Catering ~ Premium Semi-formal D2C Fast Continue exoloring opportunities in
growth rates than urban metros. to Premium Segment Wear Focused Brand Fashion Brand global marke?ts forgKillgr?and Kraus
O JUNIOR o
ntegntt  KILLERDIC g
this is us g
Frf SFIRIT CALLED TOUTH B
1
Mid-market Brand Kidswear - Boys Focused Women’s g
Focused Brand Denim & Casual @

wear Brand

This diversification broadens the consumer base while increasing brand relevance
across demographics.
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Strategic Growth Avenues

Pillars of
Long-term

success

r N

Tech-enabled
Demand
Forecasting

Inan era where consumer
preferences evolve rapidly, KKCL is
harnessing the power of advanced
data analytics and artificial
intelligence to stay ahead of

the curve.

Using Al to Gain Consumer
Insight

By deploying large language models,
we analyse vast volumes of binary
data from day-to-day shopping
behaviour, mapping patterns to
predict what consumers might want
next based on their likes, dislikes,
and online activity.

Hyper-personalisation

Generative Al technologies are
enabling KKCL to customise
product recommendations, styles,
and collections to match evolving
consumer tastes, ensuring more
relevant, impactful offerings.

/
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KKCLs growth journey is underpinned by
its ability to foresee market shifts, adopt
future-ready technologies, and stay deeply
connected with consumer aspirations.

As the Company moves towards its Vision

2028 goal, its strategic roadmap is built
around multiple high-impact growth levers
that will reinforce market leadership,
strengthen operational capabilities, and
drive long-term value creation.

/
(Strategy 2)

Elevating Brand

Aspirational Value
KKCL recognises that its brands
must represent more than just
apparel; they must embody
lifestyle aspirations.

Design Innovation

Constantly refreshing designs
to resonate with evolving
fashion sensibilities.

Exceptional Offerings

Curating collections that combine
quality with exclusivity.

Immersive Shopping
Experiences

Enhancing the in-store and digital
shopping journey with engaging,
sensory-rich experiences that
deepen brand loyalty.

o

~

GStrategy 3) -

Enhancing Digital
Presence

A'strong digital presence is
fundamental to staying competitive
in the fashion retail landscape. KKCL
is leveraging technology and online
platforms to deepen customer
connections, expand market reach,
and create a seamless brand
experience. The strategy includes:

+ Expanding e-commerce
capabilities to reach newer
geographies and untapped
consumer segments

« Leveraging social media and
digital marketing to build stronger
prand-consumer connections

+ Integrating online and offline
touchpoints to deliver an
omnichannel experience

€Strategy ZD -

Strengthening
Manufacturing
CAPEX

KKCL is committed to augmenting its
manufacturing infrastructure with
targeted investments.

Brownfield Expansion

Scaling existing facilities to
increase production capacity
efficiently without the lead times of
new setups.

Alignment with Growth
Plans

Ensuring manufacturing capabilities
are fully equipped to support future
demand surges, particularly in high-
growth product categories.

- /

€Strategy ’:D -

Focus on Same
Store Growth
(SSG)

While new store expansionis a
critical growth lever, KKCL is equally
committed to driving performance
within its existing retail footprint.

Targeted Growth

Implementing store-level strategies,
such as product mix optimisation,
localised merchandising, and
enhanced customer engagement, to
increase sales from current outlets.

EBO Expansion Synergy

Pairing the growth of exclusive brand
outlets with a sharper focus on
boosting sales productivity at the
store level.

- J

GStrategy 6) -

Prudent
Working Capital
Management

Efficient working capital
management remains the
cornerstone of KKCLs sustainability.

Optimal Capital Cycle
Maintaining a working capital
cycle of 120-135 days ensures
a balance between liquidity and
growth investment.

Operational Discipline

Tight controls onreceivables,
payables, and inventory cycles
enable us to fund growth without
compromising financial health.

- J

GStrategy 7) -

Driving Inorganic
Growth

KKCL actively explores opportunities
beyond organic expansion.

Acquisitions and
Partnerships

Targeting strategic acquisitions
in complementary or high-
potential categories.

New Category Entry

Expanding into segments that align
with the brand portfolio and offer

kstrong consumer demand potential./
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Marketing Initiatives

Bold Moves,
Bigger Impact

In FY25, I§KCL eleva.ted.Klller Jeans br.and Retail Innovation %
eqUIty with b0|d’ hlgh_lmpaCt Campalgns that On-ground innovation took shape with 5
captured attention across digital, broadcast, the launch of anamorphic screens g

at flagship stores, a first-of-its-kind

cinema, and retail.

in-store shopping experience. 'g

Digital Lifestyle Expanding Media Influencer 5
Partnerships Presence Engagement
=

The year began with alandmark
association as Killer Jeans became
Pinkvilla's official Style Partner, placing
the brand at the centre of digital
lifestyle and fashion conversations. The
association extended to sponsoring the

Killer invested in cinema ads, with high-
visibility placements during blockbuster
movies such as Pushpa 2, ensuring
recall among both urban and semi-urban
audiences. This was complemented

by a strategic broadcast presence,

initiative in the Indian apparel segment.
These immersive displays created
striking retail visibility and elevated the

Killer Jeans leveraged influencer-driven
marketing campaigns in Bandra, a hub
of youth culture and fashion. These
activities generated strong digital buzz,
amplified consumer engagement, and

i ’ (@)
exclusive Pinkvilla after-party, reinforcing with advertisements on leading news reinforced the brandls relevance among 2
o e , . . younger demographics. e
Killer’s positioning in fashion-forward channels during the voting polls and 2
youth culture. election results season, tapping into Capping off the year’s efforts, Killer Jeans §
one of the most-watched periods in was honoured with the ET Now Best
Celebrlty Indian television. Brand India Award.
Endorsement
To build deeper resonance with younger
audiences, Killer Jeans appointed Award 2
actor Meezaan Jafri as its official Brand g
Ambassador. His energy, relatability, and s
youth appeal brought a fresh dimension _§
to the brand, establishing a stronger S
connection with Gen Z consumers. ¢
'5"!
Q
8
)
<)
Q
3
3
1
Economic Times Best Brand 2024 - Killer 7
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Performance

measurement
lies at the

heart of KKCLs
growth journey.
By tracking
progress against
well-defined
benchmarks,
we ensure that
every actionis
aligned with our
strategic vision.

These metrics provide the
insights needed to adapt to
changing conditions, optimise
resources, and build on our
strengths. With a balanced
focus on growth, profitability,
and long-term sustainability,
we remain committed to
delivering consistent value
while paving the way for
future opportunities.

*3 10 dividend was declared before
the bonusissue and 9 dividend
declared after the bonus issue.

Key Performance Indicators

Measuring

Success, Shaping

the Future

MRP Turnover

(% inlaknh)

FY25 —2,82,085
FY24 —2,35,472
FY23 —2,08,145
FY22 —1,72,204
FY21 —92,361

Operating Revenue

(X inlakh)

FY25 —1,00,277
FY24 — 86,050
FY23 — 77,945
FY22 — 60,761
FY21 —30,273

Operating Profit (EBITDA)

inlakn)

FY25 — 19,060
FY24 —17,718
FY23 — 15,194
FY22 — 10,003
FY21 — 1,866

28 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Net Profit Before Tax

[ inlakh)

FY25 —19,761
FY24 — 19,968
FY21 — 15,707
FY22 —10,535
FY21 —2,220
Profit After Tax

inlakh)

FY25 — 14,919
FY24 — 15,452
FY23 — 11,928
FY22 — 8,166
FY21 —1,942

Earnings Per Share

®)

FY25 —23.44
FY24 —25.07
FY23 — 19.36
FY22 —13.25
FY21 —15.76

Net Worth

Zinlakh)

FY25 — 81,993
FY24 — 67,660
FY23 — 54,742
FY22 — 47,819
FY21 — 43,297

Return on Capital Employed

(%)

FY25 — 24,02
FY24 —2913
FY23 —26.66
FY22 —1963
FY21 —236

Dividend Per Share

®)

FY25 —2
FY24 —2
FY23 —5
FY22 —19*
FY21 —23

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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Our People

Empowering People,
Enabling Progress

Our people are the driving force behind our sustained growth and
innovation. Human Resources plays a strategic role in nurturing talent,
fostering diversity, and supporting well-being. By aligning skills with
organisational values and providing opportunities for continuous learning,
we are building a workforce that is agile, engaged, and future-ready.

£y

s gteniing -2 B
il
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Workforce Strength and
Diversity

We foster a culture of diversity, equity,
and inclusion by ensuring equal
opportunities across all roles. Our
hiring process emphasises on skills
and performance, aligning with our
core values of integrity, innovation,
and collaboration.

2,534

Total Employeesin FY25

Engagement Well-being and
Culture

We recognise that employee well-being
is integral to productivity and innovation.
Through structured engagement
initiatives, wellness programmes
(physical, emotional, and financial),

and hybrid working models, we ensured
that our people felt supported and
valued. Our open-door policy and
regular feedback channels fostered
transparency, trust, and a sense of
belonging across the organisation.

Learning and Development

Enabling continuous learning is a key
pillar of our people strategy. During

the year, we conducted 120 training
programmes, benefitting nearly 2,000
employees, with a strong emphasis on
developing future leaders and enhancing
core competencies across levels. In
addition, we recorded 2,050 employee
participations and 445 man-hours of
training, reflecting our commitment to
capability building. Our aim is to equip our
people with the agility and adaptability
needed to thrive in a dynamic

retail environment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

LA wanpgt [RO—

MR IC ol
ol

120

Training Programmes
Conductedin FY25

2,000

Employees Benefitted

445

Training Hours

2,050

Total Employee Participation

Performance and Recognition

We strengthened our performance
management framework to reinforce
accountability and meritocracy.
Employees who showcased exceptional
performance, innovation, and leadership
were recognised through structured
rewards and recognition programmes,
further encouraging a culture

of excellence.

Looking ahead, KKCL will continue
to partner with business leaders
to build aresilient and agile

organisation. Our priorities include:

- Strengthening leadership
pipelines through targeted
development initiatives

- Investing in digital HR
platforms for seamless
employee experiences

« Advancing diversity and
inclusion to create a workplace

\ where everyone can thrive J
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Board of Directors

The Architects of

Our Journey

Executive

Kewalchand P. Jain
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Kewalchand Jain, a student

of finance and our hands-on
manager, was instrumental
inintroducing the branded
apparel segment to KKCL. He
oversees the Company’s financial
functions and is responsible for
the overall management of the
Company’s affairs. He is also the
acting Trustee of Smt. Jatnobai
Karmchandji Ratanparia Chauhan
Charitable Trust.

Dinesh P. Jain

Whole-time Director

Mr. Dinesh Jain manages the
manufacturing operations of
the Company. His specialisation
lies in production, human
resources and industrial
relations. His leadership
ensures optimum utilisation

of the Company’s production
facilities, its personnel and
overall development. He is one
of the Trustees of Smt. Jatnobai
Karmchandji Ratanparia Chauhan
Charitable Trust.

Hemant P. Jain
Joint Managing Director

Mr. Hemant Jain has played a
key role in launching Killer and
Easies brands. Heisincharge
of the Killer and Easies brands
and supervises operations of
the Junior Killer brand. He also
oversees the retail business
of the Company. He is one of
the Trustees of Smt. Jatnobai
Karmchandji Ratanparia Chauhan
Charitable Trust.
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Vikas P. Jain
Whole-time Director

Mr. Vikas Jain spearheads the
Lawman and Integriti brands,
alongside supervising the
lifestyle accessories business

of our brand, Addictions. He also
manages the retail business

of the Company. He is one of

the trustees of Smt. Jatnobai
Karmchandji Ratanparia Chauhan
Charitable Trust.

KKCLs Board of Directors comprises seasoned leaders whose

expertise, foresight, and strategic guidance drive the Company’s
growth and resilience. Their collective vision shapes key decisions,
advances innovation, and ensures responsible governance, enabling

KKCL to navigate challenges, seize opportunities, and sustain

momentum towards long-term success.

Independent

Paresh H. Clerk

Independent Director

Mr. Paresh Clerk is a Partner at
BansiS.Mehta & Co. and has
beenamember of the Accounting
and Auditing Committee of the
Bombay Chartered Accountants’
Society since 2007, bringing
extensive expertise in auditing
and financial governance.

Jayraj S. Sheth

Independent Director

Mr. Jayraj Sheth has held diverse
senior leadership roles across
prominent organisations,
including Reliance Group, Ernst &
Young, KPMG, TLC Legal, and ELP
Consultants, bringing a wealth
of multidisciplinary expertise to
the Board.

Vivek K. Shiralkar

Independent Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Mr. Vivek Shiralkar is a practicing
Solicitor and amember of the Bar
Council of Maharashtra & Goa,

as well as the Incorporated Law
Society, bringing legal expertise
to the Board.

Ushma Sheth Sule

Independent Director

Ms. Ushma Sheth Suleis an
investment professional with
over 16 years of experience with
the Family Office fund of the

late Mr. Rakesh Jhunjhunwala,
specialising in equity

markets, value investing, and
strategic investments across
diverse sectors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Economy Overview

InFY 2024-25, the Indian economy demonstrated resilience,
underpinned by robust macroeconomic fundamentals,
proactive policy interventions and sustained government
capital expenditure. Despite ongoing geopolitical tensions and
geoeconomic fragmentation, India’s growth story remained
strong with real GDP growth of 6.5%. The country retained its
position as the fastest-growing major economy. Key drivers of
economic activity included improved consumption demand,
net exports on the expenditure side, buoyant services sector
and recovery in agricultural production on the supply side. The
production linked incentive (PLI) scheme further helped to
steer growth across several key manufacturing industries. As
of November 2024, investment under PLI scheme reached 57%
of the aggregate committed target under the scheme.

Inflation converged closer to the target during FY 2024-25
aided by easing input cost pressures, proactive supply
management measures by the government and continued
transmission of past monetary policy actions. Headline inflation
moderated to an average of 4.6% during FY 2024-25 from 5.4%
in the previous year, largely driven by a moderation in core (CPI
excluding food and fuel) inflation to 3.5% and defiation in fuel at
2.5%. The moderation in core inflation was broad-based across
goods and services. Among the major constituents, inflation

in clothing and footwear fell to 2.7% during FY 2024-25 from
4.7% a year ago, reflecting lower domestic and international

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

cotton prices and subdued export demand for textiles and
wearing apparel.

Growth in private final consumption expenditure (PFCE) - the
main component of aggregate demand - improved to 7.6%

in FY 2024-25, buoyed by rural consumption demand, even
though urban demand exhibited some moderation. The share
of PFCE inreal GDP increased to 56.7% in FY 2024-25. Good
agricultural performance boosted rural demand as seen
fromits proximate indicators, viz., sales of two-wheelers,
motorcycles and tractors, and volume growth of fast-

moving consumer goods (FMCG) companies in rural areas.
Urban demand, after remaining the driver of post-pandemic
consumption, lost pace. Government final consumption
expenditure (GFCE) grew at a modest 3.8% in FY 2024-25.

India’s merchandise exports grew marginally by 0.1% in

FY 2024-25 as against a contraction of 3.1% a year ago. On
the other hand, merchandise imports grew by 6.2% during
this period as against a contraction of 5.3% a year ago.
Consequently, India’s merchandise trade deficit widened to

$282.8 billion during FY 2024-25 from S 241.1 billion a year ago.

Nonetheless, strong services exports and a steady flow of
inward remittances cushioned.

India’s CAD remained within sustainable level at 1.3% of GDP
during April-December 2024 (1.1% a year ago).

Economy Outlook

India is poised to maintain its position as the fastest-growing
major economy in FY 2025-26, driven by strengthening
private consumption, robust bank and corporate balance
sheets, favourable financial conditions and sustained
government capital expenditure. Positive factors for inflation
outlook include easing supply chain pressures, softening
global commodity prices and anticipated higher agricultural
production due to a likely above-normal southwest monsoon.
While the export sector may face headwinds from rising
geopolitical tensions, protectionist policies and potential
tariff wars, India’s participation in 14 free trade agreements
and six preferential trade agreements, along with ongoing
negotiations with the US, Oman, Peru and the EU, could bolster
trade growth.

India’s economic outlook for FY 2025-26 remains promising,
driven by recovering consumption demand, sustained
government capital expenditure amid fiscal consolidation,
robust bank and corporate balance sheets, favourable financial
conditions and resilient services growth. Improving consumer
and business sentiment, coupled with sound macroeconomic
fundamentals, further bolsters the growth trajectory. However,
potential downside risks include uncertainty surrounding
global trade due to protectionism, prolonged geopolitical
tensions and global financial market volatility, which could also
pose upside risks to infiation.

Manufacturing sector is expected to gain further traction in
FY 2025-26 supported by improvement in domestic demand,
higher capacity utilisation, healthy balance sheets of
corporates and banks and consumer and business optimism.
The government’s focus on widening the manufacturing

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

base and the policy support through the ongoing PLI scheme
and National Manufacturing Mission announced in the Union
Budget 2025-26 is expected to further strengthen ‘Make in
India’ initiative.

With infiation falling below the target in February and March
2025, supported by a sharp fall in food inflation, there is now
greater confidence in a durable alignment of headline infiation
with the target of 4.0% over a 12-month horizon. The benign
inflation outlook and moderate growth warrant monetary policy
to be growth-supportive, while remaining watchful about the
rapidly evolving global macroeconomic conditions.

These factors are expected to create new employment
opportunities, improve labour income and strengthen
domestic demand. The optimism about manufacturing and
services sectorsis also reflected in the forward-looking
surveys conducted by the Reserve Bank. Taking into account
these factors, real GDP growth for 2025-26 is projected at 6.5%
with risks evenly balanced.

Going forward, global financial market volatility, geopolitical
tensions, trade fragmentation, supply chain disruptions

and climate-induced uncertainties pose downside risks to
the growth outlook and upside risks to the inflation outlook.
However, the Indian economy is poised to remain the fastest-
growing major economy in 2025-26 by leveraging its sound
macroeconomic fundamentals, robust financial sector and
commitment towards sustainable growth.

Source: RBI Annual Report

Apparel Sector Overview

India is the world's second-largest producer of textiles and
garments. Indian textiles and apparel products have a history
of fine craftsmanship across the entire value chain, from
fibre, yarn and fabric to apparel with high global appeal. India’s
cotton, silk and denim are highly popular in other countries and
Indian apparel also has found success across fashion centres
around the world. The Indian textile and apparel industry is
highly diversified with a wide range of segments ranging from
products of traditional handloom, handicrafts, wool and silk
products to the organised textile industry in India. Itis also
the sixth-largest exporter of textiles spanning apparel, home
and technical products. India has a 4.6% share of the global
trade in textiles and apparel. The textiles and apparel industry
contributes 2.3% to the country’s GDP, 13% to industrial
production and 12% to exports. Itis also the second-largest
employer after agriculture, providing direct employment to 45
million people and 100 million people in the allied sector. The
amount of ¥ 10,683 crore (S 1.44 billion) under the PLI scheme
is expected to be a major boost for textile manufacturers.
The scheme proposes to incentivise MMF (man-made

fibre) apparel, MMF fabrics and 10 segments of technical
textiles products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Contd.)

Initiatives such as ‘Make in India’ and ‘Skill Development’ by the
government in recent times have been highly instrumental in
driving innovation and growth within the industry. However, the
apparel sector in India, though at a growing stage, compared to
those of the United States or China, remains very small and this
sector has a lot more room for growth. India excels in natural
fibres, especially cotton, reinforcing its status as a global
textile leader. Cotton’s affordability and versatility play a crucial
role in India’'s market dominance. India is one of the largest
consumers and producers of cotton with the highest acreage
of 12.5 million hectares which is 38% of the global area under
cotton cultivation. Emerging trends such as growing casual and
athleisure wear demand and social media’s impact on fashion
choice are rewriting the rules. The Indian apparel market is
expected to attain a strong global position soon with the
backing of friendly policies, sustainable innovation and evolving
consumer behaviour.

The Indian garment industry is poised for a strong recovery
with ICRA projecting a revenue growth of 12-14% in FY 2024-25
and 9-11% in FY 2025-26 driven by the global China Plus One
sourcing strategy and inventory correction by global retailers.
This comes after apparel exports from India rose 11.6% YoY
during April-January FY 2024-25 rebounding from a 10%
decline in FY 2023-24. Further, the organised retail apparel
sector is driven by rising demand from a normal monsoon,
easing inflation and the festive and wedding seasons. The
increasing preference for affordable, trendy fashion clothing
that mimics high-fashion designs is expected to be a growth
driver for the sector. As consumers increasingly aspire to wear
stylish and branded clothes, the demand for domestic and
international fashion labels is growing, leading to increased
market growth.

Apart from economic indicators, the fashion sector plays a vital
role in the cultural identity and social fabric of India. Apparel
notonly projects a person’s personality and way of life but also
reflects the rich heritage and varied traditions of the nation.
This cultural significance is intertwined with the evolving
market, as consumers seek to balance modern fashion trends
with traditional elements. Moreover, e-commerce has changed
the way Indians buy their clothes; traditional and contemporary
fashion are more accessible than ever. This shift has expanded
the consumer base and fostered a competitive environment,
compelling brands to innovate continuously. India’s apparel
market is transforming remarkably, characterised by vibrant
growth and evolving consumer preferences.

Increasing disposable incomes, along with growing
urbanisation, have improved the penetration of fashion
across urban and rural geographies. Major opportunities
include sustainable fashion: consumers increasingly
look for eco-friendly materials and ethical manufacturing

36 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

processes. Besides, technology-related developments such
as Al-powered personalisation and social commerce also
provide ways to increase the engagement of consumers and
smoothen operations. The increasing adoption of athleisure
and casual wear also points to dedicated investment

areas, aligning with the health-conscious and style-savvy
consumer. As brands tap into Tier Il and lll cities, and explore
untapped rural markets, the industry is poised to solidify its
standing globally. By embracing innovation and sustainability,
stakeholders can achieve long-term growth by building India’s
apparel market into a globally competitive force. The market for
Indian textiles and apparel is projected to grow at a 10% CAGR
toreach $ 350 billion by 2030.

Source: IBEF and https://textileinsights.in/icra-projects-
growth-for-indian-garment-industry-in-fy25/
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Company Performance
Revenues

We achieved record operating revenues of % 1,00,277.27 lakh
as against 86,049.86 lakh, registering an impressive growth
of 16.53% YoY. Our growth momentum was not only fuelled by
consolidation of Kraus Casuals Private Limited, reflecting the
effectiveness of our strategic initiatives, but also supported
by robust volume expansion, showcasing the effectiveness of
our design capabilities, coupled with our efforts to enhance
growth, particularly through improved inventory management
practices. This remarkable revenue milestone refiects our
expanding scale of business, driven by our relentless pursuit
of double-digit growth. Changes in product mix sales as well
as higher discounting due to end-of-season sale (EOSS)
promotions, had a moderating effect on average realisation
values, thereby affecting the overall sales value growth.

As we build on this momentum, this milestone lays a robust
foundation for our future endeavours, positioning us for
sustained success and further expansion.

Costs
Cost of Goods Sold (COGS):

COGS includes costs of material consumed, purchase of
stockin trade, change ininventories of finished goods, workiin
progress and stock in trade and manufacturing and operating
expenses. COGS stood at R 58,624.92 lakh in FY2025 as
compared toR 48,664.47 lakh in the previous year. The COGS
percentage to Revenue from Operations stood at 58.46% in
FY2025 as compared to 56.55% in FY2024. The increase in
COGS was primarily driven by higher production levels, resulting
frominventory management practices aimed at supporting
growth, alongside the moderating impact of average
realisation values.

Employee benefit expenses:

Employee benefit expenses increased to 13,644.35 lakhin
FY 2024-25 from< 10,530.71 lakh in FY 2023-24 with a rise of
29.57% which was primarily due to the consolidation of Kraus
Casuals Private Limited and a marginal rise in salaries, wages,
and allowances, reflecting an increase in employee strength
and annual increments.

Selling and distribution expenses:

Selling and distribution expenses increased to ¥ 4,903.46 lakh
iNnFY 2024-25 from < 4,376.25 lakh in FY 2023-24. Though in
absolute terms these expenses would have increased by
12.05%, however the selling and distribution expenses as a
percentage of revenue from Operations decreased from 5.09%
iNFY 2023-24 10 4.89% in FY 2024-25.

The increase in selling and distribution expenses was primarily
on account of increase in commission on sales and clearing
and forwarding charges. We typically budget our selling and
distribution expenses on a yearly basis. However, seasonal

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

dynamics and spread of marketing budget may vary on a
quarterly basis. Considering these variable factors, we typically
budget the selling and distribution expenses around the
targeted range of 5-7%.

Administrative and other expense:

Administrative and other expenses increased and stood
at¥ 4,040.95 laknin FY 2024-25 as compared to % 4,763.95
lakhin FY 2023-24, a decline of 15.18%. Further, due to
decline in absolute value coupled with increased sales and
operating leverage, the administrative and other expense
as percentage of revenue from Operations decreased from
554% inFY 2023-24 to 4.03% in FY 2024-25. The reason for
the reduction in these expenses was primarily on account
of recovery of old debtors and comparatively less expenses
towards legal and professional fees as compared to the
corresponding period.

Profitability

EBITDA (Operating Profit) and EBITDA margin (Operating
Profit Margin):

EBITDA, excluding Other Income increased to % 19,060.27 lakhin
FY 2024-25 as compared to* 17,708.03 lakh in the previous year.
EBITDA margin stood at 19.01% in FY 2024-25 as compared to
20.58% in the previous year. This EBITDA margin performance

is resultant of the growth based balanced approach adopted
by the Company to achieve higher market share keeping
areasonable margin profile. The Company has started
participating in EOSS, providing support in terms of manpower,
shop-in-shop as well as incentivising various channels for
better reach and performance.

37

M8IAIBAQ [euonelado MBIAIBAQ 81810d10D) uonoNPO.AU|

BJUBUIBA0YH

(%)
44
@
~+
c
=
o
=
<
P
(0]
©
o
=
=
7

Sluswajlels |eloueuly


IBEF and https://textileinsights.in/icra-projects-growth-for-indian-garment-industry-in-fy25/
IBEF and https://textileinsights.in/icra-projects-growth-for-indian-garment-industry-in-fy25/

Management Discussion and Analysis (Contd.)

Profit Before Tax (PBT):

PBT stood at 19,761.45 lakh in FY 2024-25 as compared to
%19,922.52 lakh in FY 2023-24 reflecting a marginal decline
of 0.81% YoY.

Profit After Tax (PAT) (Net Profit):

The Company reported a profit after tax of % 14,919.10 lakh in
FY 2024-25 as against ¥ 15,407.57 lakh in FY 2023-24, a decline
of 3.17%. Net Profit Margin stood at 14.18% in FY 2024-25 as
compared to 17.17% in FY 2023-24. A significant contributor to
this change was the increase in depreciation and amortisation
expenses, which rose from? 1,036.96 lakh in FY 2023-24 to

¥ 3,218.30 lakhin FY 2024-25. This substantial growth was
primarily driven by additional amortisation of intangible assets
resulting from the acquisition of Kraus Casuals Private Limited.

Earnings per Share (EPS):

The EPS for the year was 23.44 as compared to % 25.00 in the
previous year.

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE):
The ROCE for FY 2024-25 stood at 24.34%.

Return on Net Worth (RONW):

The RONW of the Company stood at 19.95% in FY 2024-25, as
compared to 25.25% in FY 2023-24. The comparatively lower
RONW was primarily on account of the decline in margins.

Our primary sources of liquidity and capital resources are cash
generated from operating activities. Our primary requirements
for liquidity and capital are working capital and general
corporate needs, including manufacturing-related expenses,
operating costs, marketing and payroll related expenditures.

The financial risk profile of the Company is expected to remain
strong backed by healthy capital base as on March 31, 2025,
comfortable debt protection metrics and strong liquidity
backed with cash flows from profitable operations. The
Company continues to have strong liquidity of ¥ 34,003.55 lakh
as onMarch 31, 2025, in the form of cash and cash equivalents,
bank balance and current and non-current investments
(excluding investment in joint venture) against nil non-current
term debtand a current debt of % 10,798.37 lakh. The Company
has a strong financial position with net cash balance (Cash and
Investments minus borrowings) of ¥ 23,205.19 lakh.

The Company has a very comfortable interest coverage

ratio of 20.50 as on March 31, 2025 as compared to 46.70

as onMarch 31, 2024 and the Debt Service coverage ratio
stood at 1.93 as on March 31, 2025 as compared to 23.12 as
onMarch 31, 2024. The Debt-to-Equity ratio of the Company
stood at 0.20x as on March 31, 2025 as against 0.03x as on
March 31, 2024, showcasing the excess cash the Company is
able to maintain on a consistent basis. Our interest coverage
ratio decreased as well as Debt-to-Equity ratio increased
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primarily due to an increase in interest expenses resulting from
higher borrowings to support growth initiatives and expansion
plans. Despite this, our interest coverage ratio remains
healthy, indicating our ability to comfortably service our debt
obligations. Company’s prudent cash conservation practices
have helped it to weather difficult times and enforce upon the
confidence to face any uncertainty in the future if it were to
arise on account of external factors.

The Company had an increase in the net working capital cycle
resultant of increase in debtor days and inventory days. The
debtor days as pegged to operating revenues stood at 157
days. The debtors turnover ratio stood at 3.89 in FY 2024-25
as compared to 5.16 in FY 2023-24 primarily on account of
increased credit period due to consolidation of Kraus Casuals
Private Limited. The inventory turnover ratio stood at 6.54
iNFY 2024-25 as compared to 12.98 in FY 2023-24, primarily
resulting from inventory management practices aimed at
supporting growth. The change in inventory turnover ratio is
primarily due to a strategic shiftin our inventory management
approach, where we realigned our approach to ensure timely
supply and meet growing demand, resulting in increased
inventory levels. The current ratio stood at 2.46 in FY 2024~

25 ascompared to 4.79inFY 2023-24. The current ratio
decreased primarily due to strategic adjustments in our
working capital management. As we continue to expand our
operations, including due to consolidation of Kraus Casuals
and increase production to meet rising demand, we have seen
acorresponding increase in current liabilities, particularly in
trade payables and short-term borrowings. Additionally, our
inventory levels have been optimised to balance supply chain
efficiency with the need for adequate stock to meet customer
demand, which has also impacted our current asset position.

Despite this decrease, our current ratio remains within a
manageable range, and we're focused on maintaining a healthy
balance between liquidity and growth investments.

The Company has declared a total dividend per share for
FY 2024-25 to % 2/- per share.

The Business Progressive Fund stood at % 4,500 lakh as

on March 31, 2025 as against % 4,000 lakh as on March 31,
2024. The Company had taken a first-of-its-kind initiative in

FY 2012-13 by setting up a '‘Business Progressive Fund’. The
genesis of this fund was to create and build up areserve

from the profits of the Company to address potential market
volatility that are inherent to the industry due to potential
macro-economic events that impact consumer sentiment and
spending behaviour. Initiatives like these clearly showcase
Company’s outlook to run as a continuous operating Company
withstanding the vagaries of uncertain situations.

Credit Rating

CRISIL has reaffirmed the Company’s debt rating as AA-/Stable
(high degree of safety), which will enable superior credit terms
from the financial market and banks.

Brands

We cater to multiple categories including apparel and
accessories with a strong portfolio of owned brands. Our
brands operate across segments which include premium
segment, premium semi-formal wear market segment, D2C
fashionwear market segment, mid-market segment and
focused kidswear and womens denim and casual wear market
segment. Through our own brands, we cater to menswear,
womenswear and kidswear across various products and

price categories. We firmly believe that strong branding
fosters aspiration, commands a premium and creates lasting
connections with consumers. Having brands with high recall
value provides a significant competitive edge. Today, we are
proud to have evolved from a denim-focused Company to a
leading lifestyle Company, resonating with a broader audience
across age and gender.

Our portfolio of brands as detailed below resonate with the
attitude and aspirations of today’s youth, cementing our
position as a trusted and long-term player in branded fashion:

e Killer

The Company'’s flagship brand Killer imbibes in it the cool
confidence of today’s youth and redefines denims, giving
abold character to them. Killer is a powerful and iconic
brand and is regarded as one of the established and well-
regarded denim brands in India. Killer continues to be the
flagship brand amongst our brand portfolio.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Integriti

Reflecting and resonating the ambition and energy

of youth, Integriti offers a credible, trusted and value
proposition across work and casual wear and helps to offer
product range to a different price segment.

Lawman

A glamorous, lifestyle brand, Lawman is aimed to be
positioned as a D2C Brand for young adults. The brand
plays a unique role in bringing the glamour quotient to the
fashion wardrobe.

Easies

A blend of classic and contemporary preferences, Easies
is reshaping corporate fashion in India through its range
of semi-formal menswear, made from the most premium
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Contd.)

range of fabric and linen. Easies a well-established

brand known for its collection of chinos and shirts has a
dedicated customer following supported by the increasing
trend of semi-formal wear.

e JuniorKiller

Junior Killer is set to redefine the fashion landscape for
young boys aged 4 to 16. This high street fashion brand
offers a comprehensive wardrobe solution, from casual
to sporty to classic styles. With meticulously designed
pieces that cater to the evolving tastes and needs of
today’s youth, Junior Killer ensures that young boys can
express their individuality with confidence and fiair.

¢ KrausJeans

Kraus Casuals Private Limited, known for its Kraus Jeans
brand, specialises in women’'s denim and casual wear. This
brand is focused with our goal to accelerate our entry into
the women's denim segment, complementing our existing
portfolio of brands and expanding our reach within the
women's fashion casualwear market.

Product Wise Sales

Over the years, we have successfully transformed from

a denim-centric Company to a lifestyle brand, driven by

a strategic focus on expanding our product categories
resonating with a broader audience across age and gender.
This approach has not only elevated the aspirational value
of our brand by offering a broader range of products but also
increased our share of the consumer’s wallet. Today, our
product portfolio encompasses a diverse mix of high-quality
bottom wear and top wear, including jeans, trousers, shirts,
t-shirts and range of winterwear.

Some of the key products of the Company which primarily
drives sales are as follows:

- Jeans: Jeans sales stood at R 46,275.57 lakh contributing
to 46.39% of the total income from sales of apparel
and lifestyle accessories in FY 2024-25 as compared to
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% 45,246.30 lakh in the previous year contributing to 52.91%
of the total income from sales of apparel and lifestyle
accessories. Though there has been an absolute growth

in terms of value from this category, the percentage fall in
revenue contribution from jeans (denims) clearly reflects the
concentrated efforts of the Company to diversify its revenue
streams across product categories.

« Shirts: Shirts’ contribution to total income from sales
of apparel and lifestyle accessories stood at 20.97%
with sales of ¥ 20,919.36 lakh in FY 2024-25 compared to
% 18,614.32 lakh in the previous year

- Trousers: Trousers sales stood at ¥ 12,083.94 lakhin
FY 2024-25 as compared to% 6,485.67 lakh in the previous
year. Trousers contributed 12.11% of total income from sales
of apparel and lifestyle accessories revenues as compared
to 7.58% in the previous year

+ T-shirts: T-Shirts sales stood at % 5,888.96 lakh contributing
to 5.90% of the total income from sales of apparel and
lifestyle accessories from? 4,345.78 lakh in the previous year

Sales and Distribution Channel

The Company leverages a multi-channel distribution model,
striking a balance between directly operated and franchise-
operated exclusive brand outlets (EBOs), large format stores
(LFS) and multi-brand outlets (MBOs). This strategic approach
enables us to drive sales growth while maintaining operational
discipline to mitigate inventory and payment risks.

While traditional distribution channels have been pivotal to
our profitability, our long-standing relationships with channel
partners have been a key success driver. To stay relevantin
today’s market, we are adopting a calculated approach to
online channel and also expanding our presence in national
chain lifestyle stores, balancing visibility with sales and

margin expectations. Our strategic focus on expanding our
Exclusive Brand Outlet (EBO) network, comprising comprising
Company-owned Company-operated (COCO), Company-
owned Franchisee-operated (COFO), and Franchise-owned
Franchise-operated (FOFO) models, serves multiple purposes.
It helps diversify our revenue streams, acts as a growth engine
and enhances brand awareness. Alongside our domestic
market focus, we maintain a consistent presence in the export
channel, ensuring a international footprint.

The Company with its widespread presence with growing
network of exclusive brand outlets (EBOs) and increasing
presence in large format stores (LFS) has been able to diversify
its reach across India, enhancing brand visibility and driving
growth. The distribution network spreads across 609 EBOs,
widespread MBO presence serviced through 80+ Distributors
covering 4,000+ MBO stores and presence across 2,700+
countersinthe large format stores.

The channel wise sales performance of the Company are
clubbed under two major categories - (i) Retail and (i) Non-
Retail category. Retail category channel would constitute sales
from EBO and LFS channel and Non-Retail category constitutes
sales from MBO, Factory Retail/Seconds sales, Exports and
E-commerce sales. In FY 2024-25, the Company has seen

very robust performance in the Retail Channel sales which
contributed to 54.08% of total income from sales of apparel
and lifestyle accessories as against 46.96% in the previous
year, primarily led by increase in the number of EBOs. Non-
Retail Channel contributed 45.92% of total income from sales
of apparel and lifestyle accessories as against 53.04% in the
previous year.

As our Exclusive Brand Outlet (EBO) network and Large Format
Store (LFS) presence expand, we are poised to leverage our
brand equity and customer trust. Our goal is to implement a
balanced distribution strategy that prioritises profitability and
cash generation while evaluating the cost-benefit trade-off of
increased visibility and potential sales. To mitigate risks, we will
also focus on robust receivable management by capping sales
to any single party at a comfortable limit, ensuring business
continuity in unforeseen circumstances.

Retail Stores

The Company has 609 existing retail stores as on March 31,
2025 and 52 stores are in work in progress phase. Of the 609
stores, 404 stores are Killer brand EBOs, 109 stores arein
K-Lounge format, 83 are Lawman & Integriti Brand EBOs, 12 are
Kraus Jeans Brand EBOs and 1 is a factory outlet format. The
Company has added net 121 stores during the FY 2024-25 and
continues to focus on adding more such EBOs.

Outlook, Opportunities and Threats

Inthe year gone by, the Company saw a very strong sales
performance and the high levels of inventory turn that the
business has delivered. This performance was possible due

to strong sales execution. Notwithstanding the uncertainty
over the short to medium term, India is expected to return to
astrong growth trajectory in the apparel and retail sector,
given the underlying growth drivers refiecting the changing
consumer trend and increasing usage of casual wear in offices
as well ashome. Fashion consciousness and retail therapy have
become a core part of human lifestyle and are likely to recover
and gain momentum eventually. With growing multiple channel
of distribution, the market its within easy reach to the end
consumer driving growing demand for the apparel sector.

On account of inflationary pressure as well as understanding
the difficult art of carrying out manufacturing and inventory
management has lead to a challenging environment for many
apparel manufacturers and eventually lead to many shutting
down operations. Further, the industry has also seen a general
concentration towards a few manufacturers who have been
able to wave through these difficulties. With the rise of multiple
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distribution platforms on account of digital formats as well

as national chain stores, the sourcing of the finished apparel
products across categories especially for branded apparels will
hold key towards fulfilling the rising demand from consumers in
India. We believe only companies with inherent manufacturing
expertise, balance sheet strength and well-established
network backed with strong brand appeal would emerge
stronger and more committed of pursuing sustainable and
profitable growth catering to the rising demand.

Based on its well-capitalised balance sheet, prudent
financial practices, debt-free status and disciplined cost
control, the Company has the ability to protect interests of
all its stakeholders. With the added strength of its superior
manufacturing practices, strong brands and robust pan India
distribution network the Company is well positioned to meet
the near-term challenges and emerge stronger and more
committed to its long-term vision of pursuing sustainable and
profitable growth.

Riskand Concerns

The fashion wear industry is susceptible to discretionary
spending fluctuations, particularly during periods of high
inflation, which can dampen consumer confidence and impact
sales. Intensifying competition has led to pricing pressure,
while the influx of foreign brands with substantial advertising
budgets has increased marketing costs for established
players like ours. To stay competitive, we must continuously
innovate and adapt to evolving fashion trends and consumer
preferences, offering products that are both stylish and
affordable. Failure to do so may result in unsold inventory or
markdowns, affecting our bottom line.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Contd.)

As a fashion apparel brand, our success hinges on meeting
customer expectations and staying attuned to rapidly evolving
preferences. If our products and designs fail to resonate with
our target audience, or if we misjudge demand, our business
may suffer. To thrive, we must anticipate and respond to
shifting customer tastes, continuously updating our product
offerings to stay relevant and appealing.

Accurately forecasting customer demand and trends is vital

to our business success. If we overestimate demand, we risk
accumulating excess inventory that may not sell in time or at
all. Conversely, underestimating demand can lead to stockouts,
missed sales opportunities, and disappointed customers.
Failure to anticipate and adapt to changing customer
preferences canresultin lost customers, obsolete inventory
and pricing pressure, forcing us to sell at discounted prices.
Moreover, a decline in demand or misjudging design trends
can lead to increased market acceptance of competitors’
products, potentially substituting our offerings and resulting in
lower sales, excess inventory and distressed sales at or below
cost price.

KKCL is uniquely placed in the sector with an integrated
business model from designing, manufacturing and sourcing,
distribution and logistics, and retailing. The Company has in-
house team of designers that track national and international
trends to create innovative fashionable products that
consumers would relate to.

Our design, merchandising, marketing and procurement teams
work together to develop innovative design concepts across
product categories. With years of growth and refinement, our
design process and experienced marketing team enable us to
create differentiated products that respond to evolving market
trends and customer preferences. The Company’s state-of-
the-art manufacturing facilities ensure quality and timely
deliveries in a short period of time.

Credit Risk

Creditriskis the risk that a counter-party will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract.
Our operations involve extending credit for periods of time,
ranging typically from 75 to 130 days, to our distributors,
franchisee operated exclusive brand outlets, large format
national chain stores, multi-brand stores and online retailers
and consequently, we face the risk of the uncertainty regarding
the receipt of these outstanding amounts.

To mitigate credit risk related to trade receivables, we

closely monitor the creditworthiness of debtors through
internal systems that are configured to define credit limits of
customers, thereby, limiting the credit risk to pre-calculated
amounts. We assess increases in credit risk on an ongoing
basis for amounts receivable that become past due. Credit risk
is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts
continuously, while at the same time internal control systems
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are in place to ensure the amounts are within defined limits. In
respect of trade receivables, we consider provisions as per our
internal framework. If our distributors, franchisees, large format
national chain stores, multi-brand stores and online retailers
delay or default in making payments in the future, our profit
margins and cash flows may be adversely affected. We assess
and manage credit risk on the basis of assumptions, inputs and
various market driven factors. The Company has also instituted
steps to mitigate or reduce the risk of recovery by taking

bank guarantees and / or security deposits from the channel
partners. These steps assist the Company to strengthen the
recovery process and reduce the uncertainties associated
with recovery.

Commodity risk

We are exposed to the price risk associated with purchasing
our raw materials, which form a significant component of
our expenses.

We procure raw materials comprising of fabrics and
accessories from various third-party raw material suppliers,
for the purpose of manufacturing our products. These third-
party raw material suppliers are located in various states
across India with whom we negotiate terms with. Our inventory
levels may be hampered in case such third-party raw material
supplier delays or fails to provide the raw materials for the
purpose of manufacturing apparel. The performance of our
Company largely depends on our ability to arrange for such
third-party raw material suppliers who would provide the raw

materials to manufacture our products in sufficient quantities
at competitive prices and of desired quality.

We typically do not enter into long terms arrangements with
our vendors and typically source raw materials based on
periodic purchase orders and price negotiations. Our cost

of goods sold is impacted by the amount of raw materials
procured by us and the price at which such raw materials are
procured may fluctuate from time to time due to a number

of factors beyond our control, including economic factors,
seasonal factors, environmental factors and changes in
government policies and regulations. Therefore, fluctuations
in the price and availability of raw materials may affect our
business, cash flows and results of operations. Further,

we cannot be assured that the suppliers will continuously
provide the raw materials at adequate pricing and as per our
agreed-upon terms. There is a possibility that any of our third-
party raw material suppliers may discontinue their relationship
with us which would adversely impact our business operations.
We may experience reductions or interruptions in supply

of our raw materials which may delay the manufacturing of

our products.

Inflation risk

India has experienced fluctuations in inflation in the recent
past. High fluctuation in inflation rates may make it more
difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our costs.
Any increase in our raw material expenses on account of
inflationary pressure, employee benefit payments or other
expenses as aresult of increase in inflation in India, which we
are unable to pass on to our customers, whether entirely or

in part, may adversely affect our business, cash flow, results
of operations and financial condition. Especially, the apparel
sector in which the Company operates is a price deflationary
sector wherein the price points across apparel category have
tend to remain constant over a long period of time inspite of
inflation, thereby itis very critical for Companies like us to keep
acontinuous check on how best cost could be controlled to
achieve the desired margins.

Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

Sound internal control systems are a prerequisite for

building and enhancing shareholder value in the long run

and managing risk effectively is fundamental to the way we
manage our business. The Company always looks to move
gradually and seeks to make sensible and balanced business
decisions through our risk appetite and balanced business
framework. We have established a risk management framework
underpinned by a comprehensive suite of policies, operational
processes, procedures and governance structures. These
are important in maintaining adequate internal measures
commensurate with the size and complexity of operations.
Internal control systems comprising policies and procedures
are designed to ensure sound management of our operations,
safekeeping of our assets, optimal utilisation of resources,
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reliability of our financial information and compliance. The
systems and procedures are periodically reviewed and
routinely tested and cover all functions and business areas.

The Company has a sound system of internal controls
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature
of its business to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and
protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition
and that transactions are authorised, recorded, and reported
correctly and adequately. The Company’s internal control

are supplemented by internal audits, review by management
and documented policies, guidelines and procedures. The
internal control is designed to ensure that financial and other
records are reliable for preparing financial information and for
maintaining accountability of assets.

The key constituents of the internal control system are:

- Business Planning and Review: Establishing and
periodically reviewing business plans to ensure alignment
with strategic goals

- Riskand Opportunity Identification: Continual
assessment of key risks and opportunities to stay ahead of
potential challenges and leverage growth prospects

- Organisational Structure and Financial Authority: Clearly
defined organisational roles and financial authority limits to
streamline decision-making and accountability

+ Strengthening Controls: Ongoing identification and
enhancement of areas requiring improved internal controls

- Operational Procedures: Implementing procedures to
ensure efficient and effective business processes

« Compliance Monitoring: Systems in place to monitor
adherence to statutory regulations and industry standards
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Contd.)

- Evaluation Principles: Well-defined criteria for assessing
new business proposals and capital expenditures

- Management Information System: A robust system
providing accurate and timely information to support
decision-making and operational oversight

« Internal Audit and Review: Strong internal audit
mechanisms supplemented by management reviews and
documented policies

The Company has appointed a reputed firm of Chartered
Accountants to conduct its Internal Audit. The Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls systems and suggests
improvement for strengthening them. The Company has a
strong Management Information System, which is an integral
part of the control mechanism. The Company continues

to strengthen its risk management and internal control
capabilities by improving its policies and procedures and
introducing advanced risk management tools.

Human Resources

Our employees are a vital asset, driving our competitive edge
inthe industry. A highly motivated and professional team fuels
our Company’s performance. We have invested significantly in
strengthening our workforce, particularly in retail operations
and inducting experienced professionals to support our
renewed growth strategy.

Our success hinges on attracting, training and retaining
talented frontline associates, managers and creative
professionals. As an equal opportunity employer, we foster

a diverse and inclusive work environment that leverages
employees’ skills, knowledge and leadership abilities to

drive operational growth. To boost employee morale and
alignment with our strategic vision, we have enhanced internal
communication mechanisms and promoted initiatives for
business excellence.
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Additionally, the focus of the Company has been on

retaining and grooming the best talent available. The
Company continues to invest in building competence in the
organisation through employee training and development

and compensation structure that rewards performance. In
addition to compensation that includes salary, allowances
(including performance linked bonuses) and reward plans,

we provide our employees with other benefits which include
insurance coverage and paid leave. We have instituted
inclusivity initiatives for our employees and have in place a
rewards and recognition programme and award employees
based on performance and the impact they have made. The
Company continued to maintain excellent industrial relations
with all its employees at manufacturing facilities. Further,

we are also committed to maintaining high standards of
workplace health and safety and we will continue to improve
the same on ongoing basis. Our Human Resources department
continually focuses on employee engagement and motivation,
recruitment, continuous development and addressing
employee grievances, if any, in a timely manner.

Our human resources policies focus on recruiting talented and
qualified personnel, whom we believe integrate well with our
current workforce, irrespective of their seniority, department
or location. Our employee programmes are focused on taking
regular feedback and facilitating interaction between new
employees and senior management. We have medical and
accidentinsurance for our employees and have also introduced
wellness and physical health programmes.

As of March 31, 2025, the Company had 1763 employees.
The employee base includes our KMPs, senior management
personnel, corporate office staff, showroom staff and staff
employed at our manufacturing facility. In addition, we

have entered into arrangements with third party personnel
companies for the supply of contract labour which we appoint
on a part-time basis to support our seasonal needs of labour,
for example during large-scale product launches, festive
periods and discount campaigns. The number of contract
labourers varies from time to time based on the nature and
extent of work contracted to independent contractors.

Technology

The Company believes that a robust IT infrastructure and
keeping abreast with technological innovations is essential
for ensuring strong operational efficiencies and enhancing
productivity. We continue to focus on building and improving
our IT capabilities while promoting innovation throughout our
processes. We have implemented a range of technological
initiatives across our operational network with the aim of
enhancing the operational efficiency.

The Company has been using logic ERP as an end-to-end
solution which caters to most of the operational and financial
operational areas as follows:

a) Procurement: Right from raising purchase order to in-ward
(GRN) of raw material / semi-fished / finished goods and
posting of accounting entries relating to purchases is
executed in this module

b)  Order processing / Billing: Generating sales order and
subsequent reservation/delivery order, converting D.O
to ready for despatch (RFD) and finally converting those
RFDs into invoices with posting of accounts are part of this
module. Additionally, E-way bill and E-invoice generation is
part of this module

c) Production: Production module covers generating a
job order on the basis of the sales order. Subsequent
movement of production lot size through various process
such as cutting, stitching, washing, finishing, conversion
of semi-finished goods to finished product, with
segregation of product into fresh/seconds/ damaged,
processes through this module. The finished goods
once segregated are transferred to finished warehouse
for order processing. In between issue of raw material
required for every process is recorded with quantity and
value. For every process, tailor payment is generated
based on the rates defined and lot completed, this
again is the base for wages generation and linked with
payroll module

d) Payroll: Inthe payroll module, the salaries of staff and
wages of workers are and generated. As mentioned
above, data of wages flows through production module
and is processed automatically through reverse
calculation. Attendance for salary is pulled through Cosec
(Attendance-managing software) for monthly processing

e) Finance and Accounts: Finance is the core to the entire
system as itis linked with all the above modules. All
accounting entries related to all the above modules
are posted automatically in this module. Apart from
posting of accounts, trial balance generation and
balance sheet related data are part of the finance and
accounting module

f)  WMS: Warehouse management system s the latest
module which has been implemented for efficient
warehouse management. This would contribute in
organising the warehouse helping in streamlining the
warehouse as far as order processing and inventory
management. On account of this module racking and
stacking of material is done in such a way that it reduces
the time in locating material and ensures accurate and
timely delivery of goods

IT Infrastructure for the B2B and B2C business operations:
Apart from the above modules which form core of the ERP,
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the Company has a separate system created for the B2B
(Distribution channel) and B2C - POS (Retail Channel) which
are operated as independent modules with offline connectivity
with the core module. Schemes and offers are part of the POS
which also includes online discount approval through mobile
app and e-invoice as the key features. In these modules,

sales and inventory of both the channels are maintained.

The Franchisees and distributors have the option to opt for
accounts module if required.

Apart from the above, the Company has a strong hardware
and network infrastructure with multiple layers of security

in form of fire wall and end point security such as anti-virus
not to mention multiple layers of switches and devices which
are controlled and managed in active directory environment.
In order to ensure business continuity, the organisation has
maintained DR facility using ARC server as a tool.

Such technology applications have allowed us to quickly and
efficiently expand our operations. With the implementation
of our technology initiatives, we intend to streamline our
operations further and expect to decrease our operational
expenses which we believe will drive our revenue growth.

Cautionary Statement

This discussion contains certain forward-looking statements
within the meaning of applicable securities laws. Readers

are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements, which reflects management’s analysis
describing our objectives and expectations based on certain
information and assumptions. Our operations are dependent
on various internal and external factors within and outside
the control of the management. We assume no responsibility
in respect of the forward-looking statements herein, which
may undergo changes in future on the basis of subsequent
developments, information or events. Actual results may differ
from those expressed or implied herein.
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Director’s Report

To,

The Members,

Your Board of Directors are pleased to present the 34" Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the

year ended March 31, 2025.

Financial summary & highlights

(ZIn lakhs)

Particulars

1 Net Sales/Income from operations

2 Other Income

3A  Total Expenditure
3B Share of Profit/(Loss) of Joint Venture
Gross profit (Before deducting any of the following)

Finance charges

Depreciation/Amortization

Tax provision
Net profit for the Period
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

Total of Comprehensive Income (net of tax)

Profit b/f from previous years

© ©® N O ;0 T o N~

Appropriation of profit

=

Dividend on equity shares

ii) Transfer to Business Progressive fund

10  Dividend (in?) per ordinary share

11 Paid up Equity capital

12 Reserves except revaluation reserve

Audited Financial Results (Standalone) Audited Financial Results (Consolidated)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
84,034.75 86,049.86 1,00,277.27 86,049.86
4,903.88 3,697.00 4,932.65 3,687.39
70,334.76 69,778.90 85,445.16 69,808.28
NIL NIL (3.31) (6.45)
20,872.60 21,414.89 23,992.92 21,395.42
940.05 435.94 1,013.18 435.94
1,328.69 1,010.99 3,218.30 1,036.96
4,517.92 4,515.72 4,842.35 4,514.95
14,085.95 15,452.24 14,919.10 15,407.57
(28.37) (69.40) (28.37) (69.40)
14,057.58 15,382.84 14,890.73 15,338.17
45,508.60 35,539.54 45,422.65 35,498.26
500.00 2,465.01 500.00 2,465.01
NIL 2,465.01 NIL 2,465.01
500.00 - 500.00 -
NIL 2.00 NIL 2.00
6,162.52 6,162.52 6,162.52 6,162.52
16,372.38 15,872.38 16,372.38 15,872.38

Overall performance and state of company
affairs

InFY2025, we delivered aresilient performance, underpinned
by strategic initiatives and volume growth driven by product
innovation and design excellence, that further cemented our
market position. The Company achieved operating revenues of
2 1,00,277.27 lakhs as against R 86,049.86 lakhs, registering a
growth of 16.53% y-0-y, backed by EBITDA of R 13,060.27 lakhs
and EBITDA margin of 19.01% in FY 2025.

The Company reported a profit after tax of R 14,919.10 lakhs
inFY2025 as against ? 15,407.57 lakhs in FY2024, a decline of
3.17%. Net Profit Margin stood at 14.18% in FY2025 as compared
to 17.17% in FY2024. A significant contributor to this change
was the increase in Depreciation and Amortization expenses,
whichrose from R 1,036.96 lakhs in FY2024 to R 3,218.30 lakhs
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in FY2025, on the back of additional amortization of intangible
assetsresulting from the acquisition of Kraus.

Overview of industry and important changesin
the industry

India is the world's second-largest producer of textiles and
garments. India’s cotton, silk and denim are highly popular in
other countries, and Indian apparel too has found success
across fashion centres around the world. The Indian textile
and apparel industry is highly diversified with a wide range
of segments ranging from products of traditional handloom,
handicrafts, wool and silk products to the organized textile
industry in India. It is also the sixth-largest exporter of textiles
spanning apparel, home and technical products. India has a
4.6% share of the global trade in textiles and apparel. With
arich history of craftsmanship, Indian textiles and apparel

are highly sought after worldwide. The textiles and apparel
industry contributes 2.3% to the country’s GDP, 13% to
industrial production and 129 to exports.

Consumer preference and regional diversity have changed

the apparel market of India, together with some key emerging
trends for sustainability, athleisure and the influence of digital
platforms. Heightened environmental sensitivity is promoting
increased demand for sustainable fashion. A trend can be
seen in which people prefer eco-friendly materials and ethical
production methods. Online shopping has increased manifold,
whereby a wide choice of domestic and international brands

is easily availed and it becomes even more striking in Tier-ll

and lll cities, where the e-commerce boom has democratised
access to fashion. The athleisure segment is another area
witnessing rapid growth, consolidating functionality with

style to cater to India’s young, fitness-conscious population.
Moreover, performance-oriented clothing at reasonable prices
has supported the segment’s growth. E-commerce platforms
further enhance accessibility, contributing to the expansion of
this category across urban and rural areas.

External environment and economic outlook

INn FY 2024-25, India’s economy showcased remarkable
resilience, driven by robust macroeconomic fundamentals,
proactive policy measures and sustained government capital
expenditure. Despite global challenges, including geopolitical
tensions and geoeconomic fragmentation, India’s growth
narrative remained robust, with a real GDP growth of 6.5%,
solidifying its position as the fastest-growing major economy.
The private final consumption expenditure (PFCE) growth
accelerated to 7.6%, driven by robust rural demand, despite
moderation in urban consumption. PFCE'’s share in real GDP
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rose to 56.7%. Strong agricultural performance boosted

rural demand, evident fromincreased sales of two-wheelers,
motorcycles, tractors and FMCG volume growth inrural

areas. Conversely, urban demand, which previously led post-
pandemic consumption, showed signs of slowing. Government
final consumption expenditure (GFCE) registered a modest
growth of 3.8%.

India is set to remain the fastest-growing major economy

inFY 2026, driven by strengthening private consumption,
robust financials and sustained government spending. Key
positives include easing supply chain pressures, softening
commodity prices and expected higher agricultural output.
Despite potential headwinds from global trade tensions and
protectionism, India’s strategic trade agreements and ongoing
negotiations could support trade growth. The economic
outlook for FY 2026 remains promising, with recovering
consumption, robust bank and corporate balance sheets, and
resilient services growth. However risks include global trade
uncertainty, geopolitical tensions and financial market volatility.

Transfer to reserves

During the year under review no amount has been transfered
toreserve.

Share capital

There isno change in share capital during the financial year
2024-25.

Dividend

Your Board of Directors had in their meeting held on May 12,
2025 declared 1stinterim dividend 2024-25 of % 2/- (20%) per
equity share absorbing a sum of % 1,232.50 lakhs. The record
date for the purpose of payment of interim dividend was May
16, 2025 and the said interim dividend was paid in May 2025.

Your Board has decided not to recommend final dividend for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Dividend distribution policy

Your Company has formulated Dividend Distribution policy
in terms of Regulation 43A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Annual dividend generally consists of a few interim
dividend and a final dividend at the year end. The Board of
Directors seeks to balance members need of returns and
Company’s requirement of long term growth. After meeting
internal cash balance towards any strategic investments,

the Company will endeavour to return the rest of the free
cash generated to shareholders through regular dividend.
The said policy as approved by your Board of Directors has
been uploaded on the website of the Company. The dividend
distribution policy is available on https://www.kewalkiran.com/

investors.php#Policies.
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Material changes and commitments affecting
the financial position of your company

There have been no material changes and commitments,
which affect the financial position of your company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year to which the
financial statements relate and the date of thisReport. Thereis
no change in the nature of business of your Company.

Disclosures relating to subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures

White Knitwears Private Limited is a joint venture of your
Company. Kewal Kiran Developers Limited (formerly known as
Kewal Kiran Design Studio Limited) is a wholly owned subsidiary
of your Company.

Kraus Casuals Private Limited became a subsidiary of your
company w.e.f. 181 July 2024,

Kewal Kiran Lifestyle Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary
of your company which was striked off from the registrar of
companies on March 25, 2025.

Financial statements

The financial statements of your Company, consolidated
financial statements along with relevant documents and
separate audited accounts in respect of joint venture and
the subsidiary, are available on the website of your Company
www.kewalkiran.com

Your Company has prepared the consolidated financial
statement in accordance with the applicable Accounting
Standards. The audited consolidated financial statements
together with the Auditor’'s Report form part of the

Annual Report.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 a
statement containing the salient features of the financial
statements of the joint venture and the subsidiary is attached
to the Financial Statements in Form AOC-1.

Cash flow statement

In conformity with the provisions of Regulation 34(2)(c)of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the standalone and consolidated Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025 forms a part of this

Annual Report.

Business responsibility and sustainability
report (BRSR)

In conformity with the provisions of Regulation 34 (2)(f) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Report forms a part of this annual report.
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Credit rating

CRISIL, India’s leading ratings, research, risk and policy advisory
Company has assigned ‘AA- / Stable’ for the banking facilities
of the Company. This will further ensure superior credit terms
from the financial market and banks.

Investor education and protection fund (IEPF)
Unclaimed Dividend

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013, if the dividend transferred to the Unpaid Dividend
Account of the Company remains unpaid or unclaimed for

a period of seven years from the date of such transfer then
such unclaimed or unpaid dividend shall be transferred by the
Company along with interest accrued, if any to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (‘the IEPF’), a fund established
under sub-section (1) of section 125 of the Act.

The Company had during the financial year, accordingly,
transferred to IEPF, the unpaid and unclaimed dividend amounts
pertaining to Final Dividend 2016-17 of % 3,056/-, 18t Interim
Dividend 2017-18 of ¥ 19,915/- 2"%Interim Dividend 2017-18 of

% 15,240/- and 3 Interim Dividend 2017-18 of ¥ 35,682/-.

Below mentioned is the information relating to outstanding dividend accounts and the due dates for claiming dividends from

the company subsequent to which the outstanding amounts standing to the credit of the respective dividend account will be

transferred to the IEPF.

Financial year Date of allotment/declaration Diviggﬁltfi(?r]\?; Last date for claiming dividend
4% Interim Dividend 2017-18 March 10,2018 8215 April 15,2025

Final Dividend 2017-18 September 4,2018 5658 October 8, 2025
18tInterim Dividend 2018-19 July 21,2018 9394  August 23,2025
2" |nterim Dividend 2018-19 October 25,2018 13780 November 29, 2025
3'dInterim Dividend 2018-19 January 23,2019 40610 February 26, 2026
4% Interim Dividend 2018-19 March 7,2019 19630  April 13,2026

Final Dividend 2018-19 September 18,2019 2394  October 19,2026
18t Interim Dividend 2019-20 June 20,2019 13013  July 23,2026

2" |nterim Dividend 2019-20 October 22,2019 13500 November 22, 2026
3'dInterim Dividend 2019-20 January 28, 2020 31530 March 3, 2027

4% Interim Dividend 2019-20 May 26, 2020 11008 July 2,2027

Final dividend 2019-2020 September 15, 2020 5622 October 22, 2027
18t Interim Dividend 2020-21 October 22, 2020 22649 November 27,2027
2 |Interim Dividend 2020-21 January 22, 2021 43090 February 25, 2028
18tInterim Dividend 2021-22 October 28, 2021 30127 December 3, 2028
2" |nterim Dividend 2021-22 January 27, 2022 82121 March 4, 2029
3'dInterim Dividend 2021-22 May 11,2022 89162 June 11,2029
18tInterim Dividend 2022-23 October 21, 2022 248154 November 23,2029
2 Interim Dividend 2022-23 April 27,2023 163714 May 30,2030

18t Interim Dividend 2023-24 January 20, 2024 37617 February 21,2031

The web-addresses of the Company and IEPF Authority, where
the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the
Company are uploaded, are https://www.kewalkiran.com/
investors.php#Unpaid%20Dividend% 20Data and http:/www.

iepf.gov.in/

Any amounts of unclaimed dividend transferred to IEPF after
the expiry of the period of seven years as per provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, shall be entitled to apply to the IEPF
authority for payment of money claimed.

Mandatory Transfer of Shares to Demat Account of
Investors Education and Protection Fund Authority (IEPFA)
in case of unpaid/ unclaimed dividend on shares for a
consecutive period of seven years

In terms of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 6 of the Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016,
(as amended from time to time) (IEPF Rules) shares on which
dividend has not been paid or claimed by a shareholder for a
period of seven consecutive years or more are to be credited
to the Demat Account of Investor Education and Protection
Fund Authority (IEPFA) within a period of thirty days of such
shares becoming due to be so transferred. Upon transfer of
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such shares, all benefits (like bonus, etc.), if any, accruing on
such shares shall also be credited to such Demat Account and
the voting rights on such shares shall remain frozen till the
rightful owner claims the shares. Shares which are transferred
to the Demat Account of [EPFA can be claimed back by the
shareholders from IEPFA by following the procedure prescribed
under the aforesaid rules. The Company sends out individual
communication to the concerned Members whose shares are
liable to be transferred to IEPFA on a continuous basis, to take
immediate action in the matter. An aggregate of 2,655 shares
are transferred to the IEPFA till date out of which 620 shares are
transferred to the IEPFA during the financial year 2024-25.

Nodal officer

The nodal officer appointed by your Company under the
provisions of [EPF is Mr. Abhijit Warange, President - Legal &
Company Secretary and the web-address on which the said
details are available is https://www kewalkiran.com/investors.
php#IEPF2%20Nodal?s200fficer/%20List2%200f%20shares%20
due?20for%20transfer?20to%20IEPF

Directors

During the year Mr. Vivek K. Shiralkar was appointed as Non
Executive Independent Director of your Company from August
13, 2024.

Re-appointment of Director retiring by rotation

Inaccordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Articles of Association of your Company, Mr. Vikas P.
Jain (DIN: 00029901), Director of your Company would retire
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible has offered himself for re-appointment.

Key managerial personnel

Your Company has recognized the following persons as Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) in accordance with the Companies
Act, 2013.

1. Mr.Kewalchand P. Jain - Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Hemant P. Jain - Joint Managing Director

Mr. Dinesh P. Jain - Whole-time Director

Mr. Vikas P. Jain - Whole-time Director

Mr Bharat A. Adnani - Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Mr.Nimesh N. Anandpara - Deputy Chief Financial Officer

~ o o &~ 0N

Mr. Abhijit B. Warange - President - Legal &
Company Secretary

There were no resignation or new appointments of Key
Managerial Personnels during the year.
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Compliance with the code of conduct

Your Company has put in place a Code of Conduct effective
January 14, 2006, for its Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel. Declaration of compliance with

the Code of Conduct has been received from all the Board
Members and Senior Management Personnel as stipulated
under Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A certificate to
this effect from the Chairman & Managing Director forms a part
of this Report.

Compliance with the code of independent
directors

Your Company has putin place a Code of Independent
Directors approved in the Board Meeting held on May 10,
2014, for its Independent Directors. Declaration of compliance
with the code has been received from all the Independent
Directors of your Company as required under Section 134 (3)
(d) of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A certificate to
this effect from the Chairman and Managing Director forms a
part of this Report.

Declaration by independent directors

The Company has received declarations from all the
Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they
meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed under
Sub Section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 6(1) and (2) of the Companys (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 together with
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they
have registered their names in the Independent Directors
Databank. Further, the Board members are satisfied with
regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including
the proficiency) of the Independent Directors of the
Company. The details of familiarisation programme for
Independent Directors are available on the Companys
website at https://www.kewalkiran.com/admin/uploads/
categoryfiles/393Detailsoffamiliarization2024-25.pdf.

General

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required
in respect of the following items as there were no transactions
on these items during the year under review:

1. Issue of Equity Shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

2. Issue of shares (including Sweat Equity Shares) to
employees of the Company under any scheme and ESOS.

3. Issue of shares pursuant to SEBI (Employees Stock Option
scheme) Regulations and SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefit) Regulation, 2014.

4. Issue of shares on Preferential basis pursuant to Section
62 of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Board Meetings

The details of the number and dates of meetings of the Board
of Directors held during the Financial Year 2024-25 forms part
of the Corporate Governance Report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Committees

The disclosure of composition of all Committees constituted by
your Board under the Act and the Listing Regulations and the
changes if any in the composition of such Committees during
the year as well as the number and dates of the meetings of
the Committee are given in the Corporate Governance report,
which forms part of this Annual Report.

Directors’ responsibility statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) read with
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to
Director’s Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

(a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the Company for that period;

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) theDirectors had prepared the accounts for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 on a ‘'going concern’ basis;

(e) theDirectors had laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

Internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements

Your Company has an Internal Control system, commensurate
with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The
Internal Auditors monitor and evaluate the efficacy and
adequacy of the Internal Control System in the Company, its
compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures
and policies at all the Company locations. Based on the report
of Internal Auditors, process owners undertake corrective
actionin their respective areas and thereby strengthen

the controls.
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The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Internal Control System
and suggests improvements to strengthen the same.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, Statutory
Auditors and the Business Heads are periodically apprised of
the Internal Audit findings and corrective actions taken. Audit
plays akey role in providing assurance to the Board of Directors.
Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon
are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

Your Board has also reviewed the internal processes,
system and the internal financial control and the Directors’
Responsibility Statement contain a confirmation as regards
adequacy of the internal financial controls.

Details of internal financial controls and its adequacy are
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report
(‘MDAR’) which forms part of this Report.

Auditors

The Members of the Company in the 315t Annual General
Meeting held on September 6, 2022 had appointed M/s. Jain &
Trivedi, Chartered Accountant, as the Statutory Auditors and
M/s. N.A. Shah Associates LLP as the Joint Statutory Auditors of
the Company for a period of five years i.e. to hold office from the
conclusion of 315t Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of
the 36 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in
the year 2027.
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Audit report

There are no qualification or adverse remark in the Auditors
report which require any explanation from the Board
of Directors.

The Auditors Report on financial statements forming part

of this Annual Report is self-explanatory and do not call for
any further comments. During the year under review, no
frauds were reported by the auditor under Section 143(12) of
Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Company has appointed Mr. Ummedmal P. Jain, proprietor of
M/s U. P. Jain & Co (C.P. No. 2235) to undertake the Secretarial
Audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. The
Secretarial Audit Reportis included as Annexure - lll and forms
anintegral part of this report.

There are no Qualification, Reservation or Adverse Remark in
the Secretarial Audit report which require any explanation from
the Board of Directors.

Pursuant to the Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations
and Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board at its
meeting held on May 12, 2025, based on recommendation

of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment of

Mr. Ummedmal P. Jain, Peer reviewed Practising Company
Secretary (COP no. 2235) as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company for a term of five consecutive years commencing
from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029-30, subject to approval of the
Members at the ensuing AGM.

Secretarial standards

Your Company has complied with all applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India
on Meetings of Board of Directors, General Meeting, Dividend
and the Board's Report.

Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits within the
meaning of Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during
Financial Year 2024-25.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments
under section 186 of the companies act, 2013

Your Company has not given any loans or guarantee during the
financial year 2024-25. The acquisitions of securities of any
other body corporate are within the limit specified u/s 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the same are given in
the notes to financial statements.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption
and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The details of conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo stipulated under
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given as
Annexure - |.

Related party transactions

Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standard
(AS-24) has been made in the notes to the Financial Statement.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
section 188 of the companies act, 2013

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related
parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
is givenin Annexure - 1.

There were no material related party transaction during the
year under review with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial
Personnel which may have potential conflict of interest with
the Company at large. The Company has developed a Related
Party transactions framework through standard operating
procedures for the purpose of identification and monitoring of
such transactions.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee. A statement of all Related Party Transactions is
placed before Audit Committee for its review on a quarterly
basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions
of the transactions for approval. The policy on Related Party
transactions as approved by the Board of Directors has been
uploaded on the website of the Company. The web-link to the

Related Party Policy is https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.
php#Policies

Risk management

Your Company has a Risk Management Committee which has
been entrusted with the responsibility to assist the Board in

(a) Overseeing and approving the Company’s enterprise wide
risk management framework; and (b) Overseeing that all the
risks that the organization faces such as strategic, financial,
credit, market, liquidity, security, property, IT, legal, regulatory,
reputational and other risks have been identified and assessed
and there is an adequate risk management infrastructure in
place capable of addressing those risks.

The Committee has adopted a Risk Management Policy in
accordance with Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
which has been approved by Board of Directors.

Your Company manages, monitors and reports on the principal
risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its
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strategic objectives. Your Company’s management systems,
organisational structures, processes, standards, code of
conduct and behaviours together governs the conduct of your
Company’s business and managing associated risks.

Vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy

Fraud free and corruption free work culture has been core

of your Company. In view of the potential risk of fraud and
corruption due to rapid growth and geographic spread of
operation, your Company has put an even greater emphasis to
address thisrisk.

To meet this objective your Company has adopted a Whistle
Blower Policy establishing Vigil Mechanism to provide a

formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to report
their concern about unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or
ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards
against victimization of employee who avail of the mechanism
and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

[tis affirmed that no personnel of the Company have been
denied access to the Audit Committee in the Financial Year
2024-25.

The Policy on whistle blower/ vigil mechanism may be accessed
on the Company website at https://www.kewalkiran.com/
investors.php#Policies

Significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals

There are no significant and/or material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operation.

Company'’s policy on director’s appointment,
remuneration and evaluation

In terms of the applicable provision of the Companies Act,
2013 read with rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
your Board had approved the Nomination and Remuneration
Policy and Evaluation Policy as recommended by Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, in the Board Meeting held

on October 10, 2014. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has incorporated the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attribute and independence of Director
in the Nomination and Remuneration and Evaluation Policy in
terms of provision of Section 178(3) and Regulation 19 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. Company's policy on Directors’ appointment and
remuneration and the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a Director is given at
https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.php#Policies.
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The said policy envisages the criteria for selection and
appointment of Board Members like determining qualification,
positive attributes and independence of Director, etc. It

also lays down the framework in relation to remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
of the Company. The detail of the remuneration policy of the
Company is given in the Corporate Governance Report, which
forms part of this Annual Report. The said policy also lays down
the criterion for payment of remuneration to Non-Executive
Directors and the web-link of the same is https://www.

kewalkiran.com/investors.php#Palicies.

Annual board evaluation

Your Board has adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its
performance and as well as that of its Committee and individual
Directors, including the Chairman of the Board.

The criteria for performance evaluation of the Board include
aspects like Board composition and structure effectiveness
of Board processes, information and functioning, experience,
competencies, etc. The exercise was carried out through a
structured evaluation process covering various aspects of
the Boards functioning such as composition of the Board and
Committees, experience and competencies, performance

of specific duties and obligations, governance issues etc.
Separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance
of individual Directors including the Board Chairman who was
evaluated on parameters such as attendance, contribution
at the meetings and otherwise, independent judgment,
safeguarding of minority shareholders interest, etc.

The evaluation of the independent Directors was carried out
by the entire Board and that of the Chairman and the Non-
Independent Directors were carried out by the independent
Directors. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation
results, which refiected the overall engagement of the Board
and its Committees with the Company.

Remuneration of directors and employees

The information required under section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(2) and 5(3) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 and forming part of the Directors' report for the year ended
March 31, 2025 and the prescribed particulars of employees
required under Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are attached
as ‘Annexure - IV’ and forms part of this report.

Save and except the relation between the Executive Directors
inter se (the executive directors are brothers) none of the
employees listed in the said annexure is a relative of any
Director of the Company. None of the employees (save and
except the Executive Directors) hold (by himself or along

with his/her spouse and dependent children) more than two
percent of the equity shares of the Company.

54 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Corporate social responsibility report

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has
formulated and recommended to the Board a Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy of the Company indicating the
activities to be undertaken by the Company which has been
approved by the Board. The Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at https://
www kewalkiran.com/investors.php#Policies. The Company
considers Corporate Social Responsibility spend in the areas
of Healthcare, Education, Animal welfare and such other areas
as the Board may deem fit from time to time so as to qualify

as a Corporate Social Responsibility spend pursuant to the
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company and in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and
the rules made there under.

Thereport on Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as
required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 is given as Annexure - V.

Extract of annual return

Pursuant to amendment to Section 92 of the Act read with
the Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, your Company is not required to provide extract
of Annual Return (Form MGT-9) as part of the Board's Report.
Annual Return as at March 31, 2025 is available on website of
the Company www.kewalkiran.com.

Environment and safety

Your Company is conscious of the importance of
environmentally clean and safe operations. Your Company’s

policy requires conduct of operations in such a manner,

S0 as to ensure safety of all concerned, compliances with
environmental regulations and preservation of natural
resources. The Company provides a safe and healthy
workplace focussing on creating right safety culture across the
organisation and aims to achieve ultimate goal of zero injuries
to all its employees and all stakeholders associated with the
Company’s operations.

Maintenance of cost record

Your Company is not required to maintain costrecord as
specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Management discussion and analysis report

A detailed review of Industry Structure and Developments,
Internal Control System, Risk and Concern, operations,
performance and future outlook of the Company is given
separately under the head Management Discussion and
Analysis Report as stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and forms a part of this Annual Report.

Corporate governance

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards
of Corporate Governance and adhere to the Corporate
Governance requirements set out by SEBI. Your Company

has also implemented several best Corporate Governance
practices as prevalent globally.

The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 forms a part of the Annual Report.

The requisite certificate from the Auditors, M/s. Jain & Trivedi,
Chartered Accountants and M/s N.A Shah Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants, confirming the compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 forms a part of this report.

Disclosures pertaining to the sexual harassment
of women at the workplace (prevention,
prohibition and redressal) act, 2013

The Company has in place a Policy for prevention of sexual
harassment at the workplace in line with the requirements

of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. Al
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are
covered under this policy.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints
received and disposed of during the year:

(@) Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in
the year: Nil

(b) Number of complaints disposed off during the year: Nil

(c) Number of cases pending for more than ninety days:- Nil

Details of application made or any proceeding
pending under the insolvency and bankruptcy
code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year
alongwith their status as at the end of the
financial year.

There are no application made or pending against the Company
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).

Details of difference between amount of

the valuation done at the time of one time
settlement and the valuation done while taking
loan from the banks or financial institutions
along with the reasons thereof.

There were no instances of one-time settlement with any bank
or financial institution.

Compliance of maternity benefit act, 1961

The Company has complied all the provisions of Maternity
Benefit Act, 1961
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Conservation of energy

Your Company had taken up energy conservation
activities, guided by a professional firm with 40
years' experience, M/s Econ Engineers, on several
fronts, from the Head office and other offices, to all
manufacturing units.

The major steps taken at various locations were as under:

1. Energy Conservation Teams were formed at all
large facilities and were provided with all relevant
monitoring instruments.

2. Energy Efficiency of Air Conditioning Systems and
equipment was improved:

i.  Atthe Offices since air conditioning was the
major load, your Company set up regular
monitoring of all the air conditioning equipment,
assessing the three major energy efficiency
parameters of temperature difference between
supply and return air, flow rate and the power
used, for all the air conditioning equipment,
including Ductables, Cassette, Splitand
Window Air conditioners. Whereever short
falls were detected, corrective action was
immediately taken to restore the equipment to
rated parameters.

ii. ~ The practice of monitoring of the air
conditioning equipment was adopted at all the
factories also. Regular monitoring resulted in
both improved performance and energy saving.

ii. ~ Old air conditioners were replaced by 5 Star
ones: At a number of locations, wherever the
air conditioners were very old, or working for
long periods, they were replaced by the modern
energy efficient 5 Star Split air conditioners. This
added to the energy savings.

3. Lighting Energy Conservation:

i.  lllumination levels were checked at all locations;
excess lights were removed and lights were
switched on only when required;

ii.  Energy efficientlights were adopted, including
the use of LEDs

4. Improving Power Factor:

The power factor was being controlled mostly by
Automatic Power Factor Controllers. However,

these were studied to optimize the maintenance
of PF. above 0.98; the monthly bonuses earned in

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

ANNEXURE -1

the electricity bills will offset the investments in
short periods.

Improving Efficiency of Boilers at the Factories:

i.  Regular Monitoring of the various parameters
important for maintaining high efficiency in
Boilers yielded ways to improve their efficiency.
This was diligently taken up; maintenance was
improved and done regularly resulting in useful
fuel savings.

i. Systemswereinstalled to monitor the
distribution of steam, including at pressure
reducing stations and at steam traps, to ensure
that the required steam quality and pressure
was available at the various equipment using
steam, e.g. tumble driers, washers, steam
irons, etc. This enabled high productivity of
the equipment.

Improving efficiency of driers, ashers, steam irons,
etc. at the Factories:

i.  Regular Monitoring of the various parameters
important for maintaining high efficiency in the
driers and washers, etc., ensured that the cycles
were completed not only within rated times but
also often ahead of time.

i. Inwasher's steamusage wasrestricted to those
cycles where temperature required was 90°C.

For all other cycles the recovered hot water was

used. This yielded useful savings in the use of steam,

electricity and operation period.

Regular monitoring of allimportant parameters
relating to improved maintenance were adopted
in a dedicated way, to improve plant and
equipment availability.

Leakages of steam and compressed air were
minimized and plant productivity improved.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Utilising alternate sources of energy

The Company already has a 600 KW Wind Generator in
Gujarat which provides most of the electricity at your
Company’s Vapi Factory.

Serious efforts are on to explore the feasibility of Roof
Top Solar Power Generation. The Central Government

has offered to provide the necessary impetus and funds
and the State Governments are gearing up to accept all
the surplus energy generated allowing direct feeding into
their Grid. Hence we expect this will soon be viable and we
will consider their use at our factories.

The capital investment on energy conservation equipment
is estimated as approx. % 5,00,000/-

Technology absorption

Your Company continues to use the latest technologies
for improving the productivity and quality of its products.
The Company'’s operations do not require significant
import of technology.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase
exports, development of new export markets for products
and services and export plans.

Total Foreign Exchange used and earned:
¥15,40,63,813.00
Total Foreign Exchange outgo ¥ 3,67,25,898.46

FOB Value earned
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Form No. AOC-2

ANNEXURE - Il

Particulars of Contracts/Arrangement with related parties

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

This form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of
contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of Section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length
transactions under the third proviso thereto

1.

A.

58

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not
atarm’'s length basis

To Take on Leave and License premises owned by

the promoters

(a)

Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Mr. Hemant
P.Jain, Mr. Dinesh P. Jain, Mr. Vikas P. Jain and Smt.
Shantaben P. Jain.

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain is the Chairman and Managing
Director, Mr. Hemant P. Jain is the Joint Managing
Director, Mr. Dinesh P. Jain and Mr. Vikas P. Jain

are Wholetime Directors of the Company. Smt.
Shantaben P. Jain is one of the promoters of the
Company and the mother of Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain,
Mr.Hemant P. Jain, Mr. Dinesh P. Jain and Mr. Vikas

P. Jain.

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions -
Leave and License of premises from Mr. Kewalchand P.
Jain, Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Mr. Dinesh P. Jain, Mr. Vikas P.
Jain and Smt. Shantaben P. Jain

Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - September 1, 2024 to August 31, 2029.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any - Leave and
license of premises as detailed below:-

a. Premises being Unit No. A-1, Synthofine Estate,
Opp Virwani Industrial Estate, Goregaon
(East), Mumbai - 400 063 from joint owners
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman and Managing
Director and Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Joint Managing
Director on monthly rent of ¥ 34,500/- (Rupees
Thirty Four Thousand Five Hundred only) + GST:

b.  Premises being Unit No. A-2, Synthofine Estate,
Opp Virwani Industrial Estate, Goregaon (East),
Mumbai - 400 063 from joint owners Mr. Vikas P.
Jain and Mr. Dinesh P. Jain, Wholetime Directors

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

on monthly rent of ¥ 23,000/- (Rupees Twenty
Three Thousand only) + GST;

Premises being Unit No. A-3, Synthofine Estate,
Opp Virwani Industrial Estate, Goregaon

(East), Mumbai - 400 063 from joint owners

Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Joint Managing Director and
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman and Managing
Director on monthly rent of ¥ 23,000/-(Rupees
Twenty Three Thousand only) + GST;

Premises being Unit No. A-4, Synthofine Estate,
Opp Virwani Industrial Estate, Goregaon (East),
Mumbai - 400 063 from joint owners Mr. Dinesh
P. Jain and Mr. Vikas P. Jain, Wholetime Directors
on monthly rent of % 23,000/-(Rupees Twenty
Three Thousand only) + GST;

Premises being Unit No. A-5, Synthofine Estate,
Opp Virwani Industrial Estate, Goregaon (East),
Mumbai - 400 063 from joint owners Mr. Dinesh
P. Jain and Mr. Vikas P. Jain, Wholetime Directors
on monthly rent of % 23,000/-(Rupees Twenty
Three Thousand only) + GST;

Premises being Unit No. A-8, Synthofine Estate,
Opp Virwani Industrial Estate, Goregaon

(East), Mumbai - 400 063 from joint owners

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman and Managing
Director and Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Joint Managing
Director on monthly rent of ¥ 18,000/-(Rupees
Eighteen Thousand only) + GST:

Premises being Unit No. C-3, Synthofine

Estate, Opp Virwani Industrial Estate, Goregaon
(East), Mumbai - 400 063 from joint owners

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman and Managing
Director and Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Joint Managing
Director on monthly rent of ¥ 25,300/~ (Rupees
Twenty Five Thousand Three Hundred

only) +GST;

Premises being Unit No. C-4, Synthofine Estate,
Opp Virwani Industrial Estate, Goregaon (East),
Mumbai - 400 063 from joint owners Mr. Dinesh
P. Jain and Mr. Vikas P. Jain, Wholetime Directors
on monthly rent of ¥ 25,300/- (Rupees Twenty
Five Thousand Three Hundred only);

(e)

Premises being Unit No. 3, Devare House, Dadar
(west), Mumbai - 400 028 from joint owners Smt.
Shantaben P. Jain, Promoter, and Mr. Kewalchand
P. Jain, Chairman and Managing Director and

Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Joint Managing Director on
monthly rent of ¥ 1,08,000/- (Rupees One Lakh
Eight Thousand only) + GST and an interest

free refundable security deposit of  6,48,000/-
(Rupees Six Lakhs Forty Eight Thousand only);

j. Premises being Unit No. 104, Devare House,
Dadar (west), Mumbai - 400 028 from Smt.
Shantaben P. Jain, Promoter on monthly
rent of ¥ 22,500/~ (Rupees Twenty Two
Thousand Five Hundred only) + GST and an
interest free refundable security deposit of
¥ 1,35,000/-(Rupees One Lakhs Thirty Five
Thousand only)

Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions - A few premises are
used by the Company for operating its stitching units
and a few other premises are used by the Company
to operate a retail outlet. The licensee fee for the said
premises is lower than the ongoing market rent.

Date(s) of approval by the Board - August 13, 2024

Amount paid as advance, if any - No

Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - NA

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

B. Totake onLeave andLicense premises owned by
Kewal Kiran Developers Limited (formerly known
as Kewal Kiran Design Studio Limited)

(@)

(0)

Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Kewal Kiran Developers Limited, Wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
- Leave and License of premises from Kewal Kiran
Developers Limited

Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - September 1, 2024 to August 31, 2029.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any - Leave and
license of premises as detailed below:-

a. Premises being Gala no. 4A, Premises No. 1 at
Gautam Chemical Compound, Goregaon East,
Mumbai: 400 063 at a montly fees of ¥ 1,00,000/-
(One Lac only) + GST;

b. Premises being Galano. 8, Premises No. 1 at
Gautam Chemical Compound, Goregaon East,
Mumbai: 400 063 at a montly fees of ¥ 25000/-
(Twenty Five Thousand only) + GST:

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts
or arrangements or transactions - Premises
are used by the Company for office space. The
licensee fee for the said premises is lower than
the ongoing market rent.

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board - August
13, 2024

(g) Amount paid as advance, if any - No

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed
ingeneral meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188 - NA

C. TotakeonLeave and License premises owned by
Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures Private
Limited

(a)

Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures
Private Limited, Promoter Owned Company.

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman and Managing
Director Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Joint Managing Director
Mr. Dinesh P. Jain and Mr. Vikas P. Jain, Wholetime
Directors of the Company are the Directors and
members of Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures
Private Limited.

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
- Leave and License of premises from Kewal Kiran
Realtors and Infrastructures Private Limited
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D.

60

(c) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - September 1, 2024 to August 31, 2029.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any - Leave and
license of premises at Gala no. 5, Premises No. 1
at Gautam Chemical Compound, Goregaon East,
Mumbai: 400 063 at a montly fees of ¥ 25000/~
(Twenty Five Thousand only) + GST;

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions - Premises are used
by the Company for office premises. The licensee
fee for the said premises is lower than the ongoing
market rent.

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board - August 13, 2024
(g) Amount paid as advance, if any - No

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - NA

To provide office space to subsidiaries and
promoter owned companies

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Kewal Kiran Lifestyle Limited and Kewal
Kiran Developers Limited, wholly owned subsidiaries,
White Knitwear Private Limited, Associate Company,
Kewal Kiran Finance Private Limited, Lord Gautam
Charitable Foundation and Marudhar Shwetambar
Jain Foundation, Promoter Owned Companies

(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions - To
provide office space at Kewal Kiran Estate situated at
460/7,1.B. Patel Road, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400
063 to entities mentioned in (a) above on Leave and
License basis.

(c) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - September 1, 2024 to August 31, 2029.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any - To provide
office space at Kewal Kiran Estate situated at 460/7,
|.B. Patel Road, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063 at
amontly fees of T 6000/- (Six Thousand only) + GST
each to respective entities mentioned in (a) above on
Leave and License basis;

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions - The subsidiary /
promoter company were in need to office space for
using the same as their respective registered office.

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board - August 13, 2024

(g) Amount paid as advance, if any - No

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - NA

Remuneration paid to Mr. Pankaj K. Jain,
‘President - Retail’ being relative of the
Executive Director

a.  Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Mr. Pankaj K. Jain is the son of
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company.

b.  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
- Employment with the Company in the capacity of
an employee

c.  Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - From September 1, 2021

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any - Annual CTC
0f¥50,00,000/-

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions - Mr. Jain is a qualified
Chartered Accountant and has experience in
finance and retail operation and the Company will be
benefited with his expertise.

f  Date(s) of approval by the Board - May 26, 2021

g.  Amount paid as advance, if any - No

h.  Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - NA

Remuneration paid to Mr. Hitendra H. Jain,
‘President - Addictions’ being relative of the
Executive Director

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Mr. Hitendra H. Jain is the son of
Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Joint Managing Director of
the Company

b. Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
- Employment with the Company in the capacity of
anemployee

c.  Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - from September 1, 2021

d.  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any - Annual CTC
0f¥50,00,000/-

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions - Mr. Jain holds a
Masters of Science in International Business from
the Leeds University Business School, UK and has
experience in retail operation and the Company will
be benefited with his expertise.

f. Date(s) of approval by the Board - May 26, 2021
Amount paid as advance, if any - No

Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - NA

Remuneration paid to Mr. Yash V. Jain, ‘Manager’
being relative of the Executive Director

a.  Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Mr. Yash V. Jain is the son of Mr. Vikas P.
Jain, Wholetime Director of the Company

b. Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
- Employment with the Company in the capacity of
an employee

c.  Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - from May 1, 2023

d. Salientterms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any - Annual CTC
0f¥28,00,000/-

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions - Mr. Jain holds a
degree of Bachelor in Management Studies from
the University of Mumbai and has also perceived
Executive Education Programme from London School

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

of Business and Finance and the Company will be
benefited with his expertise.

f. Date(s) of approval by the Board - April 27, 2023
Amount paid as advance, if any - No

Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - NA

Remuneration paid to Mr. Jai D. Jain, ‘Manager’
being relative of the Executive Director

a.  Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Mr. Jai D. Jain is the son of Mr. Dinesh P.
Jain, Wholetime Director of the Company

b.  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
- Employment with the Company in the capacity of
anemployee

c. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - from November 1, 2023

d.  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any- Annual CTC
0f ¥ 20,00,000/-

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions - Mr. Jain holds a
degree of Bachelor in Commerce from the University
of Mumbai and a Masters in International Business
from the Regents University, UK. The Company will be
benefited with his expertise.
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Director’s Report (Contd.)

f. Date(s) of approval by the Board - October 23, 2023
Amount paid as advance, if any - No

Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - NA

I.  Remuneration paid to Ms. Nami D. Jain,
‘Manager’ being relative of the Executive
Director

a.  Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Ms. Nami D. Jain is the daughter of
Mr. Dinesh P. Jain, Wholetime Director of the Company

b.  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
- Employment with the Company in the capacity of
anemployee

c.  Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - from May 1, 2023

d.  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any - Annual CTC
0f< 10,00,000/-

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions - Ms. Jain holds a
degree of Bachelor in Management Studies from
University of Mumbai. Ms. Jain has done Management
of Business Administration (MBA) from Welingkar
Institute and the Company will be benefited with
her expertise.

f. Date(s) of approval by the Board - April 27, 2023.
Amount paid as advance, if any - No

Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - NA

J.  Remuneration paid to Ms. Krushika D. Jain,
‘Manager’ being relative of the Executive
Director

a.  Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Ms. Krushika D. Jain is the daughter of
Mr. Dinesh P. Jain, Wholetime Director of the Company

b. Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
- Employment with the Company in the capacity of
an employee

c.  Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - from May 1, 2023

d. Salientterms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any - Annual CTC
0f¥20,00,000/-
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e. Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions - Ms. Jain is a Bachelor
in Commerce from the University of Mumbai. Ms. Jain
is also Bachelor in Law (LLB) from the University of
Mumbai. Ms. Jain has done Diploma in Management
from University of London and the Company will be
benefited with her expertise.

f. Date(s) of approval by the Board - April 27, 2023.
Amount paid as advance, if any - No

Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - NA

Professional Fees paid to Bansi S. Mehta & Co

a.  Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship: Mr. Paresh H. Clerk, Independent
Director of the Company and Ms. Drushti Desai,
Independent Director of the Company'’s subsidiary
M/s Kraus Casuals Pvt Ltd. are partners in Bansi S.
Menhta & Co.

b.  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions -
Professional Fees for advice and assistance on tax
and other corporate matters

c. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/
transactions - One time engagement

d.  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any -3 43,25,000/-

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions - Bansi S. Mehta &
Co. are renowned Chartered Accountancy firm. The
Partners of the firm are experienced professionals
and the firm is equiped to advise the Company in
intricate and complex matters.

f Date(s) of approval by the Board - May 30, 2024.
g.  Amount paid as advance, if any - No

Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - NA

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at
arm’s length basis - Nil

ANNEXURE - lli

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members,

Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited

Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, |. B. Patel Road,

Near Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East)
Mumbai - 400063

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED
[CIN:L18101MH1992PLC065136] (hereinafter called 'the
Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us areasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our

opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’'s books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,

we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

. Wehave examined the Secretarial compliance based on
the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on March 31, 2025, as shown to us
during our audit, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(‘'SCRAY) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and
Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The provisions of the Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992:

a.  The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, to the
extent applicable;

b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015, to the extent applicable.

c.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable and
the Listing Agreements entered into by the
Company with BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

We further report that the Company has complied with the
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

During the year under review the Company has complied
with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above,
to the extent applicable.

We have relied on the representation made by the
Company and its officers, and state that there are no
other laws, rules / regulations specifically applicable to the
industry under which the Company operates.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 were, in our opinion, not attracted during the
financial year under report;

a.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India ((Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018.

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

d.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
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Director’s Report (Contd.)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing
with client;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 1998.

VI. The provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management
Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
inrelation to Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings were not attracted during the
financial year under report.

VII. We further report that;

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors / Independent Directors. The changesin

the composition of the Board of Directors that took

place during the year under review were carries outin
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors for all the
scheduled Board Meetings during the year. The directors
were served notice at least seven days in advance from
the date of board meetings other than those held at
shorter notice. Further, a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Company were carried through on the basis of majority.
There were no dissenting views by any member of the
Board of Directors during the year under review.

VIIl. We have relied on the representation made by the
Company and its officers for the compliance of various
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines and
after examining the system and mechanism followed
by the Company for compliances, we report that there
are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure the compliance of
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

64 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

IX. We further report that during the audit period, the
following events occurred which had bearing on the

Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,

rules, regulations, guidelines etc.

(@) The Company has acquired 50% equity shares of
Kraus Casuals Private Limited, subsequent to which
it has become subsidiary company of Kewal Kiran
Clothing Limited in accordance with the provisions of
Section 2(87)(i) of the Company Act, 2013.

For U.P. Jain & Co.
Company Secretaries

Ummedmal P. Jain
Proprietor

FCS-3735, CP-2235

PR 1253/ 2021

UDIN: F003735G000952980
Dated: August 7, 2025
Place: Mumbai

This reportis to be read with our letter of even date which
is annexed as ‘Annexure A" and forms an integral part of
thisreport.

Annexure A

(To the Secretarial Audit Report of KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025)

To,

The Members,

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, I. B. Patel Road,

Near Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East)
Mumbai - 400063

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as
were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the practices and processes, we followed
provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

3. Wehave not verified the correctness and appropriateness
of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the company.

4. Wherever required, we obtained management
representation about the compliance of laws, rules,
regulations, norms and standards and happening
of events.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

5. Inrespect of the filing of forms /returns by the Company,
related to the period under audit, we have not observed
any material non-compliance, which can have material
bearing on the financial of the Company and hence have
not reported in our audit report.

6. Thecompliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulations, norms and standards
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

7. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For U.P. Jain & Co.
Company Secretaries

Ummedmal P. Jain
Proprietor

FCS-3735, CP-2235
PR 1253/ 2021

Dated: August 7, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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Director’s Report (Contd.)

ANNEXURE -V 8. (a) CSRamountspentorunspent for the financial year:
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT Amount Unspent (in?) ]
o
Total Amount Spent for the Financial Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR  Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VI 2
Year. (in¥ A t tion 135(6). d proviso to section 135(5). a
1. Briefoutline on Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company: car. (in) coount as per section 135(6) as per second proviso to section 135(5) o
Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Fund Amount. Date of transfer. >
Social and Environmental responsibility has always been at the forefront of Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited’s operating
philosophy and as a result the Company consistently contributes to socially responsible activities. Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) at Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited portrays the deep symbiotic relationship that the group enjoys with the 572.00.000/- NA NA NA NA NA
communities it is engaged with. As a responsible corporate citizen, we try to contribute for social and environmental causes — : - - : :
onaregular basis. We believe that to succeed, an organization must maintain highest standards of corporate behavior o
towards its employees, consumers and societies in which it operates. (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable S
o
We are of the opinion that CSR underlines the objective of bringing about a difference and adding value to our stakeholders’ (c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: &
lives. Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited’s Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is rooted in the Company’s core values of quality, ) @) 3) @) ®) ®) ) ®) %
reliability and trust guided by international standards and best practices, and driven by our aspiration for excellence in the - - <
overall performance of our business tem from the Locationof the project.  Amount spent Mode of Modeorimplementation - anrouan g
P ' Sl.  Nameofthe listofactivities Localarea mountspent - Viode o ) implementing agency.
. ) No. Project inschedule VIl  (Yes/ No) forthe project implementation ; i
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under the Company had approved the Corporate ' tothe Act. " state. District. (in3). Direct (Yes/No). Name. gfr:;?mrat'on
Social Responsibility policy, as recommended by Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, in the Board Meeting held on . - . . -
1. NA Promoting No Rajasthan  Sadri 2,72,00,000/- No Smt. Jatnobai CSR00005369
January 31, 2015. H "
ealth care Karamchandji ke
i+ i . including Ratanparia @
2. Composition of CSR Committee: Preveritive Chouhan 3
. o
Nomber of Number of Health care Charitable Trust 2
sr. Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship meetin_gs of CSR CSRT:%?:L:?;:: . o . %
No %om_mlt:ﬁe held itendedduring (d) Amount spentin Administrative Overheads- NIL 2
uring the year th [
. . cyesr (e) Amount spent onImpact Assessment, if applicable- N.A s
1. Mr. Paresh H. Clerk Non Executive -Independent Director 1 1
2 Mr Kewalchand P Jain Director 1 1 (f) Totalamount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) ¥2,72,00,000/-
3. Mr.HemantP Jain Director 1 1 (g) Excess amount for set off, if any:
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and project approved by the board are disclosed on ﬁ:) Particulars Amount (in¥) g
i - . i i H O, O, (0]
the website of the Company: https://www kewalkiran.com/investors.php#Weblink2200f22 (i)  Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 2,70,82,857/- 3
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance ofsub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (i)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2,72,00,000/- §
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable (iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-()] NIL
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social (iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any NIL
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: NIL (v)  Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [ (iii)- (iv) ] NIL
6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) % 1,35,41,42,867/-
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL 0
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the g
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): Not Applicable g
Company as per section 135(5) ¥2,70,82,857/- &
o . 10. Incase of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR P
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or spent in the financial year - Not Applicable 3
programmes or activities of the previous financial years. NIL 11.  Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5) -
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, Not Applicable
if any NIL Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain Mr. Paresh H. Clerk
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (Chairman and Managing Director) (Chairman CSR Committee)
DIN: 00028730 DIN: 10419124

(7a+7b- 7c). %2,70,82,857/-
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Company’s philosophy on code of corporate
governance

Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited (KKCL) is committed to good
Corporate Governance in order to enhance stakeholders’
value. Your Company believes that Corporate Governance
isnotanend in itself but a catalystin the process towards
maximization of stakeholder value. Your Company’s
philosophy on Corporate Governance enshrines the

goal of achieving the highest levels of transparency,
accountability and equity in all spheres of its operations
and inall its dealings with its stakeholders. Itis your
Company’s belief that good ethics make good business
sense and our business practices are in keeping with the
spirit of maintaining the highest level of ethical standards.

The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 provide for stricter
disclosure and protection of investor rights by listed
entities. The regulations are aligned with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and are aimed to encourage
companies to adapt best practices on Corporate
Governance. Our Corporate Governance frame work

has helped us be aligned with the Companies Act,

2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. We believe that an
active, well informed and independent Board is necessary
to ensure the highest standard of Corporate Governance.
The Board of Directors of your Company is at the core

of our Corporate Governance practices. The Board thus
overseas your Company’s management functions and
protects the long term interest of our stakeholders.

In so far as compliance of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is concerned,
your Company has complied in all material respects with
the requirements of Corporate Governance specified in
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Board of directors
Composition of the Board:

The Board of Directors along with its Committees provides
leadership and guidance to your Company’s management
as also direct, supervise and control the performance of
the Company.

The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum
combination of Executive and Non Executive Directors.

As at March 31, 2025 the Board of Directors comprise of

8 Directors of which 4 are Independent Non-executive
Directors including 1 Woman Director. The Executive
Directors of your Company have more than three decades
of hands on experience in manufacturing and retailing

of branded apparels. The Non Executive Independent
Directors are eminent professionals with wide range of
knowledge and experience in various spheres of business
and industry, finance and law.

None of the Director on the Company’s Board is a Member
of more than ten (10) Committees and Chairman of

more than five (5) Committees (Committees being Audit
Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee)
across all the public limited companies in which he/she is a
Director. All the Director have made necessary disclosures
regarding Committee position held by them in other
Companies and do not hold the office of Director in more
than twenty (20) companies, including ten (10) public
companies. None of the Non-Executive Independent
Director is acting as an Independent Director in more

than seven (7) listed entities. None of the Non-Executive
Independent Director who is serving as a Whole time
Director in alisted entity is acting as an Independent
Director in more than three (3) listed entities.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

The composition of the Board and other relevant details relating to Directors as on March 31, 2025 are given below:

No. of

Name of the Director Designation Category of Directorship D?:é:t?:i:?;: Cha(i:r?nn;r:;tr-\ti?s
Membership

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain (DIN - 00029730) Chairman & Managing Director  Promoter & Executive 7 1
Mr. Hemant P. Jain (DIN - 00029822) Joint Managing Director Promoter & Executive 7 1
Mr. Dinesh P. Jain (DIN - 00327277) Whole-time Director Promoter & Executive 6 0
Mr. Vikas P. Jain (DIN - 00029901) Whole-time Director Promoter & Executive 5 0
Mr. Paresh H. Clerk (DIN - 10419124) Director Independent- Non Executive 0 1
Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth (DIN - 03290577) Director Independent- Non Executive 0 2
Ms. Ushma Sheth Sule (DIN - 07460369) Director Independent Non Executive 4 2
*Mr. Vivek K. Shiralkar (DIN - 00340316) Director Independent- Non Executive 2 2

Note:

*Mr. Vivek K. Shiralkar was appointed as Non-executive independent Director of the Company with effect from August 13, 2024.

Details of other Directorships (excluding Directorship in
Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited)/Committee memberships
(including Committee; Chairmanship/membership in
Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited) are given by way of a
separate Annexure.

The Committee Chairmanship/membership of the
Directors is restricted to the Chairmanship/membership
of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee and excludes Chairmanship/ Membership in
Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

LU S
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Number of Board Meetings held and attended by
Directors:

()  The meetings of the Board of Directors are scheduled
wellin advance. The Board Members are presented
in advance with the detailed agenda in respect of all
Board meetings. During the year under review five (5)
meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the
following dates: -

May 30, 2024, August 13, 2024, September 29,
2024, October 25, 2024 and February 9, 2025. The
Maximum time gap between any two consecutive
meetings did not exceed 120 days.

(i) The attendance record of the Directors at the Board
Meetings during the year ended on March 31, 2025
and during the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) is

asunder:—-
Directors " eotings  Attendanceat
Attended

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain 4of5 Present
Mr.Hemant P. Jain 50f5 Present
Mr.Dinesh P. Jain 50f5 Present
Mr. Vikas P. Jain 50f5 Present
Mr. Paresh H. Clerk 50f5 Present
Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth 50f5 Present
Ms. Ushma Sheth Sule 50f5 Present
Mr. Vivek K. Shiralkar 4Lofd Present
Ms. DrushtiR. Desai* 20f2 NA

*Ms. Drushti R. Desai ceased to be the Director of the Company
from August 27, 2024 upon completion of her second term of 5
(five) consecutive years.

Disclosure of relationship between the
Directors inter-se:-

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Mr. Dinesh P. Jain
and Mr. Vikas P. Jain are brothers.
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Details of shares held by Directors in the
Company as on March 31, 2025:

Name of the Directors sr,\::r:gﬁ:a?cfl
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain* 35,33,055
Mr. Hemant P. Jain* 35,39,575
Mr. Dinesh P. Jain* 37,29,155
Mr. Vikas P. Jain* 36,89,105
Mr. Paresh H. Clerk Nil
Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth Nil
Ms. Ushma Sheth Sule Nil
Mr. Vivek K. Shiralkar Nil

3,07,65,000 shares are held by Shantaben P. Jain j/w
Kewalchand P. Jain j/w Hemant P. Jain as trustees of the
PK. Jain Family Holding Trust.

*Note:

The said shares held by Mr. K. P. Jain includes 80,000 equity shares
held in his capacity as Karta of Kewalchand P. Jain HU.F and 3,96,805
shares held jointly with Mrs. Veena K. Jain.

The said shares held by Mr. H.P. Jain includes 80,000 equity shares
held in his capacity as Karta of Hemant P. Jain H.U.F and 4,03,325
shares held jointly with Mrs. Lata H. Jain.

The said shares held by Mr. D.P. Jain includes 80,000 equity shares
held in his capacity as Karta of Dinesh P. Jain HU.F and 5,12,905
shares held jointly with Mrs. Sangeeta D. Jain.

The said shares held by Mr. V.P. Jain includes 80,000 equity shares
held in his capacity as Karta of Vikas P. Jain HU.F and 4,72,855 shares
held jointly with Mrs. Kesar V. Jain.

Details of names of the listed entities where
the Director is a Director and the category of
Directorship:

Name of listed
Company

sr. Name of the Director where Director (_:ategorygf
No. Directorship
otherthan
KKCL
1 Mr.Kewalchand P Jain NIL NA
2 Mr.HemantP. Jain NIL NA
3 Mr.DineshP Jain NIL NA
4 Mr. Vikas P Jain NIL NA
5  Mr PareshH. Clerk NIL NA
& Mr JayrajS. Sheth NIL NA
7  Ms.UshmaShethSule  Bazaar Style Non-Executive
Retail Limited Non Independent
Director
8  Mr. Vivek K. Shiralkar IPCA Independent
Laboratories Director

Limited

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Familiarisation Programme for Independent
Directors:

At the time of appointing an Independent Director, a formal
letter of appointment is given to him/her, which interalia
explains the role, function, duties and responsibilities
expected of him/her as an Independent Director of the
Company. Independent Directors are also explained

in detail the Compliance required from him/her under

the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other
relevant regulations. The Chairman and Managing Director
also has one to one discussion with the newly appointed
Independent Director to familiarize him/her with the
Company’s operations. Further the Company has putin
place a policy to familiarize the Independent Directors
about the Company, its products, business and on-going
events relating to the Company.

During the financial year 2024-25 the Independent
Directors have attended familiarization programme
conducted by the Company and the web-link

for the details of familiarization programme is
https://www.kewalkiran.com/admin/uploads/
cateqgoryfiles/393Detailsoffamiliarization2024-25.pdf

Core skills/expertise/competencies identified
by the Board of Directors for it to function
effectively and available with the Board:

The Board of Directors (Board’) have not established
specific minimum age, education, years of business
experience or specific types of skills for appointing any
individual as a Board member, but, in general, expects an
individual to have ample experience and a proven record
of professional success, leadership and the highest
level of personal and professional ethics, integrity and
values and loyalty to the interest of the Company and

its stakeholders.

The Board would generally ensure that an individual should
have ability to exercise objectivity and independence

in making informed business decisions, willingness and
commitment to devote the required time to fulfil his/her
duties, ability to communicate effectively and collaborate
with other Board members to contribute effectively to the
diversity of perspectives including a willingness to listen
and respect the views of others.

The Board would also assess individual's skills, knowledge
and expertise relevant to the Company’s business,

with extensive experience at a senior leadership level

in a comparable Company or organization, including,

but not limited to relevant experience in international
operations, public service, finance, accounting, strategic
planning, technology and marketing.The Company
believes that an effective and diverse Board will leverage
differences in thought, perspective, knowledge,

skill, regional and industry experience, cultural and
geographical background, age, ethnicity, race and

gender, which will ensure that the Company retains its
competitive advantage.

The ultimate objective is to have a Board that offers a broad range of perspectives that are directly relevant to the business

and organizational needs.

Name of the Director Expertise in specific functional area

Kewalchand P. Jain

Apparel and Textile Industry domain expert, Finance, Banking and Corporate Management

Hemant P Jain

Apparel and Textile Industry domain expert, Business Strategy, Marketing, Corporate Management, Retail Business

Dinesh P Jain Human Resources (HR) and Industrial Relations (IR), Resource Management, Overall operation and development of
production facilities
Vikas P. Jain Marketing, Retail Business, Corporate Management, Research for new technologies in manufacturing

Paresh H. Clerk
Law Advisory.

Statutory, Internal and Tax Audit, Due Diligence for Local and International Acquisitions and Accounting and Company

Jayraj S. Sheth

Advising PSFs, Start-ups and Medium Sized Enterprises in the core areas of framing strategy, preparing business

plans, managing human capital, designing organisation structure, systems and processes and monitoring progress

Ushma Sheth Sule

Investment Professional having experience in long-term investments in public markets and private equity in India

Vivek K. Shiralkar
Arbitration and Mediation

Advocate and Solicitor having expertise in Civiland Commercial litigation, Conveyancing, Corporate law, Real Estate,

All Independent Directors have given declarations that
they meet the criteria of independence as laid down
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Inthe
opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors, fulfil
the conditions of independence specified in Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent
of the management. A formal letter of appointment to
Independent Directors as provided in Companies Act,
2013 has beenissued and disclosed on the website of
the Company.

Governance Codes:
e CodeofConduct

In line with the Company’s objective of following the
best Corporate Governance Standards the Board
of Directors have laid down a Code of Conduct

for all Board Members and Senior Management

of the Company. The Code is effective from
January 14, 2006.

The Company has also adopted code for
Independent Directors in the Board meeting held
onMay 10, 2014 pursuant to Section 149(8) of the
Companies Act, 2013 which makes it mandatory for
independent Directors to abide by the provisions of
the code.

All the Board members and Senior Management of
the Company as on March 31, 2025 have affirmed
compliance with their respective Codes of Conduct
in accordance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

e Conflict of Interest

Each Director informs the Company on an annual
basis about the Board and the Committee positions
he/she occupies in other companies and notifies
changes if any during the year. The Board Members
while discharging their duties, avoid conflict of
interest in the decision making process. The
members of the Board neither participate in any
discussions nor vote in any transactions in which they
have any concern or interest.

¢ Insider Trading Code

In accordance with Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 the Company had formulated and approved the
(i) Insider Trading Code to regulate dealings in the
securities of the Company by designated persons

in compliance with the regulations, (i) policy for fair
disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information
and (jii) Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
Leak Enquiry Policy. Mr. Abhijit Warange, President

- Legaland Company Secretary is the Compliance
Officer for the purpose of Insider Trading Code while
Mr. Bharat Adnani, Chief Financial Officer is the Chief
Investor Relations Officer for the purpose of the fair
disclosure policy.

Audit committee
Constitution of Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is
entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the internal
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control and financial reporting process. The composition,
quorum, powers, role and scope of the Committee are

in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All the
members of the Audit Committee are financially literate
and bring in expertise in the field of Finance, Taxation,
Economics and Risk Management.

The Audit Committee comprises the following members:

Mr. Paresh H. Clerk, Chairman and Member

Non Executive-Independent Director

Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth, Member
Non Executive-Independent Director
Ms. Ushma Sheth Sule, Member

Non Executive-Independent Director*

Note:

*Ms. Ushma Sheth Sule was appointed as Member of the Audit
Committee w.e.f August 13, 2024.

Mr. Abhijit B. Warange, Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
includes:

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor
and provide an effective supervision of the Management’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee,
inter-alia, performs the functions of discussing and
reviewing quarterly and audited financial results,
recommendation of appointment of statutory auditors
and their remuneration, recommendation of appointment
and remuneration of internal auditors, review of Internal
Audit Reports, approval and review of related party
transactions. For the smooth and effective functioning,
the Audit Committee has also powers to investigate any
activity within its terms of reference, to seek information
from employees and obtain outside legal/ professional
advise. In addition to the above, the other role and terms
of reference of the Audit Committee cover the matters as
specified in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Regulation 18(3) of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Meetings of the Audit Committee:

During the year ended March 31, 2025, five (5) meetings
of the Audit Committee were held on May 11, 2024,

May 30, 2024, August 13, 2024, October 25, 2024 and
February 9, 2025.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

The attendance of each Audit Committee member is given
hereunder: -

Name of the Audit Committee Member No.ofmeetings

attended
Mr Paresh H. Clerk 50f5
Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth 50f5
Ms. Ushma Sheth Sule 20f2
Ms. Drushti R. Desai* 30f3

*Ms. Drushti R. Desai ceased to be the member of the Audit
Committee from August 13, 2024.

Attendees:

At the invitation of the Committee, representatives from
various divisions of the Company, internal auditors,
statutory auditors and the Chief Financial Officer also
attend the Audit Committee Meeting to respond to queries
raised at the Committee Meetings.

Nomination and remuneration committee
Composition of Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s
constitution and terms of reference are in compliance
with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 and Part D (Point A) of the
Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises
of the following members:

Ms. Ushma Sheth Sule,
Non Executive-Independent Director

Chairman and Member

Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth, Member
Non Executive-Independent Director
*Mr. Vivek K. Shiralkar, Member

Non Executive-Independent Director

Note:

*Mr. Vivek K. Shiralkar was appointed as Member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee w.e.f August 13, 2024

Mr. Abhijit B. Warange, Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary of the Committee.

The terms of reference of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee includes:

« Tolay down criteria and terms and conditions with
regard to identifying persons who are qualified to
become Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) and
persons who may be appointed in Senior Management
and Key Managerial positions and to determine
their remuneration.

- Todetermine remuneration based on the Company’s
size and financial position and trends and practices
on remuneration prevailing in peer companies and in
the industry.

« Toensure that the remuneration to Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and
its goals.

- Tocarry out evaluation of the performance of
Directors, as well as Key Managerial and Senior
Management Personnel.

- To provide them reward linked directly to their effort,
performance, dedication and achievement relating to
the Company’s operations.

- Toretain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure
long term sustainability of talented managerial persons
and create competitive advantage.

- Todevice policy on diversity of Board of Directors.

- Todetermine whether to extend or continue the
term of appointment of the independent Director on
the basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent Director.

- Torecommend to the Board all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to Senior Management.

Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee:

During the year ended March 31, 2025 one (1) meeting of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on
August 13, 2024.

The attendance of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee meeting is given hereunder:-

Name of the Nomination and Remuneration No. of meetings

Committee Member attended
Ms. Ushma Sheth Sule 10f1
Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth 1of1
Mr. Vivek K. Shiralkar 0of0
Ms. DrushtiR. Desai* 10f1

*Ms. Drushti R. Desai ceased to be the member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from August 13, 2024.

Performance Evaluation:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual
performance evaluation of individual Directors as well as
the evaluation of the working of the Board and Committees
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inaccordance with the performance evaluation policy. A
structured questionnaire was prepared after circulating
the draft forms, covering various aspects of the Board’s
functioning such as composition of the Board and
Committees, experience and competencies, performance
of specific duties and obligations, governance issues, etc.

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried
out by the entire Board and that of the Chairman and
the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the
Independent Directors. The Directors were satisfied
with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall
engagement of the Board and its Committees with

the Company.

Remuneration of directors
Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors:

The Board of Directors of the Company presently
comprises of four Executive Directors namely

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman and Managing Director,
Mr.Hemant P. Jain, Joint Managing Director, Mr. Dinesh P.
Jain and Mr. Vikas P. Jain, Whole-time Directors.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is governed
by the Articles of Association of the Company, the
resolution of the Board of Directors and the members. The
details of the remuneration paid to the Executive Directors
is detailed hereafter.

Revisions, if any in the remuneration of the Executive
Directors are deliberated by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board. Based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Board decides on the revision subject to
the shareholders approval.

Remuneration Policy for Non -Executive
Directors:

Non- Executive Directors of a Company’s Board of
Directors can add substantial value to the Company
through their contribution to the Management of the
Company. In addition, they can safeguard the interest

of the investors at large by playing an appropriate

control role. Non - Executive Directors bring in their long
experience and expertise and add substantial value to the
deliberations of the Board and its Committee.

All pecuniary relationship or transactions of

the non-executive Directors vis-a-vis the listed
entity:

During the year under review payments to M/s. Bansi
S.Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants for advice and
assistance on tax and other corporate matters where

Mr. Paresh H. Clerk and Ms. Drushti R. Desai (Non Executive
independent Director upto 271" August 2024) are partners
amounted to% 43,25,000/-.
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Criteria of making payment to Non-Executive
Directors:

relationship or transaction with the Company. The sitting
fees paid to the Non Executive Directors is within the

Name and Designation of the Compliance
Officer:

Meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee:

5
Save and except as stated herein apart from receiving statutory limits prescribed under the Compames Act, 2013 Mr. Abhijit B. Warange - President - Legal and Company During the year ended March 31, 2025, one (1) meeting s
sitting fees for attending the Board /Committee meetings ahd the rules made thereunder for payment of sitting fees Secretary, who is the Compliance Officer, can be of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was 5
the Non Executive Directors have no other pecuniary without the approval of the Central Government. contacted at, Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, | B. Patel Road, held on May 30, 2024. The attendance of Corporate Social S
. . . Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063 Responsibility Committee meeting is given hereunder:
Service contracts, notice period and severance fee: gaon (Fast) P Y gisg
The appointment of the executive Directors is governed by the Articles of Association of the Company, the resolution of the Tel: 022-26814400, Fax: 02226814410 ’F‘:ame of FQ}T_:/'eénber QtftCorporate Social No. of méetiggj
. . . . esponsipility Commitiee attende
Board of Directors and the members. E-mail: grievanceredressal@kewalkiran.com M Paresh H. Clerk Tor1
There is no provision for severance fees. . . . . i 0
VIl. Corporate social responsibility committee Mr. Kewalchand P> Jain Tof S
Details of sitting fees, remuneration etc. paid to Directors for the year ended March 31, 2025. . . Mr. Hemant P Jain Tof1 2
Composition of Committee: S
[0]
Retiral benefits/ The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is The policy on Corporate Social Responsibility as approved Q
Cor?\?:i::,?osr: constituted pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies by the Board of Directors has been uploaded on the 2
Name of the Directors Sitting Fees Salary  ContributiontoPF payable/ Total Act, 2013. website of the Company. The web-link to the CSR Policy is 2
and Perquisites performance https://kewalkiran.com
linked !nctlers\';iveli Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of ' ]
pension/ Stoc . )
options granted the following members: VIIl. Risk management committee
Mr. Kewalchand P Jain Nfl ¥11,792,432 ¥7,07,568 Nfl ¥1,25,00,000 Mr. Paresh H. Clerk, Chairman and Member Composition of Committee: o
Mr.Hemant P Jain Nil ¥11,792,432 %7,07,568 Nil ¥1,25,00,000 Non Executive-Independent Director Pursuant to Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and ?
: . . : py
Mr D4me8h P ng N?l 11,792,452 ¥7,07,568 N?l ¥1:25,00,000 Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Member Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Compan g
Mr. Vikas P Jain Nil 211,792,432 37.07,568 Nil  21,25,00,000 Chairman & Managing Director ; o tqd i 9 I pany 3
Mr. Paresh H. Clerk 710,20,000 Nil Nil Nil 710,20,000 Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Member as constituted Risk Management Lormmittee. %
Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth 210,40,000 Nil Nil Nil 210,40,000 Joint Managing Director Risk Management Committee comprises of the 3
Ms. Ushma Sheth Sule ¥7,00,000 Nil Nil Nil 77,00,000 Note: following members: =
Mr.Vivek K Shiralkar %3,60,000 Nil Nil Nil %3.60,000 ote: . '
Ms. Drushti R. Desai % 4,80,000 Nil Nil Nil % 4,80,000 Mr. Abhijit B. Warange, Company Secretary acts as the grr{aﬁrenv;/:rlmcgi?gnzJiarln‘Director Chairman
Secretary of the Committee. - 9ng
VI. Stakeholders relationship committee of shares, non receipt of balance sheet, non receipt of . Mr. Hemant P> Jain, Member
o . dividends. etc The terms of reference of Corporate Social Joint Managing Director o
Composition of Committee: i Responsibility Committee broadly comprises: Mr. Vikas P. Jain, Member e
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee’s constitution Meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee:- 1. Toreview the Corporate Social Responsibility policy Whole Time Director %
and terms of reference are in compliance with the . . i i indi . . , 3
P During the year ended March 31, 2025 one (1) meeting and to make it more comprehensive so as to indicate Mr. Paresh H. Clerk Member 3
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provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 20 and Part D (Point B) of the Schedule Il of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of the
following members:

Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth, Chairman and Member

Non Executive- Independent Director

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Member
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Member
Joint Managing Director

Note:
Mr. Abhijit B. Warange, Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary of the Committee.

The terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship
Committee are to specifically look into the redressal
of shareholders and investors complaints like transfer

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held
onMarch 28, 2025. The attendance of Stakeholders
Relationship Committee meeting is given hereunder:

Name of the Stakeholders Relationship No. of meetings

Committee Member attended
Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth 10f1
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain 10f1
Mr.Hemant P. Jain 10of1

Status report of the complaints received and resolved to
the satisfaction of the shareholders/investors during the
year ended March 31, 2025.

No. of complaints received -0
No. of complaints resolved -0

No. of compliants not resolved
to the satisfaction of shareholders

[
o

No. of complaints pending -0

the activities to be undertaken by the Company as
specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013

2. Toprovide guidance on various Corporate Social
Responsibility activities to be undertaken by the
Company and to monitor process

3. Torecommend the amount of expenditure to be
incurred on the activities as specified in Schedule VII
of the Companies Act, 2013

4. Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of
the Company from time to time.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Non Executive-Independent Director

Mr. Bharat A. Adnani,
Chief Financial Officer

Member and secretary

Mr. Nimesh Anandpara, Member
Deputy Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Abhijit Warange, Member

President - Legal and Company Secretary

Risk Management Policy:

The Board has formulated and implemented the Risk
Management policy of the Company, as recommended by
Risk Management Committee.
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The terms of reference of the Risk Management
Committee comprises:

+ Framing of Risk Management Plan and Policy;

+ Overseeing implementation of Risk Management Plan
and Policy;

+ Monitoring of Risk Management Plan and Policy;
- Validating the process of risk management;
+ Validating the procedure for risk minimisation;

+ Periodically reviewing and evaluating the Risk
Management Policy and practices with respect to risk
assessment and risk management processes,;

- Continually obtaining reasonable assurance from
management that all known and emerging risks have
beenidentified and mitigated or managed;

- Toseek information from employee, obtain outside legal
or other professional advice and secure attendance of
outsiders with relavent expertise.

- Performing such other functions as may be necessary
or appropriate.

Meetings of the Risk Management Committee:

During the year ended March 31, 2025, two (2) meetings
of the Risk Management Committee were held on April
12, 2024 and November 9, 2024. The attendance of Risk
Management Committee meeting is given hereunder:

Name of the Member of Risk Management No. of meetings

Committee attended
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain 20f2
Mr.Hemant P. Jain 20f2
Mr. Vikas P. Jain 20f2
Mr. Abhijit B. Warange 20f2
Mr.Bharat A. Adnani 20f2
Mr. Nimesh Anandpara 20f2
Mr Paresh H. Clerk 20f2

Investment committee

The Investment Committee is responsible for investing idle
funds of the Company not immediately required for the
business of the Company and to monitor the investments
made for the benefit of the Company.

Composition of Committee:

The Investment Committee comprises of the
following members:

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Member
Joint Managing Director

Mr. Dinesh P. Jain, Member
Whole-time Director

Mr. Vikas P. Jain, Member

Whole-time Director

Meetings of the Investment Committee:

During the year ended March 31, 2025, four (4) meetings
of the Investment Committee were held on October 17,
2024, December 4, 2024, January 7, 2025 and February 24,
2025,. The attendance of Investment Committee meeting
is given hereunder:

Name of the Investment Committee Member No.of meetings

attended
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain 4of 4
Mr.Hemant P. Jain 4 of 4
Mr. Dinesh P. Jain 4Lof 4
Mr. Vikas P. Jain 4of 4

Borrowing committee

The Committee is responsible for considering the need

of borrowing and utilization of the borrowed fund to

meet various requirements of the Company. It is also
responsible to determine and balance the debt and equity
ratio for the benefit of the Company.

Composition of Committee:

The Borrowing Committee comprises of the
following members:

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Hemant P. Jain, Member
Joint Managing Director

Mr. Dinesh P. Jain, Member
Whole-time Director

Mr. Vikas P. Jain, Member

Whole-time Director

Meetings of the Borrowing Committee:

During the year ended March 31, 2025, two (2) meetings of
the Borrowing Committee were held on May 17, 2024 and
June 20, 2024. The attendance of Borrowing Committee
meeting is given hereunder:

Name of the Borrowing Committee Member No. of meetings

attended
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain 20f2
Mr.Hemant P. Jain 1of2
Mr. Dinesh P. Jain 20f2
Mr. Vikas P. Jain 20f2

Xl. Independent directors meeting

XIl.

During the year under review, the Independent Directors
met on March 28, 2025 interalia, to discuss:

- Evaluation of performance of Non-
Independent Directors;

- Evaluation of performance of the Chairman of
the Company;

Senior Management

- Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow
of information between the Management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and
reasonably performits duties.

The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results,
which reflected the overall engagement of the Board and
its Committees with the Company.

The Senior Management of the Company comprises of its core management team, excluding the Board of Directors and
includes the members of the management one level below the executive Board of Directors, the functional heads, the
Company Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The details of change in Senior Management Personnel

of the Company during FY 2024-25 are as follows:

Name of the Senior Management Personnel Designation

Date of change Reason for change

Mr. Rakesh Singhvi

General Manager - Lawman & Integriti

May 18, 2024 Appointment

Mr. Ankur Srivastava

Brand Head - Lawman

November 11, 2024 Appointment

Note:- Ms. Sangeeta Singh, Chief Human Resource Officer has resigned from the services from April 3, 2025

Xlll. General body meetings
Location, time and date where the three immediately preceding Annual General Meetings of the Company were held are

given below:
Financial Year Day & Date Time Venue
2021-22 Tuesday, September 6, 2022  12.00 noon Held through Video Conferencing/ other audio-visual means Deemed Venue i.e

Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, |. B. Patel Road, Goregaon East, Mumbai - 400 063

2022-23 Thursday, September 28, 2023 12.00 noon Held through Video Conferencing/ other audio-visual means Deemed Venue i.e
Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, |. B. Patel Road, Goregaon East, Mumbai - 400 063

2023-24 Friday, September 27, 2024

12.00noon Held through Video Conferencing/ other audio-visual means Deemed Venue i.e

Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, I. B. Patel Road, Goregaon East, Mumbai - 400 063

Special Resolutions passed in previous three
Annual General Meetings:

315t Annual General Meeting: At this meeting there
were no Special Resolutions passed by the members of
the Company.

329 Annual General Meeting: At this meeting there
were no Special Resolutions passed by the members of
the Company

33"d Annual General Meeting: At this meeting four (4)
Special Resolutions were passed by the members of the

Company. These special resolutions were with regard to:

- Alteration of the object clause of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company.

- Appointment of Mr. Vivek Keshav Shiralkar as an
Independent Director of the Company.

- Appointment of Mr. Kewalchand Pukhraj Jain as
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company and
remuneration payable to him during such tenure.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

- Giveloans, inter corporate deposits, give guarantees
in connection with loans made by any person or body
corporate and acquire by way of subscription, purchase
or otherwise the securities of any other body corporate
in excess of the limits prescribed in Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Special Resolutions whether passed by Postal
Ballot:-

No special resolution was passed by postal ballot in the
financial year 24-25 and no special resolution is proposed
to be conducted through postal ballot in the ensuing
annual general meeting.

XIV. Means of Communication

The Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Financial Results

of the Company are published in the newspaper in India
which include The Free Press Journal and Navshakti.

The financial results and other information are displayed
on the Company'’s website viz. www.kewalkiran.com.

The Company also displays official news releases onits
website for the information of its shareholders/investors.
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Even presentations made to institutional investors have
been hosted on the website of the Company.

The Company does not have the system of intimating
shareholders individually of its quarterly results.
However, investors/shareholders desirous of getting the
quarterly audited results are given copies thereof after
consideration of results by the Board and publication

in newspapers.

The Management discussion and Analysis Report forms a
part of the Annual Report.

XV. General Shareholders’ Information

80

a)

b)
c)

d)

h)

Annual General Meeting:

Day, Date and Time : Tuesday, September 23, 2025 at
12 noon

Mode: Video Conference and other audio visual mode
Financial Year: April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025
Dividend payment date: NA

Dates of Book Closure: Wednesday, September
17, 2025 to Tuesday, September 23, 2025

Listing on Stock Exchanges:

The Equity Shares of the Company got listed on April
13, 2006 and continue to be listed at the following
Stock Exchanges: -

The BSE Limited, Mumbai, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy
Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai: 400 001.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Exchange
Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai:
400 051.

Note:

e)

f)

)]

Listing fees as applicable has been paid to both the
stock exchanges i.e BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Suspension of securities from trading -
Not Applicable

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents:

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as
Link Intime India Private Limited)

C-101, 247 Park,

L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West),

Mumbai-400083

Tel: +91 22 49186000

Fax: +91 22 49186060

Email: rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com

Website: https://in.mpms.mufg.com

Share Transfer System:

Share transfers are processed and share certificates
duly endorsed are delivered within a period of fifteen
days from the date of receipt, subject to documents
being valid and complete in all respects. The Board
has delegated the authority for approving transfer,
transmission, etc. of the Company’s securities to

the Managing Director and/or Company Secretary.
A'summary of transfer/transmission of securities of
the Company so approved by the Managing Director/
Company Secretary is placed at every Board meeting
/ Share Transfer Committee meeting. The Company
obtains from a Company Secretary in Practice yearly
certificate of compliance with the share transfer
formalities as required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and files a copy of the said
certificates with stock exchange(s).

Distribution Pattern of shareholding as on March 31, 2025:

No of equity shares sha":::‘::zg:sf % of shareholders Number of Sha:jj % of shareholding
1-500 33836 92.85 3140781 5.10
501-1000 1353 3.71 973215 1.58
1001-2000 627 1.72 918649 1.49
2001-3000 202 0.55 508905 0.83
3001-4000 87 0.24 305453 0.50
4001-5000 71 0.19 320572 0.52
5001-10000 122 0.34 884936 1.43
10001 &above 145 0.40 54572674 88.55
Total 36443 100 61625185 100

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

j)

k)

Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2025

Category No. of Shares % to total
Indian Promoters 45770365 74.27
Mutual Funds 4149411 6.73
Foreign Portfolio Investor (Corporate) 1474310 2.39
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 2655 0.00
NRI 410472 0.67
Bodies Corporate 847829 1.38
Limited Liability Partnership 14202 0.02
Clearing Members 740 0.00
Key Managerial Personnel 4626 0.01
HUFs 354723 0.58
Public 8595852 13.95
Total 61625185 100.00

Dematerialisation of Equity Shares:

The shares of the Company are compulsorily
traded in dematerialised form and are available

for trading under both the Depository Systems -
NSDL (National Securities Depository Limited) and
CDSL (Central Depository Services (India) Limited).
99.99% of total equity shares of the Company are
held in dematerialised form with NSDL & CDSL as on
March 31, 2025.

Liquidity:-
Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited'’s shares are actively

traded on BSE Limited and The National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Outstanding GDRS/ADRS/Warrants or any
Convertible Instruments conversion date
and likely impact on equity:

The Company has not issued any GDRS/ADRS/
Warrants or any Convertible Instruments.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange
riskand hedging activities:

Your Company is not having much exposure to foreign
exchange and there is a natural hedging partly
available in terms of exports made by the Company.

In respect of price risk of raw material used for
manufacturing purposes the same is taken care of as
per industry requirements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

m)

Plant Locations:

Vapi

Plot No. 787/1/2A/3, 40, shed
lInd Phase, G.ILD.C

Vapi: 396 195

Gujarat

Daman

697/3/5/5A/8/9/12/13, Near Maharani Estate,
Somnath Road, Dhabel

Daman: 396 210

Mumbai

Synthofine Estate,

Opp Virwani Industrial Estate
Goregaon (East), Mumbai: 400 063

71-73, Kasturchand Mill Estate
Bhawani Shankar Road,

Dadar (West),

Mumbai; 400 028

Address for Investor Correspondence:
Shareholding related queries

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as
Link Intime India Private Limited)

C-101, 247 Park,

L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West),

Mumbai-400083

Tel: +91 22 49186000

Fax: +91 22 49186060

Email: int.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com
Website: https://in.mpms.mufg.com
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Inorder to empower the shareholders to effortlessly
access various services, the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent has introduced ‘SWAYAM’ a secure,
user-friendly web-based application.

Website: https://swayam.linkintime.co.in

General Correspondence

Kewal Kiran Estate,

46017, 1.B. Patel Raod,

Adjacent to Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East), Mumbai: 400 063
Tel: +91 22 26814400

Fax: +91 22 26814410

Email: info@kewalkiran.com

Website: www.kewalkiran.com

An exclusive email address, grievanceredressal@
kewalkiran.com for redressal of investor complaints
has been created and the same is available on
Company’s website www.kewalkiran.com

n) Credit ratings obtained by the entity along
with any revisions thereto during the
relevant financial year:

CRISIL, India’s leading Ratings, Research, Risk and
policy Advisory Company has assigned ‘AA- / Stable’
rating for the banking facilities of the Company.

XVI Other disclosures

a. TheRegister of Contracts containing the
transactions in which Directors are interested is
placed before the Board regularly for its approval.
There are no materially significant Related Party
Transactions which have potential confiict with the
interest of the Company at large. Transactions with
related parties are disclosed separately in note no.
2.40 to the standalone financial statements.

b.  Nopenalties or strictures have been imposed on
the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any
other Statutory Authority on any matter related to
capital market during the last three years.

c. The Company has adopted the Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle Blower Policy pursuant to Section 177(9) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 under which the Directors and
employees can report to the management about the
unethical behavior, fraud or violation of Company’s
Code of Conduct. The mechanism provides for
adequate safeguards against victimization of
employees and Directors who use such mechanism
and makes provision for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional

82 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

cases. The Board hereby confirms that no personnel
have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory
requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
including Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to

(i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEB
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. Adoption of non mandatory
requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is
reviewed by the Board from time to time.

The Company has two subsidiaries Kewal Kiran
Developers Limited (formerly known as Kewal Kiran
Design Studio Limited) and Kraus Casuals Private
Limited. Neither of the subsidiary companies are
material subsidiary of the Company as on March 31,
2025. The web link of policy for determining ‘material’

subsidiaries is https://kewalkiran.com.

The Company has adopted a Related Party
Transaction policy, as recommended by the Audit
Committee pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The policy on Related Party
transactions as approved by the Board of Directors
has been uploaded on the website of the Company.
The web-link to the Related Party Policy is https://
kewalkiran.com

Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity
hedging activities - Your Company is not having much
exposure to foreign exchange and there is a natural
hedging partly available in terms of exports made by
the Company.

The Company did not raise any funds through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement during the year under review.

None of the Directors on the Board of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by
the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority. A Certificate from practicing
Company secretary, U. P. Jain & Co. to that effect is
annexed to this Report.

In the preparation of the financial statement, the
Company has followed the Accounting Standard
referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act
2013. The material accounting policies which are
consistently applied are set out in the notes to
the financial statements. The Board had accepted
all recommendations of Committees of the Board

which were mandatorily required, in the relevant
financial year.

k.  Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its
subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory
auditor and all entities in the network firm/network
entity of which the statutory auditor is a part is
¥ 85,12,500/- debited to profit and loss.

I Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

a.  Number of complaints filed during the financial
year-0

b.  Number of complaints disposed of during the
financial year - 0

c.  Number of complaints pending as on end of the
financial year - 0

m. The Company has not provided Loans and advance to
any firms/companies in which Director are interested.

n.  Your Company does not have any shares in the demat
suspense /unclaimed suspense account.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Interms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman &
Managing Director have furnished certificate to the
Board in the prescribed format for the year ended
March 31, 2025.

The Company has received disclosure from Smt.
Shantaben Pukhraj Jain, Shri Kewalchand Pukhraj
Jain, ShriHemant Pukhraj Jain, Shri Dinesh Pukhraj
Jain and Shri Vikas Pukhraj Jain under Regulation
5(A) of para A, part A of Schedule lll to the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 the same is posted on the
Company’s website www.kewalkiran.com

The Company has formulated policy on archival and
preservation of documents in terms of Regulation

9 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has formulated policy for
determination of materiality of event in terms of
Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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Annexure to Corporate Governance [4] Bodies Corporate of which Mr. Vikas P. Jain is a Chairman / Director
Name of the Company Board Position held =]
. . . . . . Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures Private Limited Director a
(A) Details of other Directorships and Committee Memberships of all Directors W detires Frivete Hm ' c
. . L . . Kewal Kiran Finance Private Limited Director =
[1] Bodies Corporate of which mr. Kewalchand P. Jain is a Chairman/Director : i : S
Lord Gautam Charitable Foundation Director
Name of the Company Board Position held Kewal Kiran Developers Limited (formerly known as Kewal Kiran Design Studio Limited) Director
Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures Private Limited Chairman Marudhar Shwetambar Jain Foundation Director
Kewal Kiran Finance Private Limited Chairman
White Knitwears Private Limited Director [5] Bodies Corporate of which Mr. Paresh H. Clerk is a Chairman/Director 5
Lord Gautam Charitable Foundation Chairman Name of the Company Board Position held _g
Porwal Jain Foundation Chairman NIL NIL g
Kewal Kiran Developers Limited (formerly known as Kewal Kiran Design Studio Limited) Chairman %
. . <
Marudhar Shwetambar Jain Foundation Chairman Committee Memberships 2
Name of the Company Name of the Committee Position held g
Committee Memberships Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited Audit Committee Chairman
Name of the Company Name of the Committee Position held
Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited Stakeholders Relationship Committee Member [6] Bodies Corporate of which Mr. Jayraj S. Sheth is a Chairman/Director
o
Name of the Company Board Position held B3
[2] Bodies Corporate of which Mr. Hemant P. Jain is a Chairman/ Director NIL NIL g
o
Name of the Company Board Position held i i 93_’
, , — , Committee Memberships Q
Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures Private Limited Director 3
Kewal Kiran Finance Private Limited Director Name of the Company Name of the Committee Position held g-
s
White Knitwears Private Limited Director Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited Audit Committee Member
Lord Gautam Charitable Foundation Director Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited Stakeholders Relationship Committee Chairman
Kewal Kiran Developers Limited (formerly known as Kewal Kiran Design Studio Limited) Director ) ) ) ) .
‘ . , [7]1 Bodies Corporate of which Ms. Ushma Sheth Sule is a Chairman/Director
Marudhar Shwetambar Jain Foundation Director
Kraus Casuals Private Limited Nominee Director Name of the Company Board Position held o
Baazar Style Retail Limited Non-Executive Non Independent Director 3
=}
Committee Memberships HRS Insight Financial Intermediaries Private Limited Director )
[e]
. L . @
Name of the Company Name of the Committee Position held JCB Salons Private Limited Director
Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited Stakeholders Relationship Committee Member Kraus Casuals Private Limited Nominee Director

[3] Bodies Corporate of which Mr. Dinesh P. Jain is a Chairman/Director Committee Memberships

— Name of the Company Name of the Committee Position held
Hame ofthe Company coardPosttionheld Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited Audit Committee Member &
Synthofine Chemicals of India Private Limited Director CraLs Casuals Privagte Limited AUt Committee Mermber %
Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures Private Limited Director 3
. . . L . o)
Kewal Kiran Finance Private Limited Director [8] Bodies Corporate of which Mr. Vivek K Shiralkar is a Chairman/Director 3
Lord Gautam Charitable Foundation Director &
. - . i S ) N fthe C Board Position held
Kewal Kiran Developers Limited (formerly known as Kewal Kiran Design Studio Limited) Director ameofthe ompany oardrosition e
IPCA Laboratories Limited Independent Director
Marudhar Shwetambar Jain Foundation Director L
OPEC Investment Private Limited Director
Committee Memberships §
3
Name of the Company Name of the Committee Position held 8-
IPCA Laboratories Limited Audit Committee Member %
IPCA Laboratories Limited Stakeholders Relationship Committee Member g
1
@
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Annexure to Corporate Governance
Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited,

Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, I. B. Patel Road,
Near Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (East),

Mumbai - 400063

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Kewal Kiran
Clothing Limited having CIN: L18101MH1992PLC065136 and having registered office at Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, I. B. Patel Road,
Near Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai-400063 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us
by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub
clause 10(j) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN)
status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers,
We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 315t
March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

flg. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company
1 Kewalchand Pukhraj Jain 00029730 30/01/1992
2 Hemant Pukhraj Jain 00029822 30/01/1992
3 Dinesh Pukhraj Jain 00327277 02/10/1997
4 Vikas PukhrajJain 00029901 02/10/1997
5 Drushti Rahul Desai* 00294249 23/0712014
6  Jayraj Sampatrai Sheth 03290577 20/01/2024
7 Ushma Sheth Sule 07460369 20/01/2024
8 Paresh Harikant Clerk 10419124 20/01/2024
9  VivekKeshav Shiralkar 00340316 13/08/2024

*Ms. Desai's term as Independent Director has expired and she has ceased to be an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 27t August, 2024.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For U. P. JAIN & CO.
Company Secretaries

(Ummedmal P. Jain)

Proprietor

UDIN: FO03735G000953277

Place: Mumbai FCS: 3735 COP: 2235
Dated: August 7, 2025 PR 1253/ 2021

86 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Certificate of Compliance with the Code of Conduct

|, Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, hereby declare that the Company has adopted a Code of
Conduct for its Board Members and Senior Management and a code for Independent Directors, in terms of Regulation 17(5) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Board Members and Senior Management have
affirmed compliance with the said Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management.

For and on behalf of the Board
Kewalchand P. Jain

Place: Mumbai Chairman & Managing Director
Dated: August 7, 2025 (DIN:- 00029730)
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Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

To,
The Members of
Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited

Independent Auditors’ Certificate on Compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended)

1. Based onthe engagement by the management of Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited (‘the Company’), we have examined details
of compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company for the year ended 315t March 2025 as stipulated
in Regulations 17-27, clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time
(‘Listing Regulations’), pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company with Stock exchange.

Management’s Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of Listing Regulations

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including
the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of
the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations for the year
ended 315t March 2025.

4. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

5. Our examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said clause/Regulation as applicable. It is neither
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

6.  We conducted our examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports
or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI') and the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose
of this certificate. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued
by the ICAI.

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information and Other Assurance and Related
Services Engagements.

Opinion

8. Inouropinion, and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and representations made by
the Directors and management, we certify that during the year ended 315t March 2025, the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Agreement and Listing Regulations as applicable mentioned
inpara 1 above.

9. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

88 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Restriction on use

The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of compliance with the
requirement of the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we
do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consentin writing.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 116560W /W100149

For Jain & Trivedi
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 113496W

Satish Trivedi Prashant Daftary
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 38317 Membership No.: 117080
UDIN:25038317BMKWBU9058 UDIN: 25117080BMJBIS6187
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Dated: August 7, 2025 Date: August 7, 2025
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Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Reporting

The Directors present the Business Responsibility Report of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025,
pursuant to Regulation 34(2) (f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURE

I. Details of the listed entity

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity L1810IMH1992PLC065136

2. Name of the Listed Entity Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited

3. Yearofincorporation January 30, 1992

4.  Registered office address Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, |.B. Patel Road, Near Western Express Highway,
Goregoan (East) Mumbai: 400063

5.  Corporate address Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, 1.B. Patel Road, Near Western Express Highway,
Goregoan (East) Mumbai: 400063

6. E-mail abhijit. warange@kewalkiran.com

7.  Telephone 022-26814400

8. Website https://www.kewalkiran.com/

9.  Financial year for which reporting is being done April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025

10.  Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are listed 1. The BSE Limited, Mumbai, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai: 400001.
2. National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai: 400 051.

26,162.51lakhs (61,625,185 equity shares of 2 10 each)

12.  Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of the person  Mr. Abhijit B. Warange, Company Secretary
who may be contacted in case of any queries on the BRSRreport 19122 26814400

abhijit. warange@kewalkiran.com
Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, |.B. Patel Road, Near Western Express Highway,
Goregoan (East) Mumbai: 400063

13.  Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this report made The disclosure under this report covers the standalone operations of
on a standalone basis (i.e. only for the entity) or on a consolidated ~ Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited.
basis (i.e. for the entity and all the entities which form a part of its
consolidated financial statements, taken together)

1. Paid-up Capital

14.  Name of assessment or assurance provider NA

15.  Type of assessment or assurance obtained NA

Il. Products/services

16. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover):

Sr. . . . s . . % of Turnover
No. Description of Main Activity Description of Business Activity of the entity

1. Manufacturing, Processing, Finishing and
Dispatch of Garments and Accessories

Manufacturing and retailing of apparels and lifestyle accessories under 100%
fashion brandsKiller, Integriti, Lawman, Easies and Junior Killer.

17. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover):

fl;. Product/Service NIC Code %ofto(t:zlr;l;t:irtr)\::ee(;
1. Jeans 45%
2. Shirt 23%
3. Trouser NIC code 141 - Manufacturing of wearing apparels, except fur apparels 11%
4. T-Shirt 6%
5. Others 15%
90 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

lll. Operations

18. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of plants ~ Number of offices Total
National 4 1 5
International - - -

19. Markets served by the entity:
a. Number of locations

Locations Number
National (No. of States) 23
International (No. of Countries) 3

b. Whatisthe contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?
Export contributes 1.84% of the total turnover of the company.

c. Abriefontypes of customers

KKCLs five apparel brands namely Killer, Lawman, Integriti, Easies & Junior Killer, comprise products that address the needs of
all profiles of the menswear & kidswear consumers, be it diverse age groups, income levels or occasions.

With 597 exclusive brand outlets (EBO) and 74 distributors covering 4,000+ multi-brand outlets (MBO) spread across India
and presence across national chain stores and e-commerce portals the Company has a widespread distribution in India.
IV. Employees

20. Details as at the end of Financial Year:
a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

Sr. ) Male Female
No. Particulars Total (A) - -

No. (B) % (BIA) No. (C) % (CIA)
Employees
1 Permanent (D) 901 764 85% 137 15%
2 Other than Permanent (E) 1,633 1,223 75% 410 25%
3  Totalemployee (D+E) 2,534 1,987 78% 547 22%
Workers
4 Permanent (F) 882 804 91% 78 9%
5  OtherthanPermanent (G) 0 0 0% 0 0%
6  Total employee (F+G) 882 804 91% 78 9%

b. Differently abled Employees and workers:

Sr. ) Male Female
No. Particulars Total (A) - -

No. (B) % (BIA) No. (C) % (CIA)
Differently abled employees
1. Permanent (D) 0 0 0% 0 0%
2. Other than Permanent (E) 0 0 0% 0 0%
3. Total employee (D+E) 0 0 0% 0 0%
Differently abled Workers
4. Permanent (F) 0 0 0% 0 0%
5. Otherthan Permanent (G) 0 0 0% 0 0%
6. Total employee (F+G) 0 o 0% 0 0%
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

21. Participation/Iinclusion/Representation of women

No. and percentage of Females

Total (A)

No. (B) % (BIA)

Board of Directors 7 1 14%

Key Management Personnel 3 0 0%
22. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers

FY2023-24 FY2022-23

Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total

Permanent Employees 26% 32% 27% 21% 19% 20% 21% 35% 22%

Permanent Workers 22% 15% 21% 27% 26% 27% 28% 21% 27%

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

23. (a) Names of holding/subsidiary/associate companies/joint ventures

Indicate whether holding/
Subsidiary/Associate/
Joint Venture

Sr.  Name of the holding/subsidiary/associate companies/
No. jointventures (A)

% of shares held
by listed entity

Does the entity indicated at columnaA,
participate in the Business Responsibility
initiatives of the listed entity? (Yes/No)

1. Kewal Kiran Developers Limited (formerly known as Subsidiary 100% No
Kewal Kiran Design Studio Limited)
Kraus Casuals Private Limited Subsidiary 50% No
White Knitwears Private Limited (WKPL) Joint Venture 33.33% No

VI. CSRDetails

24. i. Whether CSRis applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 : Yes

ii. Turnover (in ¥)
iii. Networth (in ¥)

VIl. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

83,5633 Lakhs
81,717 Lakhs

25. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1to 9) under the National Guidelines on

FY 2024-25

Responsible Business Conduct:

Stakeholder Number of

groupfrom  Grievance Redressal Mechanism in Place (Yes/No) Numberof complaints
whom (If Yes, then provide web-link for grievance redress complaints pending
complaint is policy) filedduring resolution
received

theyear atclose of
the year

Communities Yes. The mechanism is in place to receive
concerns from community, which are worked upon
and redressed accordingly.
https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.

php#Policies
Investors Yes. The Stakeholder Relationship Committee/ 0 0
(otherthan  Investor Grievance Committee oversees and

shareholders reviews all matters connected with the redressal
of Investor Grievances and complaints. Investor
grievances can be reported at the e-mail ID,

Investors@Kewalkiran.com
Shareholders Investors@Kewalkiran.com

Employees  Yes. The mechanismis in place and the

andworkers  employee grievances can be reported at
charulata.jain@kewalkiran.com
https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.

php#Policies

92 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

FY 2023-24
Number of
Numberof complaints
BEIMENS (:.Ompla'pts pend!ng Remarks
filedduring  resolution
theyear atcloseof
theyear
0 0 -
= 2 0 The
complaints
were
satisfactorily
resolved

Stakeholder

group from Grievance Redressal Mechanism in Place (Yes/No) Number of
whom (If Yes, then provide web-link for grievance redress complaints
complaintis p0|iCy) filed during
received the year
Customers  Yes. The company has a mechanism to handle and 30
address customer complaints.
https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.
php#Policies
Value Chain  Yes. The company has a mechanism to handle and 0
Partners address the complaints of value chain partners.
https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.
php#Policies
Other Yes. The company has a Whistle Blower Policy. 0
(Whistle https://www kewalkiran.com/investors.
Blower) php#Policies

FY 2024-25

FY 2023-24

Number of Number of
complaints Numberof complaints
pending complaints pending

resolution Remarks filedduring  resolution Remarks
at close of theyear atcloseof
the year the year

0 The 20 0 The

complaints complaints

were were

satisfactorily satisfactorily

resolved resolved

0 - 0 0 _

0 - 0 0 -

26. Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and social matters
that present arisk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach to adapt or mitigate the risk

along-with its financial implications, as per the following format:

Indicate Financial implications
Sr Material whether of therisk or
Nc; !ssue_ ) riskor ) Rationale for identifying the risk/opportunity  Incase of risk, approach to adapt or mitigate opp_o_rtunity (Indi_cate
" identified opportunity positive or negative
(R/0) implications)
1. Availability Risk Energy and water are significant cost and risk 1. Investments in alternate energy sources Positive
of natural factors for businesses due to their essentiality, and energy efficient technologies in
resources- scarcity and potential for price volatility, supply order to decrease dependence on
based inputs disruption and environmental impact non-renewable sources.
2. Plansand actions putin place at the
plant level to obtain alternative sources
of water, reusing water from effiuent
treatment plants, utilising rainwater
and attaining water neutrality.
2. Disposal of Risk The production process generates various Waste reduction and recycling program for Negative
Waste waste materials that can pose a threat to the effective waste management. Employee
environment and human health if not handled training, regular auditing, and monitoring.
and disposed off properly.
3. Climate Risk and The risks associated with climate change and Despite the current risk, it presents the Positive
Change Opportunity global warming encompass risks related to Company with a distinctive opportunity to
environmental regulations, natural disasters transition towards sustainable practices,
caused by climate change, and sustainability such as exploring renewable energy and
pressures at both the local and global levels. alternative resource and fuel sources.
4. Water Risk Any disruption to water supply or quality Water conservation and efficiency, water Negative
Management can affect operations and potentially lead to quality management, ZLD, regulatory
increased costs, delays, or reputational damage. compliance.
5. OHS Risk There are various types of risks that can Training/awareness/technological Negative
(Occupational be categorized as occupational hazards, upgradation/review at senior level and
Hazards) including physical, psychosocial, and biological ~ Board committee.
hazards, which are related to the Company’s
activities. These risks can pose both short-term
and long-term threats to the well-being of
employees in the workplace.
6. Diversityand  Opportunity Diversity within the workforce enhances the Promoting equal opportunity employment Positive

Equal company’s performance by fostering the
Opportunity presence of diverse individuals in the workplace.
Itis equally crucial for an organization to prevent
discrimination and uphold human rights in
such a diverse work environment.

and embracing diversity fosters creativity,
drives innovation, and bolsters the agility of
the workforce. We are dedicated to upholding
human rights, ensuring the dignified
treatment of every individual, in all our
operations.
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in place towards adopting
the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

Disclosure Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

Policy and management processes

1.a. Whether your entity’s policy/policies cover each Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
principle and its core elements of the NGRBCs. (Yes/No)

1.b. Has the policy been approved by the Board? (Yes/No) Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

1.c. Web Link of the Policies, if available KKCL's BRSR Policy is available at https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.php#Policies

2. Whether the entity has translated the policy into Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
procedures. (Yes/No)

3. Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

partners? (Yes/No)

4. Name of the national and international codes/ All policies confirm to the applicable laws of the country, SEBI (Listing Obligations
certifications/labels/standards (e.g. Forest Stewardship and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and National Guidance on
Council, Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, Trustea) Responsible Business Conduct.

standartqts (e.% SA BOOSZ[OHSAE’ ISC, _BI|S) adoptedby  Gorporate Governance Voluntary Guidelines, 2009 (P3, P5);
your entity andmappea to €ach principie. CSR disclosures pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (P8)

5. Specific commitments, goals and targets set by the Refer to ESG commitments in Annual Report
entity with defined timelines, if any.

6. Performance of the entity against the specific This report emphasizes the efforts and steps taken by the Company to promote
commitments, goals and targets along-with reasonsin  sustainability and addresses our specific areas of focus on Environmental, Social,
case the same are not met. and Governance (ESG) issues throughout the Financial Year. Moving ahead, we are

dedicated to monitoring and disclosing our progress regarding these commitments
inthe future.

Governance, leadership and oversight

7. Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG related challenges, targets and achievements (listed
entity has flexibility regarding the placement of this disclosure)
Please refer to the Chairman’s statement (page 6) in KKCL's Annual Report 2024-25

Mr. Kewalchand Pukhraj Jain, Chairman and Managing Director (DIN: 00029730) has
been designated as the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Head.

8. Details of the highest authority responsible for
implementation and oversight of the Business
Responsibility policy (ies).

9. Does the entity have a specified Committee of the Board/ No. The Executive directors and the senior management are responsible for decision
Director responsible for decision making on sustainability making on sustainability related issues.
related issues? (Yes/No). If yes, provide details.

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Indicate whether review was undertaken
by Director/Committee of the Board/
Any other Committee

Frequency (Annually/Half yearly/

Subject for Review Quarterly/Any other - please specify)

Pl P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9 P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

Performance against above policies and follow up action Chairman and Managing Director Quarterly

Compliance with statutory requirements of relevance to the Chairman and Managing Director Quarterly

principles, and, rectification of any non-compliances

11. Has the entity carried out independent assessment/ P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

evaluation of the working of its policies by an external

; No external agency has conducted an independent assessment or evaluation
agency? (Yes/No). If yes, provide name of the agency.

of the entity’s policies. Instead, the Senior Management internally assessed and
evaluated the entity’s policies. This internal review process ensures the effective
implementation of policies that align with the entity’s objectives and regulatory
requirements.

94 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

12. If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:

Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

The entity does not consider the Principles material to its
business (Yes/No)

The entity is not at a stage where it is in a position to
formulate and implement the policies on specified principles
(Yes/No)

The entity does not have the financial or/human and
technical resources available for the task (Yes/No)

Not applicable.

Itis planned to be done in the next financial year (Yes/No)
Any other reason (please specify)

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core Elements with key
processes and decisions. The information sought is categorized as “Essential” and “Leadership”. While the essential indicators are
expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may be voluntarily disclosed
by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be socially, environmentally and ethically responsible.

PRINCIPLE 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, andina
manner that is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable.

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the
financial year:

Total number % age of persons
of training and inrespective
Segment awareness Topics/Principles covered under the training and its impact category covered
programmes by the awareness
held programmes

Board of Directors 2 The Board of Directors and KMPs are updated and made aware of regulatory 100%
developments. The subjects covered include: Environment and Safety, Companies 100%

Key Managerial Act, SEBI Listing Requirements, Corporate Governance, ESG & Sustainability.

Personnel

Employees other 85 Employees and workers underwent training on various topics and principles, 100%
than BoD and KMPs including:

Workers 33 Business Development_Target VS Achievement_ Plan & Review — (P1) 100%

Brand wise_ Expense Module — (P1)

Retail Employee Grooming Standards, Team building activities, KPI, Sales Training_Up
selling, Cross Selling, Product Knowledge — (P3)

Retail NSO Introduction & Induction Meet — (P3)

NAPS & QUESS Staffing Overview & Guidelines — (P3)

Displays & Visual merchandising_Seasonwise — (P4, P9)

Fire Safety Measures — (P6)

COSEC & Attendance Training — (P3)

Quality Checking — (P2)

POSH (Prevention of Sexual Harassment) — (P3, P5)

Basic Fire Hydrant System Operation and Control (Practical) — (P6)
Basic Fire Panel Operation and Control — (P6)

Basic Fire Prevention & Control — (P6)

Basic Fire Pump Operation — (P6)

Basic Hygiene & Hospitality Training — (P3, P6)

Basic Pump Operations & Control — (P6)

Cleaning & Sanitization Best Practices (Jaynath Group) — (P6)
Cleaning & Sanitization Best Practices (SILA Group) — (P6)
Electrical Safety — (P6)

Fire Extinguisher Operation and Control — (P6)

Food Hygiene & Safety — (P2, P6)

Safety Committee Meeting, Fire Mock Drill — (P6)
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)
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Details of fines/penalties/punishment/award/compounding fees/settlement amount paid in proceedings (by the entity or by
directors/KMPs) with regulators/law enforcement agencies/judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the following format
(Note: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity’s website):

Monetary
NGRBC Name of the regulatory/enforcement Amount . Has an appeal been preferred?
Principle agencies/judicial institutions (In¥) Briefofthe Case (Yes/No)
Penalty/Fine Nil Not applicable Nil Not applicable Not applicable
Settlement Nil Not applicable Nil Not applicable Not applicable
Compounding Nil Not applicable Nil Not applicable Not applicable

Non-Monetary

Sl. N(._‘;RB_C Nar_ng of_the_reg_ulatorylenforcement agencies/ Brief of the Case Has an appeal been preferred?
No Principle judicial institutions (Yes/No)

Imprisonment Nil Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Punishment Nil Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/Revision preferred in cases where
monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.

Case Details Name of the regulatory/enforcement agencies/judicial institutions

Not applicable

Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if
available, provide a web-link to the policy.

Yes, Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited (KKCL) has an Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy applicable to all directors, employees,
and business partners. The policy reflects KKCLs zero-tolerance approach to bribery, corruption, and any improper payments
or benefits. It defines unacceptable practices, such as offering or accepting gifts, hospitality, favours, or payments to
influence decisions, and mandates strict compliance with applicable laws.

The company provides regular training on the policy and has mechanisms for employees to report violations without fear
of retaliation. Oversight of the policy’'s implementation is ensured by the Executive Board. The policy is publicly available at:.
https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.php#Policies

Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law
enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/corruption:

Parameter FY 2023-24
Directors Nil Nil
Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) Nil Nil
Employees Nil Nil
Workers Nil Nil

Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Number REINENE Number Remarks

Number of complaints received in relation to issues of Conflict of Interest of the Directors 0 = 0 -

Number of complaints received in relation to issues of Conflict of Interest of the KMPs 0 = 0 -

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

7. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines/penalties/action
taken by regulators/law enforcement agencies/judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and
conflicts of interest.

Not applicable. There are no cases on corruption and conflicts of interest

8. Number of days of accounts payables ((Accounts payable *365)/Cost of goods/services procured) in the
following format:

Number of days of accounts payables 29

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
29

9. Open-ness of business

Provide details of concentration of purchases and sales with trading houses, dealers, and related parties along-with loans
and advances &investments, with related parties, in the following format:

Parameter Metrics FY 2023-24
Concentration a. Purchases from trading houses as % of total purchases 47.35% 32%
of Purchases b.  Number of trading houses where purchases are made from 262 388
c.  Purchases fromtop 10 trading houses as % of total purchases from trading houses 38.79% 54%
Concentration a. Salesto dealers/distributors as % of total sales 37.35% 32.19%
of Sales b.  Number of dealers/distributors to whom sales are made 74 94
c. Salestotop 10 dealers/distributors as % of total sales to dealers/distributors 54.89% 64.51%
Share of RPTs a. Purchases (Purchases with related parties/Total Purchases) 0 0
in b. Sales (Sales torelated parties/Total Sales) 0 0
c. Loans & advances (Loans & advances given to related parties/Total loans & advances) 73.47% 0
d. Investments (Investments in related parties/Total Investments made) 60.18% 19.34%

Leadership Indicators

1. Awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles during the
financial year:

%age of value chain partners covered (by value

Total number of awareness held Topics/principles covered under the training with such partners under the awareness programs

2. Doesthe entity have processes in place to avoid/manage conflict of interests involving members of the
Board? (Yes/No)

Yes. Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited (KKCL) has established processes and a Code of Conduct to prevent and manage conflicts
of interestinvolving Board members. Directors are required to disclose their interests annually, or whenever thereis a
change, regarding any association with companies, firms, or other entities. The Code of Conduct applies from the start of
their directorship or senior management role and is acknowledged by them yearly or upon revision. The Code of Conduct is
available at: https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.php#Policies

The Code promotes integrity, ethical behaviour, and compliance with laws, requiring Directors and Senior Management

to actin the best interest of the company and avoid activities that may create confiicts of interest. It prohibits misuse of
confidential information, insider trading, and acceptance of gifts or benefits intended to influence decisions. The company
ensures compliance through clear guidelines and fair disciplinary measures in case of violations.
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

PRINCIPLE 2: Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

2.b.

98

Essential Indicators

Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve
the environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments
made by the entity, respectively.

2023-24 Details of improvements in environmental and social impacts
R&D 0 0 KKCLsinvestment practice contributes to increased efficiency of operations and product
Capex 100% 100% sustainability, which creates a trickle-down effect along the value chain in terms of creating

environmental and social impacts. While we have yet to fully assess the specific impacts of
technology and innovation, we are optimistic about their potential to drive further positive change.

. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No)

KKCL has adopted sustainable sourcing procedures, with a strong emphasis on procuring the key raw materials responsibly.
The company prioritizes partnering with suppliers who follow eco-friendly practices, such as using organic fibers and
implementing water and energy-saving measures during production. This approach is aimed at significantly reducing the
environmental impact of the garments produced, contributing to the promotion of sustainable and responsible garments.

If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

The organization has established a thorough vendor selection and evaluation process that gives significant importance

to environmental and social considerations. Vendors are chosen based on their long-term capabilities, commitment to
environmental, health and safety policies, adherence to quality standards, and competitive pricing. Approximately 45.86% of
the inputs used are sourced sustainably.

Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing
at the end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste © Hazardous waste and (d) other
waste.

The Company’s manufacturing sites are subject to Consents to Operate and authorizations as per the Hazardous Waste
Management Rules, which mandate the declaration and proper disposal of all waste, including plastic packaging, through
authorized waste disposal service providers overseen by the State Pollution Control Board. In addition, the Company
supports responsible disposal by supplying plastic containers to authorized recyclers for recycling purposes.

(@) Plastics (including packaging): Plastic packaging are sent to authorized recyclers.

(b) E-waste: Thisis not applicable as the Company is not reclaiming any electronic items, and any e-waste generated on
site is given to certified vendors for safe disposal.

(c) Hazardous waste: Not applicable. None of the product waste is hazardous.
(d) Otherwaste: Other waste generated at site are disposed to certified vendors for safe disposal.

Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities (Yes/No). If yes, whether the waste
collection planisinline with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not,
provide steps taken to address the same.

No. Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is not applicable for the entity.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Leadership Indicators

Has the entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective/Assessments (LCA) for any of its products (for
manufacturing industry) or for its services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following
format?

The Company has not conducted any life cycle assessment for the products till date.

Boundary for which the Life Cycle Whether conducted by Results communicatedin
Perspective/Assessment was independent external public domain (Yes/No) If
conducted agency (Yes/No) yes, provide the web-link.

NIC Name of Product/ % of total Turnover
Code Service contributed

If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from production or
disposal of your products/services, as identified in the Life Cycle Perspective/Assessments (LCA) or
through any other means, briefly describe the same along-with action taken to mitigate the same.

Not Applicable.

Name of Product/Service Description of the risk/concern Action Taken

Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in production (for
manufacturing industry) or providing services (for service industry).

Recycled or reused input material to
Indicate input Material total material

FY 2023-24

None

Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes) reused,
recycled, and safely disposed, as per the following format:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Re-Used Recycled Disiztsilz Re-Used Recycled Dis;snzgz
Plastics (including packaging) - - - - - -
E-waste KKCL products and packaging materials do not contribute to the creation of
Hazardous waste electronic waste or hazardous products.
Other waste = = = - - -

Reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each product
category.

Indicate product category Reclaimed products and their packaging materials as % of total products sold in respective category

Nil Not applicable
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

PRINCIPLE 3: Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees,

including those in their value chains

Essential Indicators

1.a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

% of employees covered by

Health Insurance

Accident Insurance

Maternity benefits

Paternity benefits

Day care facilities

cetegery Total (A)  Number Number Number Number Number
®) % (BIA) © % (CIA) (D) % (D/A) ) % (E/A) ) % (FIA)
Permanent employees
Male 764 764 100% 764 100% NA NA 764 100% 0 0%
Female 137 137 100% 137 100% 137 100% NA NA 0 0%
Total 901 901 100% 901 100% 137 15% 764 85% 0 0%
Other than Permanent employees
Male 1,223 1,223 100% 1,223 100% NA NA 1,223 100% 0 0%
Female 410 410 100% 410 100% 410 100% NA NA 0 0%
Total 1,633 1,633 100% 1,633 100% 410 25% 1,223 75% 0 0%
b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:
% of employees covered by
Category rotal () Health Insurance Accident Insurance Maternity benefits Paternity benefits Day care facilities
NamES ey NUME wem NS wom MMRE wem N )
Permanent workers
Male 804 804 100% 804 100% NA NA 804 100% 0 0%
Female 78 78 100% 78 100% 78 100% NA NA 0 0%
Total 882 882 100% 882 100% 78 9% 804 91% 0 0%
Other than Permanent workers
Male 0 0% 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Female 0 0% 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Total 0 0% 0] 0% 0 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
c. Spending on measures towards well-being of employees and workers (including permanent and other than
permanent) in the following format:
FY 2023-24
Cost incurred on wellbeing measures as a % of total revenue of the company 0.13% 0.15%
2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current FY and Previous Financial Year.
Benefits No. of employees No. of workers DELIGERERLN  No. of employees No. of workers Deducted and
(LT EEE R BT S R G L RGRGEN  coveredasa % of coveredasa%of — deposited withthe
total employees total workers authority (Y/N/NA) total employees totalworkers  authority (Y/N/NA)
PF 100% 100% Y 100% 100% Y
Gratuity 100% 100% Y 100% 100% Y
ESI 100% 100% Y 31% 93% Y
Others - please specify -
100 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Accessibility of workplaces

Are the premises/offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the requirements of the
Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 20167 If not, whether any steps are being taken by the entity in this regard.

KKCL is strongly committed to fostering diversity and ensuring equitable treatment of all employees. Our primary objective is
to create an inclusive work environment that welcomes individuals from diverse backgrounds. In line with this commitment,
we actively consider qualified candidates with disabilities based on their merits and qualifications. Our Equal Opportunity
Policy fully aligns with the provisions outlined in The Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act of 2016. We continuously strive
to enhance our premises to improve accessibility for differently-abled employees and workers, to ensure inclusivity across
our operations.

Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act,
2016? If so, provide a web-link to the policy.

Yes, the Company has implemented an Equal Employment Opportunities Policy in compliance with the Rights of Persons with
Disabilities Act, 2016. KKCL ensures that all employees and eligible job applicants are granted equal opportunities without
unjust discrimination based on various factors such as race, caste, religion, color, ancestry, marital status, gender, sexual
orientation, age, nationality, ethnic origin, disability or any other protected category specified by relevant legislation. The
policy can be accessed on the website at https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.php#Policies.

Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave.

Permanent Employees Permanent Workers
Gender Return to Work Rate RetentionRate  Returnto Work Rate Retention Rate
Male* NA NA NA NA
Female** 100% 100% - -
Total - - - -

* Parental leave benefits only available for female employees and workers
** Female workers did not avail parental leave in this financial year.

Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of
employees and worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.

Yes/No (If Yes, then give details of the mechanismin brief)

Permanent Workers Yes
Other than Permanent Workers NA
Permanent Employees Yes
Other than Permanent Employees Yes

KKCL has implemented a grievance mechanism to address and resolve concerns raised by employees and workers. The
mechanism provides a transparent and structured approach for employees to express grievances related to workplace
culture, colleague interactions, management issues, harassment incidents, and health and safety matters, with the option
to escalate their concerns if necessary. Unit HR and CHRO (Chief Human Resources Officer) are responsible for conducting
thorough investigation and taking appropriate actions to resolve the grievances, while maintaining records to ensure
transparency and accountability throughout the process.
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)
7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed entity: 10. Health and safety management system:
The company does not have any employee associations. The company, however, recognises the right to freedom of 10.a. Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by the entity? El
association and does not discourage collective bargaining. (Yes/No). If yes, the coverage of such system? 2
FY 2023-24 Yes. Wellbeing of our employees is of prime importance to us. We take a significant effort in maintaining the workplace health 2
Total employees/ No. of employees/ Total employees/ No. of employees/ and safety standards as per industry norms. Our workers at the Vapi site are constantly exposed to noise and chemicals >
Category workers in Workersin respectiv? workersin Workers in reSpectiv? c %)’ during dying, printing, and washing of apparels. Our employees are required to use protective masks and gloves while
respective category, who are part o respective category, who are part o /D . . . . .
categpory () assocgtign(s) or Un?on ®) categpory © associgtig'n(s) orUnfon ©) operating the machinery. The Company has |mplemented an Occupgtlonal Health and Safety system thg‘F covers and applies
Total Permanent Employees 901 0 0% 925 0 0% toall emp!oyees and workers. The |mp|emenltat|on ofg comprehehswe health and safety framework is visible througho‘ut the
. o organization. Safety performance has been included in the appraisal system for management employees, demonstrating the
Male e O 753 0 0% Company’s commitment to accountability. Regular safety training is provided to employees and Workers. S
Female 137 0 0% 172 0 0% 3
Total Permanent Workers 882 0 0% 994 0 0% All our sites are equipped with first aid kits and fire extinguishers in case of any emergency. 5
(0]
Male 804 0 0% 897 0 0% 10.b. What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine and non-routine 3
Female 78 0 0% 97 0 0% basis by the entity? =
. . . The safety committee members and HR personnel both conduct daily plant round (Daily Gemba Walk) visits to identify work- =
8. Details of training given to employees and workers: . .
related hazards. Employees are actively encouraged to report any work-related hazards or risks they encounter to the safety
FY2023-24 committee or the plant head. This collaborative effort ensures that potential hazards are identified and addressed promptly,
Category On Health and safety On Skill upgradation OnHealth and safety On Skill upgradation promoting a safer work environment for all.
Total (A) measures Total (D) measures 9o
No. (B) % (BIA) No. (C) % (CIA) No. (E) % (E/D) No. (F) % (FID) 10.c. Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to remove themselves from £
Employees suchrisks. (YIN) §
Male 1,987 163 8% 242 12% 2,030 154 8% 242 12% Yes. To ensure the safety of our workers, we have established an internal platform for them to report any work-related Z;’
Female 547 66 12% 111 20% 620 66 11% 111 18% hazards that th-e\/ mMay come across. Once reported, these hazards are cIo;eI\/ monitgred and addre;sed by the Safety g
Total 2,534 229 9% 353 14% 2,650 220 8% 353 13% Commlttee, whichthe respegtlve Plant Heads support. I_n the safety committee meeting, members dlscgss incidents or 2
Workers accidents that occurred, review and evaluate the effectiveness of the current safety procedures, identify any new hazards,
. . . . provide training and education on safety practices, and discuss any relevant legal or regulatory changes. The committee also
Male 0 22 o= &) g 897 528 59% /4 8% discusses ways to improve workers’ and management’s communication and cooperation on safety matters.
Female 78 69 88% 3 4% 97 71 73% 9 9%
Total 882 593 67% 42 5% 994 599 60% 83 8% 10.d. Do the employees/worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare services?
(Yes/No) g
9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker: Yes. The Company offers medical benefits to its permanent employees and their families. Workers are eligible for medical §
FY 2023-24 benefits through group insurance policies provided by the Company, as well as medical support funded by the Company. If 3
Category Total (A) No.®)  %@n) BRI No.D)  %(C/D) applicable, they may also receive statutory benefits under ESIC.
Employees 11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:
Male 1,987 252 13% 2,030 367 18%
Safety Incident/Number Category FY 2023-24
Female 547 35 6% 620 51 8%
Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) (per one million-person hours worked) Employees 0 0
Total 2,534 287 11% 2,650 418 16% o
Workers 0 0 o
Workers* =
Total recordable work-related injuries Employees 0 0 5
Male 804 0 0% 897 0% g
Workers 0 0 =
Female 78 0 0% 97 0% @
No. of fatalities Employees 0 0 g
Total 882 0 0% 994 0% 3
Workers 0 0 @
Performance and career developmentreviews of workers are not done. High consequence work-related injury or ill-health (excluding fatalities) Employees 0 0
Workers 0 0
I
3
8
)
(]
&
3
3
(0]
3
@
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

KKCL is committed to providing a healthy, safe, and clean working environment for its employees, contract workers, visitors,
and stakeholders. To foster a zero-harm work culture, the company has implemented continuous improvement measures.
These include developing safe operating procedures and guidelines based on relevant Indian standards, forming an EHS
committee at all facilities to proactively manage occupational health and safety (OHS) activities, holding regular safety and
EHS committee meetings, and implementing control measures to mitigate significant risks.

Employees and workers receive training on work-related hazards and safety measures through standard operating
procedures and work instructions. The company conducts regular health and safety compliance audits and inspections.
Safety training programs for employees, including leadership and management teams, are conducted to enhance their
understanding of safety management systems, incident investigation, audits, and emergency management. Effective
communication channels are established to engage employees and encourage them to report safety-related incidents.
Incident reporting and investigation use the fishbone method to identify root causes and prevent recurrence.

The company also provides comprehensive health check-ups, medical facilities, and occupational health risk assessments
to protect employee well-being. Ergonomic exercises are conducted to promote a healthy work culture and reduce
occupational health risks.

13. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Categor - . Pending ) ) Pending
gery Flleghclur;r;gr resolution atthe Remarks Flleghclur‘lar;? resolutionat the Remarks

y end of year Y end of year
Working Conditions 0 0 NA 0 0 NA
Health & Safety 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

14. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

Health and safety practices

i o 100% of all our units are assessed internally
Working Conditions

15. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any)
and on significant risks/concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices and working
conditions.

No safety incidents occurred during the assessment year. For all types of incidents, we have identified appropriate corrective
actions and implemented necessary measures to resolve them. Our audit system, both internal and external, is well-
established and thoroughly examines environmental and occupational health and safety aspects on aregular basis. In the
event of safety incidents, a dedicated safety team conducts root cause analysis, which is subsequently monitored and
reviewed by the Plant Head. Based on the identified root causes, corrective measures are implemented to prevent similar
incidents from occurring in the future.

104 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Leadership Indicators

1. Doesthe entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of:
(A) Employees (YIN) - Yes
(B) Workers (Y/N) - Yes

2. Provide the measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted and
deposited by the value chain partners.

The company ensures that contractor and vendors make timely PF and ESIC payments to their employees by releasing
payment only after proof of compliance is received. Monthly reconciliation of GSTR-2B is conducted to ensure that vendors
make timely GST payments and file GST returns to the government on time. The company ensures timely filing of GST returns
to allow customers to avail GST credits on time and resolves any related issues promptly.

The company follows up with customers and vendors for TDS/TCS certificates (Form16A and Form27D) to ensure timely
payments of TDS/TCS by them. Timely TDS/TCS payments are made and certificates are issued to vendors, customers, and
employees so that they can avail credits on time. Income tax returns are collected from vendors on a yearly basis to ensure
proper levy of TDS rates and to ensure that vendors file their income tax returns on time.

The company collects TRC, NO PE certificates, and 10F form on all foreign payments related to goods and services to prevent
tax evasion by foreign entities and to regularize foreign currency payments. Timely payment of the labour welfare fund of
employees is also ensured by the company.

3. Provide the number of employees/workers having suffered high consequence work- related injury/ill-
health/fatalities (as reported in Q11 of Essential Indicators above), who have been are rehabilitated and
placed in suitable employment or whose family members have been placed in suitable employment:

No. of employees/workers that are rehabilitated
Total no. of affected employees/workers and placed in suitable employment or whose family
members have been placed in suitable employment

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Employees 0 0 0 0

Workers 0 0 0 0

4. Doesthe entity provide transition assistance programs to facilitate continued employability and the
management of career endings resulting from retirement or termination of employment? (Yes/No)

The company does not provide any transition assistance programs however, it plans to extend professional courses
to its employees in the near future to facilitate continued employability. It also offers advisory roles to highly qualified
retired employees.

5. Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed

Health and safety practices

i o Value chain partners were not assessed during the assessment period.
Working Conditions

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks/concerns
arising from assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of value chain
partners.

Not Applicable
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

Essential Indicators

Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

KKCL defines stakeholders as any individual, group, or institution contributing to its business chain. Recognising their
crucial role, the company engages with stakeholders to understand and address their concerns, supporting its vision and
objectives. Its multi-stakeholder approach ensures their needs are identified and responded to through targeted initiatives.

The process involves identifying both internal and external stakeholders, assessing their influence on the business and vice
versa, and prioritising key groups based on their expectations and impact. Regular engagement through diverse channels
helps strengthen these relationships and align the company’s strategy with stakeholder interests, creating shared value.

List of stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each
stakeholder group.

Frequency of
Wheth_er Channels of Communication engqagemznt
identified as (Email, SMS, Newspaper. (Annually/ . . .
Stakeholder Vulne_rab_le & Pam r;lets !Advertisemént Half vearly/ Purpose anq scope c_nfengagement including key topics and
Group Marginalised c P 't! Meeti N t'! Q »; | 7 concerns raised during such engagement
Group Bommum Yy Meetings, Notice Quar e[y
(Yes/No) oard, Website), Others othel_rs please
specify)
Customers No Customer feedback Ongoing/ - The Company believes that comprehending the
surveys, In-person Need basis requirements of its customers is essential in determining
meetings/letters, Social the quality and pricing of its products.
media, Company and - The development of new and innovative products is driven
corporate websites, Product by the needs of the customers.
information on packaging, - The Company also strives to minimize the environmental
Customer relationship and social impact of its products, thereby enabling
development, Customer customers to meet their sustainability goals.
conferences, Email, SMS,
Advertisements, Website.
Employees No Emails, Internal Ongoing/ - The Company aims to enhance employee engagement
Communication platforms,  Need basis and communication by promoting collaborative working,
Intranet, Notice Board, diversity, and well-being at the workplace.
Team meetings, One-to-one - The Company also seeks to provide employees with
meetings/briefings. opportunities for accelerated career growth.
Suppliersand  No Supplier evaluation Ongoing/ The Company’s objectives include maximizing opportunities for
Value Chain questionnaires, Contractual Need basis suppliers across the value chain, integrating sustainability into
Partners meetings, Information procurement decisions, and procuring high-quality raw materials
requests, Email, SMS, and services at competitive prices.
Advertisement, Website,
Tradeshow.
Shareholders, No Annual General Meeting, Annually/ - The Company aims to disclose sustainability Key
Investors and Annual Reports, One-to- Ongoing/ Performance Indicators (KPIs) and integrate financial and
Lenders one meetings, Quarterly Need basis non-financial factors to provide high-value information
conference calls, Investor that generates significant long-term value to investors and
conferences, Road shows shareholders.
and plant visits. - The Company also engages with all its stakeholders to
understand their priorities and address their queries and
concerns, enriching business conduct.
Local Yes Community Meetings, Ongoing/ - The Company strives to establish robust partnerships
Communities Events, Advertisements, Need basis with local communities and support its supply chain while
School/Local functions, maintaining its social license.
Social Media.

106 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Frequency of
Whet_h_er Channels of Communication engagement
identified as (Email, SMS, Newspaper. (Annually/
Stakeholder Vulnerable & P |_’]| t ’Ad ti ' t Half v/ Purpose and scope of engagement including key topics and
Group Marginalised amphiets, Advertisement, atyearly concerns raised during such engagement
Community Meetings, Notice Quarterly/
Group yh gs Y
Board, Website), Others others - please
(Yes/No) .
specify)
Government  No Press Releases, Quarterly Need basis - The Company aims to enhance its sustainability
and Results, Annual Reports, performance and improve compliance with regulations
Regulators Sustainability/Integrated related to its activities.
Reports, Stock Exchange - The Company aims to contribute to nation-building through
filings, issue specific its products, taxes, and royalties, as well as support the
meetings, representations. government’s on-ground initiatives through corporate social
responsibility (CSR) and contributions to the local economy.
Media No Media surveys, Interviews,  Need basis - The Company aims to enhance its comprehension of
Media briefings, Press the industry’s positive impact on sustainability and
releases, Social media. climate change, as well as identify the drivers for further
development in this regard.
NGOs and No One-to-one meetings, Need basis - The Company aims to engage experts in the field for the
Other Groups Presentations, Participation effective implementation of CSR programs and regularly
inevents. discuss and share updates to strengthen the existing
programs.

Leadership Indicators

Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic,
environmental, and social topics or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such
consultations provided to the Board.

KKCL actively engages with stakeholders — including investors, customers, suppliers, employees, and communities — and
channels their concerns to the Board through structured organisational processes. These consultations are facilitated

by specific functional heads who represent stakeholder interests during quarterly Board reviews. For instance, the
Marketing Head shares customer trends, the HR Head addresses employee and investor feedback, and Plant Heads report
on sustainability and environmental matters, ensuring the Board remains informed on key economic, environmental, and
social topics.

For community engagement, the company assesses the needs of communities around its manufacturing sites through
surveys and develops targeted support initiatives. The progress, implementation schedules, and outcomes of CSR activities
are formally presented to the Board quarterly for its review and feedback, reinforcing the importance of stakeholder inputin
shaping company strategy and fostering inclusive growth.

Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and management of
environmental, and social topics (Yes/No). If so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs
received from stakeholders on these topics were incorporated into policies and activities of the entity.

Yes. KKCL actively engages with stakeholders to identify and address material environmental and social topics in alignment
with its strategic objectives. Dedicated internal representatives are assigned to each stakeholder group to ensure
structured and meaningful dialogue. For instance, feedback from employees has informed improvements to internal
communication and collaboration frameworks, while suppliers are supported through a streamlined order-to-payment
process and are encouraged to highlight environmental and social issues, which are duly considered in the formulation of
relevant policies and initiatives.

Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the concerns of
vulnerable/marginalized stakeholder groups.

Vulnerable group Concerns Action Taken Impact
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

PRINCIPLE 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights

108

Essential Indicators

Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the

entity, in the following format:

Category No. of employees/ No. of employees/

Total (A) workers covered (B) %(BIA) Total (C) workers covered (D) %(CID)
Employees
Permanent 901 901 100% 925 93 10%
Other than permanent 1,633 1,633 100% 1,725 0 0%
Total Employees 2,534 2,534 100% 2,650 93 4%
Workers
Permanent 882 882 100% 994 0 0%
Other than permanent NA = = 0 - -
Total Workers 882 882 100% 994 0 0%
Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:
Category Equal to minimum More than Minimum Equal to minimum More than Minimum
Total (A) wage wage Total (D) wage wage
No. (B) %(BIA) No. (C) %(CIA) No. (E) %(E/D) No. (F) %(FID)
Employees
Permanent 901 0 0 901 100% 925 0 0% 925 100%
Male 764 0 0 764 100% 753 0 0% 753 100%
Female 137 0 0 137 100% 172 0 0% 172 100%
Other than Permanent 1,633 0 0 1,633 100% 1,725 0 0% 1,725 100%
Male 1,223 0 0 1,223 100% 1,277 0 0% 1,277 100%
Female 410 0 0 410 100% 448 0 0% 448 100%
Workers
Permanent 882 0 0 882 100% 994 0 0 994 100%
Male 804 0 0 804 100% 897 0 0 897 100%
Female 78 0 0 78 100% 97 0 0 97 100%
Other than Permanent 0 0 = 0 0 -
Male 0 0 = 0 0 -
Female 0 0 0 = 0 0 -
Details of remuneration/salary/wages:
Median remuneration/wages:
Male Female
Number Median remuneratri::;:ilteil\:\él‘\:ggzzs; Number Median remunera'cri::;':i:\rlyellt\:\;izzf)?;
Board of Directors (BoD) 7* 1,24,99,930 1* -
Key Managerial Personnel 3 6,40,164 0 -
Employees other than BoD and KMP 919 5,04,024 199 3,47,679
Workers 953 2,27,595 85 1,45,829

*Independent Directors are paid only sitting fees, which are not considered in the median remuneration calculation.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages paid by the entity, in the following format:

Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages* 10.70% 1%

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

*Only permanent employees considered

Do you have a focal point (Individual/Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or
issues caused or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No)

Yes. Human Resources Head and the individual Plant Heads holds the responsibility for dealing with any humanrights issues
that are caused or have a contribution from the business.

Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to humanrights issues.

The company has implemented a Vigil Mechanism/Whistleblower Policy to encourage employees to report any concerns
they may have, assuring them that they will not face any negative consequences such as victimization, discrimination, or
disadvantages as a result. This policy includes a process for employees to report their concerns either to the Chairperson of
the Audit Committee or to the Vigilance and Ethics Officer through designated channels. The Vigil Mechanism/Whistleblower
Policy is accessible to all stakeholders and can be found on the company’s website for public access.

Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Filedduring Pendingresolution R Filedduring Pendingresolution

the year atthe end of year the year atthe endofyear Remarks

Sexual Harassment - = = - - _

Discrimination at workplace = - - - - -

Child Labour - = = - - _

Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour - = - - _ _

Wages - - - - - -

Other humanrights related issues - = = - _ _

Complaints filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, in the following format:

Total Complaints reported under Sexual Harassment on of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 0 0
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH)

Complaints on POSH as a % of average number of female employees/workers at the beginning of the 0% 0%
year and as at end of the year

Complaints on POSH upheld 0 0

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

*Only permanent employees considered.

Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment
cases.

The Company is committed to providing equal opportunities and strongly condemns discrimination or harassment based on
any factor. To ensure inclusivity and maintain a zero-tolerance stance on discrimination, the Company has implemented an
Equal Employment Opportunity Policy. Additionally, there is a policy in place to prevent and address sexual harassment in the
workplace. An Internal Complaints Committee is responsible for conducting inquiries while safeguarding the identities of all
parties involved. Regular sensitization programs on sexual harassment prevention are conducted to raise awareness. The
Company ensures the confidentiality and anonymity of complainants. Furthermore, the Company has a Whistleblower Policy
for reporting unethical behavior and noncompliance. Employees are expected to adhere to a Code of Conduct that promotes
responsible actions and behavior.

Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes/No)

Yes. The Company has integrated the fulfillment of human rights requirements into its standard terms and conditions for
Purchase Orders, Agreements/Contracts entered into with the Suppliers and also as a part of Code of Conduct for Suppliers
and Service Providers.
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

10.

11.

110

Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

Child labour 100%. We conduct internal monitoring to ensure compliance with relevant laws and policies

regarding these issues. No significant findings have been reported by local regulatory bodies

Forced/involuntary labour : . o
Y or external parties throughout the year. We take proactive measures to prevent discrimination,

Sexual harassment child labor, and sexual harassment within our value chain partnerships.

Discrimination at workplace

Wages

Others - please specify

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks/concerns arising
from the assessments at Question 10 above.

Not applicable. No significant risks/concerns.

Leadership Indicators

Details of a business process being modified/introduced as a result of addressing human rights
grievances/complaints.

Not applicable. The Company has not received any grievances or complaints regarding human rights violations during the
reporting period.

Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due-diligence conducted.

The Company’s commitment to creating a culture of care and trust is evident in its various corporate policies, which include
the Environment, Health & Safety (EHS) Policy, Whistleblower Policy, Sexual Harassment Policy, and Equal Opportunity and
Non-Discrimination policies. Upholding the dignity and respect of each employee is a core value that the Company embraces.
To ensure compliance and responsibility, regular audits and inspections are carried out by the internal audit protocols of the
EHS and HR departments, encompassing all locations and addressing issues related to EHS and human rights.

The Company is fully dedicated to meeting or surpassing the requirements of relevant local, state, and national laws
concerning human rights and workers' rights in all the states where it operates. Additionally, all business operations
adhere to applicable regulations, striving to uphold labor rights and aligning with both national and international standards
and regulations.

Is the premise/office of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the requirements of
the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016?

Yes. The Company has made provisions to ensure convenient access for individuals with disabilities at its manufacturing
sites. Ramps have been constructed to facilitate easy movement for differently-abled visitors. To assist deaf and mute
visitors, displays and signages have been installed for effective communication. The Company has been continually working
to enhance our premises to further enhance accessibility and support for differently-abled employees and workers.

Details on assessment of value chain partners:

PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

Sexual harassment The company did not conduct any assessments with its value chain partners. However, it is
expected that the value chain partners comply with all applicable laws and regulations. In the
upcoming assessment year, the company plans to conduct assessments to ensure compliance

Child Labour with human rights.
Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour

Discrimination at workplace

Wages

Others - please specify

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks/concerns
arising from the assessments at Question 4 above.

Not applicable.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Essential Indicators

Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following
format:

Parameter FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

From renewable sources

Total electricity consumption (A) 3,184GJ 3,408GJ
Total fuel consumption (B) - -
Energy consumption through other sources (C) - -

Total energy consumption (A+B+C) 3,184GJ 3,408GJ
From non-renewable sources

Total electricity consumption (D) 11,144 GJ 9,813GJ
Total fuel consumption (E) 32,303 GJ 33428GJ
Energy consumption through other sources (F) -
Total energy consumption (D+E+F) 43,447 GJ 43241 GJ
Total energy consumption (A+B+C+D+E+F) 46,631 GJ 46649GJ

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover 0.56 GJ/R Lakh 0.55GJ/R Lakh

(Total energy consumption/Revenue from operations)

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity (PPP*)
(Total energy consumed/Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

Energy intensity in terms of physical output
Energy intensity (optional) - the relevant metric may be selected by the entity = -

11.53GJ/RLakh  11.14GJ/R Lakh

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N): No
Numbers for FY 2023-24 had been revised due to change in calculation methodology

Does the entity have any sites/facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the
Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose
whether targets set under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case targets have not been
achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any.

No. The Company does not fall under the category of industries mandated under the Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT)
Scheme of the Government of India.

Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Water withdrawal by source (in kiloliters)

(i) Surface water 0 0
(i) Groundwater 12,882 0
(iii) Third party water 97,895 1,71,907
(iv) Seawater/desalinated water 0 0
(v) Others 0 0
Total volume of water withdrawal (in kiloliters) (i + ii + iii + iv + v) 1,10,777 1,71,907

Total volume of water consumption (in kiloliters)
Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Total water consumption/Revenue from operations)

Water intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity (PPP)
(Total water consumption/Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

Water intensity in terms of physical output
Water intensity (optional) - the relevant metric may be selected by the entity = -

1.33KL/R Lakh 2.00KL/? Lakh
27.40KL/R Lakh 0.51KL/R Lakh

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N): No

*Synthofine, Dadar and Daman plants are located in Industrial Estate and there is no bifurcation of water bill since invoices raised for whole industrial
estate. Water consumption given for Vapi and Daman units.
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

Provide the following details related to water discharged:

Parameter FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kiloliters)

(i) To Surface water

- No treatment

- With treatment - please specify level of treatment

(i) ToGroundwater

- No treatment

- With treatment - please specify level of treatment

(i) To Seawater

- No treatment

- With treatment - please specify level of treatment

(iv) Sentto third-parties

- No treatment -

- With treatment - please specify level of treatment 76,009 1,09,180
(v) Others

-No treatment = 6,670

- With treatment - please specify level of treatment = -
Total water discharged (in kiloliters) 76,009 1,15,850

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N): No

Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its
coverage and implementation.

Trade effluents are only generated in the Vapi unit. In all other facilities, water is consumed mainly for domestic purposes.
Domestic waste water in Daman is treated in-house and the treated water is reused for flushing and gardening.

The trade effluents generated in Vapi Unit is treated in in-house Effluent Treatment Plant. To reduce reject water, reverse
osmosis system is instituted. 20% of the treated water from ETP is recycled back into the production process and ETP Waste
generated through screw pressis sun dried and collected in bags and then disposed to CEPT with Manifest. Zero Liquid
Discharge is under study and implementation for the plant to eliminate risk of effluent transportation and disposal.

Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following
format:

Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the
following format:

Parameter Unit FY 2023-24
Total Scope 1 emissions Metric tonnes of 1,812 3,225
(Break-up of the GHG into CO,, CH,, N,O, HFCs, PFCs, SF¢, NF;, if available)* CO, equivalent
Total Scope 2 emissions Metric tonnes of 2,250 3,196
(Break-up of the GHG into CO,,, CH,, N,O, HFCs, PFCs, SF, NF, if available) CO, equivalent
Total Scope 1and Scope 2 emission intensity per rupee of turnover CO,el? Lakh 0.049 0.075

(Total Scope 1and Scope 2 GHG emissions/Revenue from operations)

Total Scope 1and Scope 2 emission intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for CO,elR Lakh 1.01 0.019
Purchasing Power Parity (PPP)
(Total Scope 1and Scope 2 GHG emissions/Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity in terms of physical output

Total Scope 1and Scope 2 emission intensity (optional) - the relevant metric may be selected = -
by the entity

Numbers for FY 2023-24 have been revised due to change in calculation methodology.

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the
external agency

No.

Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide
details.

KKCL has taken considerable steps throughout the reporting year to reduce its own GHG emissions. Green energy like Wind
and Solar energy are utilized at Vapi and Daman units.

Inline with the long-term target, to reduce GHG emissions intensity, the following initiatives were adopted.
- Setting emission reduction targets and developing a roadmap to monitor execution
- Carrying out feasibility studies to adopt and invest renewable energy technologies in various units

+ Investing in energy-efficient technologies

Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

Vapi
Parameter Unit
NOx ppm 1.50 2.30
SOx mg/Nm3 1.15 1.20
Particulate matter (PM) ppm 4.20 4.70

Persistent organic pollutants (POP) Persistent Organic Pollutants (POP), Volatile Organic
Compounds (VOC), Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAP), are

not being monitored currently.

Volatile organic compounds (VOC)

Hazardous air pollutants (HAP)

Others - please specify

Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried
out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency

Enviro Tech and Engineering Pvt Ltd

Not required to measure for Daman and Mumbai units.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Plastic waste (A) 48.72 38.91
E-waste (B) 0 0
Bio-medical waste (C) 0 0.0025
Construction and demolition waste (D) 9.00 100
Battery waste (E) 0.10 0
Radioactive waste (F) 0 0
Other Hazardous waste. Please specify, if any. (G) (Sludge and Used Qil) 11.25 49.27
Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). Please specify, if any. 324.66 22261
(Break-up by composition i.e. by materials relevant to the sector) (Fabric Waste, Packaging waste)

Total (A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H) 393.73 410.79
Waste intensity per rupee of turnover 0.005 ton/? Lakh 4.77 ton/R Lakh

(Total waste generated/Revenue from operations)

Waste intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) 0.097 ton/Z Lakh  0.011ton/? Lakh
(Total waste generated/Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

Waste intensity in terms of physical output

Waste intensity (optional) -the relevant metric may be selected by the entity = -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

10.

1.

114

Parameter FY 2023-24

FY 2024-25

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or other recovery operations (in metric
tonnes)

Hazardous Waste

(i) Recycled _ _

(i) Re-used - -

(iii) Other recovery operations - -

Total = -

Non- Hazardous Waste

(i) Recycled _ _

(i) Re-used - -

(iii) Other recovery operations = -

Total - -

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in metric tonnes)

Hazardous Waste

(i) Incineration _ -

i) Landfillin 11.

(ii) filling 00

i) Other disposal operations : .
(iii) Other disposal op i 0.35 49.27
Total 11.35 49.27

Non-Hazardous Waste

(i) Incineration - -

(i) Landfilling = 20
(iii) Other disposal operations 382.38 34152
Total 382.38 361.52

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N): No

Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the
strategy adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products
and processes and the practices adopted to manage such wastes.

The manufacturing process unavoidably generates waste. The Company has implemented measures to make the most of it.
The Company aims to avoid sending a large amount of waste to landfills and have adopted procedures that repurpose used
material and reintroduce excess material back into the production process. The Company employs the 3R’ approach, which
is to reduce, reuse, and recycle waste. The Company follows legally prescribed methods and environmentally safe disposal
techniques for disposing of hazardous waste, and sell non-hazardous waste to approved recyclers.

The company manages all waste in accordance with the Consent to Operate/Hazardous Waste authorization of each site.
By regularly refining the process and technology, the company employs a ‘Reduce, Reuse, Recycle, Recovery, and Disposal”
strategy to minimize the creation of hazardous waste.

The company either provides hazardous waste to authorized recyclers, disposes of it through Treatment Storage and
Disposal Facilities (TSDF), or offers it to other industries as raw material.

If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks,
wildlife sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation
zones etc.) where environmental approvals/clearances are required, please specify details in the
following format:

Sl.  Location of Type of Whether the conditions of environmental approval/clearance are being complied with? (Y/N). If no, the
No. operations/offices operations reasonsthereofand corrective actiontaken, ifany.

None of the operating sites are located within the core/buffer zone (within a 10 km radius) of any Ecologically Sensitive Area such as
Protected Areas, National Parks, Wildlife Sanctuaries, Bio-Sphere Reserves, Wildlife Corridors, etc.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

12. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable

laws, in the current financial year:

Name and brief EIA Notification Date of
details of project  No.

Whether conducted by independent
Notification  external agency? (Yes/No

Results communicatedin

public domain (Yes/No) Relevant Web link

None of the projects undertaken by KKCL in FY 2024-25 required Environmental Impact Assessments (EIA)

13. Isthe entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/regulations/guidelines in India; such
as the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution)
Act, Environment protection act and rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-

compliances, in the following format:

SI.  Specify the law/regulation/guidelines Provide details ofthe Any fines/penalties/action taken by regulatory
agencies such as pollution control boards or by courts taken, if any

No. whichwas not complied with non-compliance

Corrective action

Yes, the Company is in compliance with all the applicable environmental law/regulations/guidelines in India; such as the Water (Prevention
and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, and Environment protection act and rules thereunder.

Leadership Indicators

1. Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in areas of water stress (in kiloliters):

As per the report by the Central Ground Water Board, both the Vapi and Mumbai units fall under the ‘Safe’ - Water Stress
category. However, the Daman unit is categorized as ‘Over-Exploited’ The Daman Unit operates within the Industrial Green
Zone and utilizes water for domestic purposes at a rate of 25,000 liters per day, as well as 2,500 liters per day for boiler use.
The unit efficiently treats domestic wastewater in-house, and approximately 25,000 liters of treated water is reused annually

for flushing and gardening purposes.

2. Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format:

Parameter

Unit FY 2024-25

FY 2023-24

Total Scope 3 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into CO,, CH,, N,O, HFCs, PFCs,
SFq. NF,, if available)

Metric tonnes of
CO, equivalent

Total Scope 3 emissions per rupee of turnover

Not calculated for the year 2023-24
and 2024-25

Total Scope 3 emission intensity (optional)- the relevant metric may be
selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external

agency: No

3. Withrespect tothe ecologically sensitive areas reported at Question 11 of Essential Indicators above,
provide details of significant direct & indirect impact of the entity on biodiversity in such areas along-

with prevention and remediation activities.

The disclosure mentioned does not apply to our company. All our business operates from premises situated in industrial

zones that are not situated near environmentally delicate areas.

4. Ifthe entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or used innovative technology or solutions to
improve resource efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions/effluent discharge/waste generated,
please provide details of the same as well as outcome of such initiatives, as per the following format:

Sl. Unit Initiative Details of the initiative (Web-link, if any, may be provided along-

No. undertaken with summary)

Outcome of the initiative

1. Vapi Efficient Deployment of an advanced dewatering system with high
Dewatering solids capture rate and continuous operation; designed for
energy efficiency, low maintenance, and modular scalability.

Achieved reduced waste volume, improved water
reuse, energy savings, and significant cost
reduction in disposal and maintenance.

2. Daman Rainwater  Construction of a 3 lakh litre underground tank for capturing
Harvesting and storing rainwater for reuse across facility operations.
and Usage

Enhanced water resource efficiency, reduced
dependence on municipal supply, and supported
sustainable water management practices.

3. Daman STP Installation of a Sewage Treatment Plant (STP) to treat and
Installation recycle wastewater for non-potable applications within the
premises.

Improved wastewater management, reduced
effluent discharge, and contributed to water
conservation by enabling reuse for horticulture
and cleaning operations.
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

PRINCIPLE 8: Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

5. Doesthe entity have a business continuity and disaster management plan? Give details in 100 words/
web link.
Yes. KKCL has a Business Continuity Plan (BCP) that identifies potential risks — such as natural disasters, cyber-attacks,
and other disruptions — and outlines strategies to mitigate these risks, protect critical assets, and ensure swift recovery
of operations. The BCP assigns specific roles to crisis response teams, enabling effective decision-making and timely
restoration of business activities. Regular risk assessments help refine alternative actions to minimise impact on finances,
operations, and workforce. The BCP ensures continuity of essential functions, reduces damage and losses, and safeguards
the company’s stability following any emergency.
6. Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the entity.
What mitigation or adaptation measures have been taken by the entity in this regard.
Nil. There are no significant impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the Company.
7. Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed
for environmental impacts.
No value chain partners were assessed during the assessment year. The company plans to assess its value chain partnersin
the upcoming year.
8. How many Green Credits have been generated or procured:
a. Bythelisted entity: Not Applicable for the industry
b. Bythetopten (interms of value of purchases and sales, respectively) value chain: Not Applicable for the industry
PRINCIPLE 7: Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy,
should do so in a manner that is responsible and transparent
Essential Indicators
1.a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/associations. The Company had affiliations with 2
(two) trade and industry chambers/associations.
1.b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/associations (determined based on the total members of such
body) the entity is a member of/affiliated to.
ﬁi‘). Name of the trade and industry chambers/associations Reach of trade and industry chambers/associations (State/National)
1. Apparel Export Promotion Council National
2. Retailers Association of India. National
2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti- competitive
conduct by the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.
Name of authority Brief of the case Corrective action taken
Nil Not applicable Not applicable
No adverse order was received by the Company from regulatory authorities during the financial year 2024-25, hence no
corrective action was required to be taken.
Leadership Indicators
1. Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity:
Sl.  Public policy Methodresorted for  Whetherinformation available Frequency of Review by Board (Annually/Half ~ Web Link, if
No. advocated such advocacy in public domain? (Yes/No) yearly/Quarterly/Others - please specify) available
There is no public policy advocated as of now.
Nil NA NA NA NA
116 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Essential Indicators

Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable
laws, in the current financial year.

None of the projects undertaken by KKCL in FY 2024-25 required Social Impact Assessments (SIA).

Name and brief SIA Notification No Date of Whether conducted by independent Results communicatedin Relevant
details of project " Notification external agency? (Yes/No public domain (Yes/No) Weblink
Nil NA NA NA NA NA

Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being
undertaken by your entity, in the following format:

Not applicable. No rehabilitation and resettlement were undertaken by the entity during 2024-25.

SI.  Name of Project for which
No. R&Risongoing

No. of Project % of PAFs covered Amounts paid to

State District Affected Families (PAFs) by R&R PAFs in the FY (In 2)

Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.

KKCL has implemented a structured grievance redressal mechanism at the site level to address concerns raised by the
local community. A cross-functional committee comprising representatives from departments such as HR/Admin, Safety,
and Security is responsible for receiving and resolving both written and verbal grievances. Each grievance is documented,
investigated — often through joint field visits — and tracked until resolution.

In addition to addressing grievances, the Company engages proactively with the community through regular formal and
informal interactions. These include periodic meetings and programme-specific sessions designed to strengthen community
relations and ensure collaborative development efforts.

Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:

Parameter FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Directly sourced from MSMEs/small producers 0.71% 2.16%

Sourced directly from within the district and
neighbouring districts

Data on sourcing within the district and neighboring districts are currently
not captured. The Company is putting a process in place to capture the
purchases made within the district and neighboring districts.

Job creation in smaller towns - Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or
workers employed on a permanent or non-permanent/on contract basis) in the following locations, as
% of total wage cost

Location FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Rural 0
Semi-urban 0
Urban 31% 30%
Metropolitan 69% 70%

Leadership Indicators

Provide details of actions taken to mitigate any negative social impacts identified in the Social Impact
Assessments (Reference: Question 1 of Essential Indicators above):

Details of negative social impact identified Corrective action taken

Nil Not applicable

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 117

M8IAIBAQ [euonelado MBIAIBAQ 81840d10D uoRINPo.IU|

BJUBUIBA0YH

()
P
Q
=2
=
=
o
=
<
P
®
el
o
=
=L
(7]

Sluawalels |eloueuly



Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

2. Provide the following information on CSR projects undertaken by your entity in designated aspirational PRINCIPLE 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible
districts as identified by government bodies: manner -
3_
The Company has implemented various corporate social responsibility (CSR) initiatives. However, it has not undertaken any ] ] s
CSR projects or activities in the designated aspirational districts that have been identified by government bodies. Essential Indicators §
. 1. Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback. s
~  State Aspirational District Amount spent (In ¥) . _— - . . . .
No. The company has implemented a sophisticated and efficient complaint mechanism to provide exceptional customer
- - - - service and address any concerns promptly and effectively. We offer our customers multiple avenues to voice their
) ) ) ) complaints, including through the feedback received from our physical stores and through mails. Once a complaint is
3.(a) Do you have a preferential procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from suppliers received, our diligent team conducts a meticulous review, carefully assessing the validity of each concern and identifying
comprising marginalized/vulnerable groups? (Yes/No) the underlying cause. We believe in transparency and open communication and our dedicated team works tirelessly to 9
Yes. The company have preferential procurement policy. KKCL values diversity for community and company growth, investigate and resolve every complaint to the utmost satisfaction of our customers. Regular reviews are conducted to g
aiming for a better and fairer world. Through our preferential procurement policy, we prioritize local companies, locally ensure that all complaints receive proper attention and are handled in a timely manner, leading to their successful closure. %
made products, and various small and diverse suppliers whenever possible. Throughout the entire complaint resolution process, we maintain a strong focus on transparency, professionalism and o
) o effective communication. 3
3.(b) From which marginalized/vulnerable groups do you procure? ]
Not applicable. 2. Turnover of products and/services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry
information about:
. . 5
3.(c) What percentage of total procurement (by value) does it constitute? ocations Asa percentags to total turnover
Not applicable. Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product 100% 9
i i i i i i Safe and responsible usage Recyclin (For all garments sold) 3
4. Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or acquired by your P 9 yeling =
entity (in the current financial year), based on traditional knowledge. Recycling and/or safe disposal ;3_,
Not applicable as the Company did not acquire or own any intellectual properties based on traditional knowledge in the year . . . 2
2024_‘);5 pany 9 Y Prop 9 Y 3. Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following: §
FY 2024-25 FY2023-24 2
zl' Intellectual Property based on traditional knowledge (()Ywnle,\(lil?cquwed I(B\?nelnt )Shared Easwf(_)tf c:lculatlng Received Pendingresolution Remarks Received Pendingresolution Remarks
o esio esio enefit share during the year atend of year during the year atendof year
Nil Data privacy Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
. . . .. Advertisin Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
5. Details of corrective actions taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual 9 , g : : , , : o
property related disputes wherein usage of traditional knowledge is involved. Cyber-security Nil- Nil Nil il il N8
Delivery of essential services Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 2
Name of authority Brief of the case Corrective action taken o . o . . . A . 3
Restrictive Trade Practices Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 2
Not applicable . ) S . . . . . o
Unfair Trade Practices Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
6. Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects: Other (product and transportation related) 30 0 . All 20 0 . All
complaints complaints
ﬁi‘). CSR Project :2’:2%?;?2;2‘::“““ % of beneficiaries from vulnerable and marginalized groups (EERYE resolved
1 Medical and Health Care facilities 15,193 Vulnerable and marginalized beneficiary are not measurable.
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (Contd.)

120

Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

Locations Number Reason forrecall
Voluntary recalls Nil Not applicable
Forcedrecalls Nil Not applicable

Does the entity have a framework/policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No) If
available, provide a web-link of the policy.

Yes. Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited (KKCL) has implemented a comprehensive Cyber Security and Data Privacy Policy to
protect its information assets and promote responsible use of IT resources. The policy applies to all individuals in India with
access to KKCLs IT systems, including employees, contractors, vendors, and suppliers, and is designed to prevent breaches
and safeguard sensitive data. It covers device security, password management, secure data transfer, email protection,

and outlines the IT team’s roles, governance framework, reporting mechanisms, and disciplinary measures for violations.
The policy is available at: https://www.kewalkiran.com/investors.php#Policies

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and
delivery of essential services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of
instances of product recalls; penalty/action taken by regulatory authorities on safety of products/
services.

Not Applicable, as there were no issues or concerns related to advertising, delivery of essential services, cyber security,
penalties or actions initiated by regulatory authorities for safety of Company’s products

Provide the following information relating to data breaches:

a. Number of instances of data breaches - Nil. No instance of data breaches in the assessment period.
b. Percentage of data breaches involving personally identifiable information of customers - Nil
c. Impact, if any, of the data breaches - Not Applicable

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

Leadership Indicators
Channels/platforms where information on products and services of the entity can be accessed
(provide web link, if available).

The entity’s products and services can be accessed through leading E-commerce portals as well as the company’s own
website https://kewalkiran.com/

Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products and/or
services.

Yes, the company ensures that customers have access to comprehensive information by including wash care labels and
fabric composition details on our garments. These labels provide detailed care instructions, while the fabric composition
information allows customers to make informed choices based on their preferences and needs.

Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of essential
services.

Not Applicable

Does the entity display product information on the product over and above what is mandated as per
local laws? (Yes/No/Not Applicable)

Yes
If yes, provide details in brief.
The company provides wash care labels, composition of fabrics on the garments.

Did your entity carry out any survey with regard to consumer satisfaction relating to the major products/services of the
entity, significant locations of operation of the entity or the entity as a whole? (Yes/No)

Yes, the company collects customer feedback at each store. The company also maintains visitor’'s books for comments,
suggestions and complaints and it reviews consumer feedbacks periodically. The company has customer care email id for
enabling customers to reach out to the company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of
Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited (the Company’)
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changesin Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements including material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the standalone financial statements”).

Inour opinion and to the best of our Inormation and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ('the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit
including other comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA’s) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone
financial statements Section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI") together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Actand the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
andthe ICAlI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgements, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalonefinancialstatementsoftheyear. Wehavedetermined
that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our
report on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The other information

122 KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

comprises of the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report, Business Responsibility and Sustainability
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information,
but does not include the standalone financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The said reports are expected to
be made available to us after the issue of our auditor’ report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the above said reports, if we conclude that
there is material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance
and take necessary actions, as applicable under the relevant
laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of
Directors for the standalone financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgementss and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management
and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually orinthe aggregate, they could reasonably
be expectedtoinfluence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
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future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and
eventsinamanner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of
a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
Sstatement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order,
2020 (the *Order”) issued by the Central Government in
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in *Annexure A’
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate reportin “Annexure B,

Withrespect to the other matters to be includedin the
Auditors’ Report in accordance with the requirements
of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid / provided by the Company to
its directors for the year ended March 31, 2025 is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act;and

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
as amended from time to time, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - refer note 2.44
and 2.1.5 to the standalone financial statements.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
contract including derivative contract for which
there are any material foreseeable losses.

ii. ~ There hasbeennodelay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. ~The Management has represented that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 258 to the standalone financial
statements,

- no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(‘Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

- no funds have Dbeen received by the
Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (‘Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (iv) contain any
material misstatement.

Vi.

As stated in note 251(b) of the standalone
financial statements, the board of directors
during their meeting dated 12t May 2025 have
declared first interim dividend. The same is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Companies
Act, 2013 to the extent it applies to declaration
of dividend. However, the said dividend was not
paid on the date of this audit report.

Based on our examination which included test
checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for
the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

For Jain & Trivedi
Chartered Accountants

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

of audit trail feature being tampered with
and the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

ForN. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 113496W Firm Registration No.: 116560W

Satish Trivedi
Partner

Membership N
UDIN: 2503831

Place: Mumbai

Dated: 12" May 2025

/' W100149

Prashant Daftary

Partner
0.: 38317 Membership No.: 117080
7BMKWAF7884  UDIN: 25117080BMJBDB6923

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 12" May 2025
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2025

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated) (zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

[Referredtoin paragraph 1 underthe heading ‘Report e) According to the information and explanation given to c) Accordingtotheinformationandexplanations givento Considering question of reporting overdue amount
on other legal and regulatory requirements® of our us as at March 31, 2025, no proceedings have been us and on the basis of our examination of the records more than 90 days does not arise. -
report of even date] initiated during the year or are pending against the of the Company, in respect of loan, the schedule of . . . . 3
i intai Company asonMarch 31, 2025 for holding any benami repayment of principal and payment of interest has €)  As per the information and explanation given to us, e
O W e Qompany ha; malntlamed‘proper records ro |Zrt yunderthe Bena’miTransactionsg(Pr(;/hibition) n 2by n sti Ipt deh | r?'syr ble on demand and stated above, the loan granted to wholly owned 2
shovymg ul plartchuIars, neluding quantitative ictp198¥3 and rules made thereunder tr?us ev(je arfl:r?ailé toemzake Ia se%ac»;:c igmmintaon subsidiary company was in the nature of demand °

details and situation of Property, Plant and ’ ' the reqularity of rebayment in respect of such loans loans. In absence of stipulated schedule, we are

Equipment (PPE) and relevant details of right-to- (i) a) The inventory (other than lying with third parties) has g Y pay P ' unable to comment on whether loans granted by the

use assets. been physically verified by the management during d) As per information and explanations given to us, the Company which has fallen due during the year, has

intai eyear.Inrespect of inventory lying wi ird parties, said demand loan and interest thereon are repayable een renewed or extended and whether fresh loans

(B) The Company has maintained proper records theyear.| pectofi tory lying with third parti idd dl dint tth payabl b d tended and whether fresh |

showing full particulars, including quantitative confirmations/reports were obtained by the Company on demand. In absence, of a repayment schedule we were granted to settle the overdue of existing loan. o
details and situation of intangible assets. duringtheyear.Inouropinion, the frequency, coverage are unable to comment on over due amount (if any). 32
and procedure of such verification carried out by §

b) According to the information and explanations given the management is reasonable and appropriate. f)  Asmentioned in paragraphiiii(c) above, the loan granted is repayable on demand and there is no stipulated period of e
to us and on the basis of our examination of the As per the information and explanation given to us, repayment. Details of the said loan is as under: §
records of the Company, the Company has a regular discrepancies noticed on physical verification were (inlakhs) :f
programme of physical verification of its Property, not material (ie. less than 10% in the aggregate for P— oo o remstedoartios
Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and each class of inventory) and have been properly dealt arieders partie romorer caredparte
equipment are verified on a yearly basis. The Company with in the books of account. Aggregate amount of loan repayable on demand (outstanding balance as on 103.35 - 103.35
has physically verified all the property, plant and . . . March 31, 2025) (including accrued interest)
equipments and right-to-use assets during the year. b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital Percentage of loans to the total loan 100% - 100% e

imit i i [0]
In our opinion, frequency of physical verification is limit in excess of f|ve Crores rupees from a bank on . . . . A . g
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company the basis of security of it's current assets. There are (iv) In our opinion and according to the |nformat|-on ahd Section 148 of the Act for gny of the products‘ of the 5
and the nature of its assets. According to information no borrowings from financial institution. Based on explana’qqn given toAus, the Company has com.plled with Compgny. Therefore, the requirement of clause 3(vi) of the %
andexplanations given o us, no material discrepancies our examination of the records of the Company, the the provision of Section j85 gnd 186 of the Actin reslp‘ect order is not applicable to the Company. 5
were noticed on such verification. revised quarterly returns or statements filed by the of grant of loans, ”.‘ak'”g mvestments, and providing (vii) (a) Accordingtotheinformationandexplanations givento §

Company with said bank are in agreement with the guarantees and security. as applicable. usandon the basis of our examination of records of the
A [ he informati | [ [ intai . . . A .

) tochj)Srd;r;% tgnt tién Sarsisatg‘noir;deizaw?::’;fgso?l\‘éﬁg books of account maintained by the Company. (v) In our opinion and according to the information and Company, in respect of amounts deducted/accrued
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable (iiiy According to the information and explanations given to explanatioh given to us, the Qompany ha; not accepted in the books of ’account,‘ .the Company has been
properties  (other than immovable properties us, during the year the Company has made investments in any deposits. Therefore, question of reporting compliance generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
where the Company is the lessee and the leases equity shares, mutual funds etc., and also granted interest with d|re_c.t|ve issued .by the Reserve Bank of India and QUes mcludmg provident fund, employees’ state o
agreements/Letter of Intent are duly executed in bearing unsecured loan to wholly-owned subsidiary the provisions of Section s 73 to 76 or any other relevant insurance, income tax, sales tax, duty of customs, g
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone company. The Company has not provided any guarantee provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder does duty of excise, goods and services tax, cess and any 3
financial statements are held in the name of the or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, not arise. We have been informed that no order relating to other statutory dues, as applicable to the Company, 3
Company (including erstwhile name) as at balance secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Company has been passed by the Company Law Board or during the year with the appropriate authorities.
sheet date Partnerships or any other parties during the year. National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or There are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as

) any Court or any other Tribunal. atMarch 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months
Th mpany has not I ny of its P ty, . ! e fromth te th m le.
d) Plaitcgr Eauiy maeit ?inélelji:edlieia hYt—So—luZe raospsgtg) (vi) The Central Government of India has not specified the o e date they became payable
. quIp uding 19 maintenance of cost records under sub-Section (1) of
and intangible assets during the year. )
Q
a)  Aggregate amount during the year and balance outstanding of the unsecured loan at the balance sheet date with (b) According to information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues as &
respect toloan to wholly owned subsidiary is as under: mentioned in clause (vi)(a) above, which have not been deposited with authorities on account of any dispute except .3
P Y Y ' the following: 8
o
(zinlakhs) (zin lakhs) 5*
N lakns,
Particulars Unsecured Loans - -
; The Name of Nature of Periodtowhich Forum where dispute is
Aggregate amount during the current year 7,100.00 Statute dues Amount the amount pending Remarks
Balance outstanding as on March 31, 2025 (including interest accrued thereon) 103.35 relates (AY)
TheIncome Tax  Income Tax 13.48 2012-13  Appeal pending before -
Based on the information and explanation given to us, apart from above, during the year, the Company has not provided Act, 1961 Hon. CIT (Appeals) 2
loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity. 6,241.11 2017-18  Appeal p(?nding b(;fore Subsequent to the year end, the said §
Hon. CIT (Appeals i @
b)  Inouropinion, the investments made, and loan granted are not prima facie, prejudicial to the Company’s interest. During Orger ng recglzs(lj’ Ef?d demand was §
the year, the Company has not provided any guarantees or given security or advance in nature of loan. reducedto¥ 5. aKns. g
(0]
&
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(viii) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of records of the
Company, there were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosedasincome during the year inthe taxassessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(i) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information
and explanations given to us by the management, we are
of the opinion that

(@) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
and payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) TheCompany hasnotbeendeclared as wilful defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) The Company has not obtained any term loans during
the year and there were no outstanding term loans at
the beginning of the year. Therefore, clause 3(ix)(c) of
the order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given
to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by
the Company. Hence, further reporting under clause
(ix)(d) of the order is not applicable.

(e) During the year, the Company has not availed any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligation of its subsidiary or joint venture.

(f)  The Company has not raised loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary or
joint venture.

(X) (a) During the year, the Company has not raised money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer
[including debt instruments]. Hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures during the year. Hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xi) (@) During the course of our examination of the books
of account and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with generally accepted auditing
practices in India and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud by the Company or any
fraud on the Company, noticed or reported during the
year, nor have we been informed of any such instance
by the management.
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(b) No report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, clause
3(xii) of the order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Section s 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(xiv) (@) Inour opinion and based on our examination, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the
Company issued till date, for the year under audit,
in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with directors. Therefore, clause 3(xv) of the
order is not applicable.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us,

(@) The Company is not required to be registered under
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given
to us, there is no core investment company within the
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the
current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year. Therefore, clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors
during the year. Therefore, the clause 3(xviii) of the Order
isnotapplicable.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, nothing has
come to our attention which causes us to believe that
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that thisis not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) During the year there are no unspent amounts towards
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company for the year.
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(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not
applicable in respect of audit of Standalone financial
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the
said clause has beenincluded in this report.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 113496W Firm Registration No.: 116560W
/' W100149

For Jain & Trivedi

Satish Trivedi
Partner Partner

Membership No.: 38317 Membership No.: 117080
UDIN: 25038317BMKWAF7884  UDIN: 25117080BMJBDB6923

Prashant Daftary

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 12" May 2025

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 12" May 2025
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the standalone financial statements

of Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited

[Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading
‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
of our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause
(i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of

the standalone financial statement of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICA).

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors
for Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the 'ICAI. These responsibilitiesinclude
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note issued by the 'ICAI' and the Standards on
Auditing ("SA"), prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to
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theextentapplicable toanauditofinternalfinancial controls with
reference to financial statement. Those SAs and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgements, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statement,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
financial statements

The Company’'s internal financial control with reference
to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statement for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The Company’s internal financial control
with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statement in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With
reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
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that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 113436W Firm Registration No.: 116560W
/' W100149

ForJain & Trivedi

Satish Trivedi
Partner Partner

Membership No.: 38317 Membership No.: 117080
UDIN: 25038317BMKWAF7884  UDIN: 25117080BMJBDB6323

Prashant Daftary

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 12" May 2025

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 12" May 2025
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Standalone Balance Sheet Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
as atMarch 31, 2025 | CIN: L18101TMH1992PLC065136 _ _ for the year ended March 31, 2025 | CIN: L1810TMH1992PLC065136 _ _
(zin lakhs except as otherwise stated) (zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

) As at As at . JAOEACEIAGELN  For the Year Ended
Particulars Note March 31, 2024 Particulars Note March 31, 2024
ASSETS INCOME g
1) Non-Current Assets 3

a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1a 10,165.37 8,920.22 Revenue from Operations 228 84,034.75 86.049.86 <

b) Right-of-Use Asset 2.1b 4,725.61 1,896.90 >

c) Capital Work-in-Progress 21.c 34.06 - Other income 229 RS0 EE 5.697.00 >

d) Investment Property 2.1d 120.31 123.24 88,938.63 89,746.86

e) Otherlintangible Assets 2.1e 24.29 19.93

f)  Financial Assets EXPENDITURE

:i)) :ngzngis'”ostﬁgzd'ary and Joint venture % 222;’?;3 - ;;8?32 Cost of Material Consumed 230 47,046.43 29,664.69
i) Loans 2.4 122.99 8.54 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade: Lifestyle Accessories/ Products 4,445.87 3,688.51
iv)  Other Financial Assets 25 4,964.92 1,185.36 : : o - : 8
g) Non-Current Tax Asset (Net) 26 106.90 191.40 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade & Work-in-Progress 2.31 (9.844.91) 9,305.23 3
h)  Other Non-Current Assets 2.7 SELZL 123.72 Employee Benefit Expenses 2.32 10,820.67 10,530.71 )
48,541.45 15,416.55 g
2) Current Assets Finance Cost 2.33 940.05 435.94 5
a) Inventories 2.8 17,212.01 8,200.56 e R <
bg Financial Assets Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 2.1 1,328.69 1,010.99 é
i) Investments 2.9 14,642.49 15,5685.29 Manufacturing and Operating Expenses 2.34 7,704.29 6,006.04
i)  Trade Receivables 2.10 23,398.15 20,278.36
i) Cash&CashEquivalents 2.11 11,719.32 21,642.21 Administrative and Other Expenses 2.35 3,618.79 4,760.54
i Bank bal ther than iii 2.12 1.71 261.1 . P
'VV>) ng:nsba ances other than il above 013 ?7 68 66 : ? Selling and Distribution Expenses 236 4,274.88 4,376.25
vi) Other Financial Assets 214 140.12 272.92 70,334.76 69,778.90 -g
c) OtherCurrent Assets 2.15 3,589.56 2,143.97 3
70,801.04 68,390.67 Net Profit Before Tax 18,603.87 19,967.96 =
TOTALASSETS 119,342.49 83,807.22 Tax Expense 93_,
EQUITY & LIABILITIES P %
Equity Current Tax 4,120.00 4,170.00 g
a) Equity Share Capital 2.16 6,162.52 6,162.52 o
b) Other Equity 217 75,554.78 61,497.20 Deferred Tax 406.20 498.42 2
Liabilities 81,717.30 67,659.72 (Excess)/Short Provision for Taxes of Earlier Years (8.28) (152.70)
1) Non-Current Liabilities Net Profit for the Year 14,085.95 15,452.24
a) Financial Liabilities .
) Lease Liabilities 218 4,044.83 142434 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
i) Other Financial Liabilities 2.18A 2,709.19 - Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss o
b)  Provisions 2.19 6.50 6.50 !
c) Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 2.20 825.00 432.00 Effect [Gain/(Loss)] of Measuring Equity Instruments at Fair Value through OCI 25.19 82.21 g
7,585.52 s . . ' L
2) Current Liabilities 1,862.84 Remeasurement Gain/(Loss) on Net Defined Benefit Liability (66.76) (190.03) %
(0]
a) Financial Liabilities Income Tax relating to Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit and Loss 13.20 38.42
i) Borrowings 2.21 10,110.68 247.81 e
iy Lease Liabilities 2.22 581.04 298.29 Total Other Comprehensive income (28.37) (69.40)
i) Trade Payables 2.23 . L . ;
total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 47.03 4314 Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive 14,057.58 15,382.84
- total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 8,172.24 4,317.30 Income for the year)
0 gzche?é:?rreilw?i?actﬁlitLileasbllmes ggé géig;; ;23;22 Earnings per Share - Basic and Diluted (Face Value of ¥ 10 each fully paid up) 22.86 25.07 »
. 5 o s B Q
c) Provisions 2.26 2,236.90 3,777.63 Weighted Average Number of Shares used in computing Earnings per Share -Basic and Diluted 61,625,185 61,625,185 g
d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 2.27 79.88 182.98 ) ) o S
30,039.67 14,284.66 Material accounting policies and notes on accounts 182 <
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 119,342.49 83,807.22 3
Material accounting policies and notes on accounts. 18&2 , , ' %
The notes referred to above form integral part of Financial Statements The notes referred to above form integral part of Financial Statements. @
. As per our audit report of even date
?gr[;er:do:; %:%I;I;%F;ort of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For and on behalf of . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Jain & Trivedi N.A. Shah Associates LLP of Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd. Jain & Trivedi N.A. Shah Associates LLP of Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 113496W Registration No.: 116560W / W100149 RegistrationNo.: 113496W RegistrationNo.: 116560W /W100149 I
. . . R . QO
Satish Trivedi Prashant Daftary Kewalchand P Jain Hemant P Jain gatt'Sh Trivedi Eratshant Daftary CK:ﬁwaIchag?\AP Jain Direct ﬁehn;ant P.Jag‘. " 3
Partner Partner Chairman & Managing Director Jt. Managing Director artner artner alrman & Vianaging Director -Managing Uirector =
Membership No.: 38317 Membership No.: 117080 DN No. 00625738 DI Nov. 60029892 Membership No.: 38317 Membership No.: 117080 DINNo.: 00029730 DINNo.: 00029822 »
Q
; ; Nimesh Anandpara Bharat Adnani Abhijit Warange w
Nimesh Anandpara Bharat Adnani Abhijit Warange e X ' T ? ) 3
Dy. Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer COmf)any Secrgtary . Dy. Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary e
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai @
Date: May 12, 2025 Date: May 12, 2025 Date: May 12, 2025 Date: May 12, 2025
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for the year ended March 31, 2025 | CIN: L18101TMH1992PLC065136 for the year ended March 31, 2025 | CIN: L18101TMH1992PLC065136 _
(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated) (zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)
Particulars For the Year Ended March 31, 2024 Particulars For the Year Ended March 31, 2024
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Maturity of Bank Deposit (Including Offered as Security) 354.31 275.29 5
Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and 18,603.87 19,967.96 Dividend Income 15.67 16.11 S
C
Loss Less: Income Tax Paid (3.94) 11.73 (4.05) 12.06 2
Adjustments for: Interest Received 493.69 307.79 >
Depreciation/ Amortization on Plant Property and 1,325.76 1,008.07 ) .
Equipment and Intangible Asset Less: Income Tax Paid (124.25) 369.44 (77.46) 230.33
(Gain)/Loss on Sale /Discard of Property Plant & Equipment (51.79) (0.17) Net Cash Generated / (Used in) Investing Activities (21,242.12) (1,290.82)
(Tangible Assets) (Net) C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Depreciation on Investment Property 293 292 Repayment of Working Capital Demand Loans > (3,500.00) o
Net Gain arising on Financials Asset measured at Fair value (395.83) (3,112.32) Repayment of Loan by Subsidiary - 286.12 E
th h Profitor| FVTPL, o
rough Profit orloss ( ) Interest and Finance Charges (651.85) (287.23) &
(Gain)/Loss on Sale of Investments (Net) (3,885.02) (86.91) o
Payment of Lease liability {Including Interest of ¥ 274.83 (741.66) (390.17) 3
i i <
Sundry Balance (Written Back) /Written Off (Net) 14.09 0.01 lakhs, (PY.Z 144 60 lakhs)) g.
Bad Debts - 1.251.97 Payment of Dividend = (2,461.93)
Finance Costs J2ebo 431.83 Net Cash Generated/(Used in) Financing Activities (1,393.51) (6,353.21)
Dividend Income (15.67) (16.11) Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (19,785.85) 5,947.12
AIIowapce for Expected Credit Loss, Advances and (380.00) (540.00) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - OPENING 21,394.40 15.447.27 ke)
Deposits (Net) - e | o}
Q
Provision/ (Reversal of Provision) for Contingencies 50.00 - w 21,394.39 g'
Provision/ (Reversal of Provision) of Exchange Rate (1.17) (0.49) Eﬁe_ct of Exchange(Gain)/Loss on Cash and Cash 0.09 0.01 %
: quivalents Z
Fluctuation (Net) - | 3
- <
Interest Income (413.70) (349.74) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - CLOSING 1,608.64 21,394.40 2
(2,823.72) (1,410.94) Note:
W 18.557.02 i. Components of Cash and Cash Equivalent
Changes in Current & Non-Current Assets and Cash and Cash Equivalent as on date 11,719.32 21,642.21
Liabilities Less: Bank Overdraft / Cash Credit (10,110.68) (247.81)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable and Other Assets (4,147.49) (3.312.28) Total Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,608.64 21,394.40 g
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (9,011.45) 8,358.25 Material accounting policies and notes on accounts 182 %
>
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables, Liabilities and 3,671.85 6,057.13 ) o]
Provisions( ) Y ( ) The notes referred to above form integral part of cash flow statement. @
(9,487.09) (1,011.16) ii. TheAggregate Income Tax paid during the period is ¥4,130.30 lakhs (PY. %4,062.97 lakhs).
Net Cash Generated/ (Used in) Operating Activities 6,293.06 17,545.86 ii. During the year, the Company gave an unsecured loan of ¥ 7,000 lakhs to its wholly owned subsidiary, Kewal Kiran Developers
Less: Income Tax paid (Net of Refund) (3,443.28) (3,954.71) Ltd. (formerly known as Kewal Kiran Design Studio Ltd. and formerly known as K-Lounge Lifestyle Ltd.) and later it is converted
Net Cash Generated/ (Used in) Operating Activities 2,849.78 13,591.15 into equity shares, which is considered a non-cash transaction and does not impact the cash flows from investing activities. o
B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES iv.  Refernote 2.61 for disclosuresrelating to INnd AS 7. %
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment, Capital Work- (1,668.12) (956.32) 3
in-Progress and Intangible Assets (Including Capital . >
Advances) As per our audit report of even date 3
: For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 5{
Sale of Property Plant & Equipment il 20.92 Jain & Trivedi N.A. Shah Associates LLP of Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.
Investments in Subsidiary (1,300.00) (300.00) Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Purchase of Investments (Current and Non-Current) (7.58) (1,251.13) Registration No.: 113496W RegistrationNo.: 116560W /W100143
Payment for Acquisition of Subsidiary (11,651.52) - Satish Trivedi Prashant Daftary Kewalchand P Jain Hemant P Jain -
- _ Partner Partner Chairman & Managing Director Jt. Managing Director g'
Loan to Subsidiary (7,100.00) Membership No.: 38317 Membership No.: 117080 DINNo.: 00029730 DIN No.: 00029822 a2
Redemption of Investments {(OCI, Current and 3,436.26 970.32 %
Non-Current) Nimesh Anandpara Bharat Adnani Abhijit Warange ?_{
(Net of Taxes of Rs 558.83 lakhs (PY: Rs 26.75 lakhs)} Dy. Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary %
Bank Deposit (Including Offered as Security) (3,768.04) (292.29) Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai >
Date:May 12, 2025 Date:May 12, 2025
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Statement of Standalone Change in Equity

for the year ended March 31, 2025 | CIN: L1810TMH1992PLC065136

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,162.52 6,162.52

Changes in Equity Share capital during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year 6,162.52 6,162.52

. - Business Cost Equity

B) OTHER EQUITY Ceneral |  Retained | Securities } o o ocqive | Contingency | instruments Total
Reserve Earning premium fund Fund [ throughoci

Balance as at March 31, 2024 (1) 5,375.63 45,508.60 3,496.75 4,000.00 3,000.00 116.22 61,497.20

Profit for the year - 14,085.95 = = = - 14,085.95

[tems of OCI for the year, net of tax

Remeasurement of Net Defined Benefit Liabilities - (49.96) - - - - (49.96)

(net of tax od Rs 16.80 lakhs (PY.Rs 47.83 lakhs )

Amount transferred from Retained Earning to - (500.00) - 500.00 - - -

Business Progressive Fund

Effect of Measuring Equity Instruments at Fair = = = = = 21.59 21.59

Value through OCI (net of tax Rs (3.60) lakhs

(PY.(9.40) lakhs )

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - 13,535.99 - 500.00 - 21.59 14,057.58

(2024-25) (11)

Reduction During the Year

Dividends = = = = = = =

Total (Ill) = = = = = = =

Balance as at March 31, 2025 (IV) = [+lI+lll 5,375.63 59,044.59 3,496.75 4,500.00 3,000.00 137.81 75,554.78

As per our audit report of even date
For and on behalf of

Jain & Trivedi

Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 113496W

N.A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Satish Trivedi
Partner
Membership No.: 38317

Prashant Daftary
Partner
Membership No.: 117080

Nimesh Anandpara

Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2025
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Registration No.: 116560W /W100149

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.

Hemant P Jain
Jt. Managing Director
DIN No.: 00029822

Kewalchand P Jain
Chairman & Managing Director
DINNo.: 00029730

Bharat Adnani

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 12,2025

Abhijit Warange
Company Secretary

Statement of Standalone Change in Equity

for the year ended March 31, 2025 | CIN: L1810TMH1992PLC065136

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,162.52 6,162.52

Changes in Equity Share capital during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year 6,162.52 6,162.52

B) OTHER EQUITY g:s“eer:lae' RZZ?:}‘;; S:‘r’:r:ﬂ;s] Pro%ﬂi?s?jz Contingecr?s; InstrurEnqeunI:ch Total
fund Fund  throughOCI

Balance as at 315t March 2023 (1) 5,375.63 35,539.54  3,496.75 4,000.00 - 167.44 48,579.36

Profit for the period - 1545224 - - - - 15,452.24

[tems of OCI for the year, net of tax

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability - (142.20) - - - (142.20)

(net of tax of T47.82 lakhs)

Amount transferred from retained earning to cost - (3,000.00) - - 3,000.00 - -

contingency fund

Effect of measuring equity instruments at fair - - - 72.81 72.81

value through OCI (net of tax of 3(9.40) lakhs)

Derecognition of equity instruments measuring 124.03 (124.03) -

at fair value through OCI

Total Comprehensive income for the year - 12,434.07 - - 3,000.00 (51.22) 15,382.85

(2023-24) (1)

Reduction during the year

Dividends - (2,465.01) - - - (2,465.01)

Total (IlI) - (2,465.01) - - - - (2,465.01)

Balance as at March 31, 2024 (IV) = I+1I+l1| 5,375.63 45,508.60 3,496.75 4,000.00 3,000.00 116.22 61,497.20
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Company Overview and Material Accounting
Policies:

Corporate Information:

Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited (“the Company”) is a Public
Limited Company incorporatedinIndiahavingitsregistered
office at Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, |.B. Patel Road, Near
Western Express Highway, Goregoan (East), Mumbai,
Maharashtra. Its equity shares are listed on the National
Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)
inIndia.

The Company is engaged into manufacturing, marketing
and retailing of branded readymade garments and
finished accessories.

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for
the yearendedMarch 31, 2025 were approved and adopted
by board of directors of the Company in their meeting dated
12t May, 2025.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation:

(i) Compliance withInd AS:

The financial statements are prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS”) as notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
thereafter, read with Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and presentation requirements
of Division Il of Schedule lIl of the Act and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (*SEBI"), as applicable.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied
except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hithertoinuse.

(ii) Basis of Preparation and presentation:
Basis of Preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer
accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

- Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per
actuarial valuation.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions,

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

Functional and Presentation Currency:

[tems included in the financial statements of the
Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all
values are rounded to the nearest Laknh (INR 00,000),
except otherwise indicated.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies:

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into
Current/Non-Current:

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents.

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of Current/ Non-Current
classification of its Assets and Liabilities.

For the purpose of Balance Sheet,
An asset is classified as current if:

a) Itisexpected to be realised, or is intended to be sold
or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

b) Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading; or

c) [Itisexpectedtorealisethe asset withintwelve months
after the reporting period; or

d) The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it
is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Aliability is classified as current if:

a) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating
cycle; or

b) Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading; or

c) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period; or

d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to
defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability
that could result in its settlement by the issue of
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1.2

1.3

equity instruments at the option of the counterparty
does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities as the case may be.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. The initial cost of PPE
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly
attributable costs of bringing an asset to working
condition and location for its intended use, including
relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of
decommissioning. Following initial recognition, items of
PPE are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Gross carrying
amount of all PPE are measured using cost model. PPE are
eliminated from financial statement either on disposal or
when retired from active use. Capital work-in-progress
comprises of cost incurred on property, plant and
equipment under construction / acquisition that are not
yetready for their intended use at the Balance Sheet Date.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with these, will flow to the
Company andthe cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of PPE. Material items such as spare parts,
stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified
as PPE when they meet the definition of PPE as specifiedin
Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment.

Property, plantand equipment are eliminated from financial
statement either on disposal or when retired from active
use. Assets held for disposal are stated at net realizable
value. Losses arisingin case of retirement of property, plant
and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal
of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

Expenditure during construction period:

Expenditure / Income during construction period (including
financing cost related to borrowed funds for construction
or acquisition of qualifying PPE) is included under Capital
Work-in-Progress and the same is allocated to the
respective PPE on the completion of their construction.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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Advances given towards acquisition or construction of
PPE outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed as
Capital Advances under ‘Other non-current Assets”.

1.4 Depreciation:

a) Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment
(other than freehold land and capital work in progress)
is provided on a straight-line method (SLM) over their
useful lives which is in consonance of useful life
mentioned in Schedule Il to the Act except certain
class of assets specified in table (i) below, based on
internal assessment estimated by the management
of the Company, where the useful life is lower than as
mentioned in said Schedule II.

Assets where useful life is lower than useful life
mentioned in Schedule II:

Estimated useful life
Assets depreciated on SLM
basis

Furniture & fittings at retail stores 5 years

Second hand factory/office 30 years
building (RCC frame structure)
Second hand factory / office 5years

building (other than RCC frame
structure)

Individual assets whose cost
does not exceed 5,000

Fully depreciated
inthe year
of purchase

b) The range of useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment not covered in table above and are in
accordance with Schedule Il are as follows:

Particulars Useful life
Factory buildings 30 years
Other buildings (RCC structure) 60 years
Other Plant and Machinery 15 years
Computers 3 years
Furniture & fittings (other than retail) 10 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Windmill 22 years
Office Equipments 5years

c) Incase of assets purchased, sold or discarded during
the year, depreciation on such assets is calculated on
pro-rata basis from the date of such addition or as the
case may be, up to the date on which such asset has
been sold or discarded.

d) Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively.
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e) Leaseholdlandsareamortized over the period of lease
or useful life whichever is lower. Buildings constructed
on leasehold land are depreciated over its useful
life which matches with the useful life mentioned in
Schedulell. In cases where building is having useful life
greater than the period of lease (where the Company
does not have right of renewal), the same is amortized
over the lease period of land.

1.5 Investment properties & Depreciation on

investment properties:

a) Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both and that is not occupied
by the Company for its own business, is classified
as investment property. Investment properties are
measured at its cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs less
depreciation and impairment if any.

b) Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Cost of investment
properties includes non-refundable taxes and duties,
borrowing cost directly attributable to the qualifying
asset and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location and
present value of any obligatory decommissioning cost
foritsintended use.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with these, will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss whenincurred.

c) DepreciationonbuildingheldasInvestmentProperties
is provided over it's useful life (of 60 years) using the
straight-line method.

In the case of investment property purchased, sold
or discarded during the year, depreciation on such
investment property is calculated on pro-rata basis
from the date of such addition or as the case may be,
Up to the date on which suchinvestment property has
been sold or discarded.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of investment properties are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to reflect the expected
pattern of consumption of the future benefits
embodied in the investment properties and in case of
any changes, effect of the same is given prospectively.

1.6 Intangible Assets and Amortisation:

a) Intangible assets are recognized only if it is probable
that the future economic benefits attributable to

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

1.7

1.8

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

asset will flow to the Company and the cost of asset
can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated
at cost of acquisition/development less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment loss if any.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at costless any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

b) Subsequent expenditure related to item of intangible
asset are added to its carrying amount when it is
probable that future economic benefits deriving from
the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

c) Cost of an intangible asset includes purchase price
includingnon -refundable taxes and duties, borrowing
cost directly attributable to the qualifying asset and
any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use.

d) Intangible assets under development comprises of
costincurred onintangible assets under development
that are not yet ready for their intended use as at the
Balance Sheet date.

e) Class of intangible assets and their estimated useful
lives are as under:

Estimated useful life

Assets amortized on SLM basis

Computer software 3years

f)  Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

g) In case of assets purchased during the vyear,
amortization on such assets is calculated on pro-rata
basis from the date of such addition.

Non-current assets (or disposal Company)
classified as held for disposal:

Assets are classified as held for disposal and stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

To classify any Asset as “Asset held for disposal” the asset
must be available for immediate sale and its sale must be
highly probable. Such assets are presented separately in
the Balance Sheet, in the line “Assets held for disposal”.
Once classified as held for disposal, intangible assets and
PPE are no longer amortised or depreciated, but carried at
lower of cost or NRV.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews
the carrying amounts of non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in

Standalone Notes

on accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025 | CIN: L1810TMH1992PLC065136

1.9

order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assetsnotyetavailable for use are tested forimpairment at
least annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and
Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as arevaluation increase.

Inventories:

The inventories (including traded goods) are valued at
lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for
cost of obsolescence wherever considered necessary.
However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost
if the finished products in which they will be incorporated
are expected to be sold at or above cost.

The cost comprises of costs of purchase, duties and taxes
(other than those subsequently recoverable), conversion
costand other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
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their present location and condition. Since the Company
is in fashion industry with diverse designs / styles, the
cost of inventory is determined on the basis of specific
identification method (as the same is considered as more
suitable).

In case of work-in-progress and finished goods, the costs
of conversion include costs directly related to the units of
production and systematic allocation of fixed and variable
production overheads.

Proceeds in respect of sale of raw materials/ stores are
credited to the respective heads. Obsolete and defective
inventory are duly provided for, basis the management
estimates, Refer note - 2.8.

1.10 Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or development of a qualifying
asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use.
A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest,
amortization of discounts, hedge related cost incurred in
connectionwithforeigncurrencyborrowingsandexchange
difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are treated as an adjustment to the borrowing
cost and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

1.11 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources,
that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle
such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a
finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are
adjusted toreflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a
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1.12
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possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of
any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not
disclosed as contingent liabilities.

A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are not
recognised in financial statements since this may result
in the recognition of income that may never be realised.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain,
then the related asset is not a contingent asset and
isrecognised.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenueisrecognised upon transfer of control of promised
products and services to customers, when there are no
longer any unfulfilled obligations, inanamount thatreflects
the consideration which the Company expects to receive
in exchange for those products and services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of
variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and
services rendered is net of variable consideration on
account of allowances, trade, volume & other discounts/
rebates or schemes offered by the Company as part of
the contract and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of
the government such as goods and services tax, etc. This
variable consideration is estimated based on the expected
value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is
recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that
the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when
uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

a) Saleof goods:

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time upon
transfer of control of promised products to customers,
which coincides with the dispatch or delivery of goods
or upon formal customer acceptance as per the
relevant terms of the contract and when there are no
unfulfilled performance obligations in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expect to
receive in exchange for those products.

Accumulated experience and judgement are used
to estimate and provide for turnover discounts,
expected cash discounts, other eligible discounts,
expected returns and incentives.

b) Sale of services:

i) Revenue from services rendered is recognised at
a point in time upon satisfaction of performance
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c)

d)

e)

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

obligations based on agreements arrangements
with the customers. Service income is recorded
net of GST.

i) Incase of Licensing contract which are mainly in
nature of right access, the revenue is recognised
over license period on straight line basis based on
agreements arrangements with the customers.

Income from power generation:

Power generationincome isrecognized on the basis of
electricalunits generated and soldinexcess of captive
consumption and recognized at prescribed rate as
per agreement of sale of electricity by the Company.
Further, value of electricity generated and captively
consumed is netted off from the electricity expenses.

Assets and liabilities arising from right to return:

The Company has contracts with customers which
entitles them the unconditional right to return.

Right to return assets:

Aright of return gives the company a contractual right
to recover the goods from a customer (right to return
asset), if the customer exercises its option to return
the goods and obtain arefund. The asset is measured
at the carrying amount of the inventory, less any
expected costs to recover the goods, including any
potentialdecreasesinthevalue of thereturned goods.

Refund liabilities:

A refund liability is the obligation to refund part or all
of the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customer. The Company has therefore recognised
refund liabilities in respect of customer’s right to
return. The liability is measured at the amount the
Company ultimately expects it will have to return to
the customer. The Company updates its estimate of
refund liabilities (and the corresponding change inthe
transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.
The Company has presented its right to return assets
and refund liabilities under other current assets and
other current liabilities, respectively.

Otherincome:

i) Interestincome in respect of deposits which are
measured at cost is recorded using effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments
or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability.
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i) Dividend income on investment is accounted for
inthe period/year in which theright toreceive the
same is established.

i) Rental income (net of taxes) on assets given
under operating lease arrangements is
recognizedonastraight-line basis over the period
of the lease unless the receipts are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the Company's expected
inflationary costincreases.

1.13 Government grants:

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
bereceived.

Export incentives principally comprises of Duty Drawback
and rebate on state & central taxes and levies (ROSTCL)
based on guidelines formulated for the respective scheme
by the government authorities. Export incentives related
to operations provided by government are recognized as
income on accrual basis in Statement of Profit and Loss
only to the extent that realisation/utilisation is certain.

1.14 Trade receivables:

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If the receivable is expected to be collected
withina period of 12 months or less from the reporting date
(orinthe normal operating cycle of the business, if longer),
they are classified as current assets, otherwise as non-
current assets.

Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price
unless it contains a significant financing component or
pricing adjustments embedded in the contract. In case a
financing component exits the consideration for the goods
and service is adjusted for the time value of company.

Loss allowance for expected life time credit loss is
recognised on initial recognition.

1.15 Leases:
a) Asalessee:

The Company assesses whether a contract contains
a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time inexchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i)
the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of
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(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

the lease and (jii) the Company has the right to direct
the use of the asset.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to
extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes
these options when it is reasonably certain that they
will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Right of use
assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For
the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized
costatthe presentvalue of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country
of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or
a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets:

The Company appliesthe short-termleaserecognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases that are considered
to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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c)

As alessor:

Lease income from operating leases where the
company is a lessor is recognized (net of GST) in
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature.

1.16 Employees’ Benefits:

144

a)

b)

Short-term employee benefits:

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve
months of rendering the service are classified as
short-termemployee benefitsandtheyarerecognized
as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

Post-employment benefits:
ij)  Defined contribution plan:

The defined contribution plan is post-
employment benefit plan under which the
Company contributes fixed contribution to a
government administered fund and will have
no obligation to pay further contribution. The
Company’s defined contribution plan comprises
of Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance
Scheme, Employee Pension Scheme, National
Pension Scheme and Labour Welfare Fund. The
Company’s contribution to defined contribution
plans are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which employee renders
the related service.

If the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the Balance Sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the
Balance Sheet date, then excess is recognised
as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to a reduction in future payment or a
cashrefund.

ii)  Defined benefit plan:

The Company’s obligation towards gratuity
liability is funded to an approved gratuity fund,
which fully covers the said liability under Cash
AccumulationPolicy of Life Insurance Corporation
of India (LIC). The present value of the defined
benefit obligations is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method. The rate used to discount defined
benefit obligation is determined by reference
to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term
of obligations.

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as employee benefits expense, reflects
the increase in the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current
year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements. Past service costs are recognised
in statement of profit and loss in the period of a
plan amendment.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan
assets. This costis included in employee benefit
expense in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Re-measurement gains or losses arising from
experience adjustments changes in actuarial
assumptions is reflected immediately in the
Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognized
in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the
period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognized in OCI is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent
period. Re-measurements comprises of (a)
actuarial gains and losses, (b) the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability) and
© the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
includedinnetintereston the net defined benefit
liability).

i) Other employee benefits:

Asperthe Company’s policy, employees whohave
completed specified years of service are eligible
for death benefit plan wherein defined amount
would be paid to the survivors of the employee on
the death of the employee while in service with
the Company. To fulfil the Company'’s obligation
for the above-mentioned plan, the Company has
taken term policy from an insurance company.
The annual premium for insurance cover is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.17 Income Taxes:

a)

Tax expenses comprise of current tax, deferred
tax charge or credit and adjustments of taxes for
earlier years. In respect of amounts adjusted against
securities premium or retained earnings or other
reserves, the corresponding tax effectisalso adjusted
against the securities premium or retained earnings
or other reserves, as the case may be, as per the
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announcement of Institute of Chartered Accountant
of India.

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated
taxable income for the current accounting period in
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary differences
atthereporting date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The Company has adopted the amendments with
respecttoDeferred TaxrelatedtoAssetsandLiabilities
arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to Ind
AS 12) from 15t April 2023. The amendments narrow the
scope of the initial recognition exemption to exclude
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
differences - e.g. leases and decommissioning
liabilities. For leases and decommissioning liabilities,
an entity is required to recognise the associated
deferred tax assets and liabilities from the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with
any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment
to retained earnings or other components of equity at
that date. For all other transactions, an entity applies
the amendments to transactions that occur on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

The Company previously accounted for deferred tax
on leases and decommissioning liabilities by applying
the ‘integrally linked’ approach, resulting in a similar
outcome as under the amendments, except that the
deferred tax asset or liability was recognised on a net
basis. Following the amendments, the Company has
recognised a separate deferred tax asset in relation
to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in
relation to its right-to-use assets as at 15t April 2022
and thereafter.

However, there was no impact on the balance sheet
because the balances qualify for offset under
paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12. There was also no impact
on the opening retained earnings as at 15t April 2022
as aresult of the change.

Tax relating to items recognised directly in equity
or OCl is recognised in equity or OCI and not in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and assets and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
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tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can
be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that itis
no longer probable.

1.18 Earnings per Share:

Basic earnings per share (EPS) are calculated by dividing
the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for events of bonus issue and share split
if any.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share,
the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.19 Foreign Currency Transactions:

a)

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of the transaction.

As at balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary
items are translated at closing exchange rate. Foreign
currency non-monetary items carried at fair value are
translated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Foreign currency non-
monetary items measured in terms of historical cost
are translated using the exchange rate as at the date
of initial transactions.

Exchange difference arising on settlement or
translation of foreign currency monetary items are
recognized as income or expense in the year in which
they arise except to the extent exchange differences
are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost on
those foreign currency borrowings.

As per Appendix B to Ind AS 21, when an entity has
received or paid advance contribution in a foreign
currency, transaction rate as on the date of receipt
of advance is considered for recognition of related
asset, expenses or income.

1.20 Financial Instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
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Financial assets:
Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognizes a financial asset in its Balance
Sheet whenitbecomes party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financial assets are recognized
initially at fair value, plus in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Where the fair value of a financial asset
at initial recognition is different from its transaction price,
the difference between the fair value and the transaction
priceisrecognizedasagainorlossinthe Statement of Profit
and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined
through a quoted market price in an active market for an
identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation
technique that uses data from observable markets (i.e.
level 2 input). In case the fair value is not determined
using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the
difference between the fair value and transaction price is
deferred appropriately and recognized as a gain or loss in
the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that
such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor that
market participants take into account when pricing the
financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component are measured
at transaction price (see second para of note 1.14 on trade
receivables).

Subsequent measurement:

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a
financial asset in accordance with the below criteria:

- The Company’s business model for managing the
financial asset and

« The contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its
financial assets into the following categories:

a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if
both the following conditions are met:

i) The Company's business model objective for
managing the financial asset is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows, and

i) The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances,
trade receivables, loans and other financial

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

b)

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

assets of the Company. Such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interestmethod. Under the effective
interest method, the future cash receipts are
exactly discounted to the initial recognition value
using the effective interest rate. The cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method
of the difference between the initial recognition
amount and the maturity amount is added to
the initial recognition value (net of principal
repayments, if any) of the financial asset over
the relevant period of the financial asset to arrive
at the amortized cost at each reporting date.
The corresponding effect of the amortization
under effective interest method is recognized as
interest income over the relevant period of the
financial asset. The same is included under other
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The amortized cost of a financial asset is also
adjusted for loss allowance, if any.

Financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the
following conditions are met:

i) The Company's business model objective for
managing the financial asset is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

i) The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

The Company, through an irrevocable election at
initial recognition, has measured certain investments
inequity instruments at FVTOCI, refer note 2.3(a). The
Company has made such election on aninstrument by
instrumentbasis. Theseequityinstrumentsareneither
held for trading nor are contingent consideration
recognized under abusiness combination. Pursuantto
suchirrevocable election, subsequent changes in the
fair value of such equity instruments are recognized
in OCI. However, the Company recognizes dividend
income from such instruments in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount can be
measured reliably.

On derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is not
reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and
Loss. However, the Company may transfer
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c)

such cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings
within equity.

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL):

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is
measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as explained
above. This is a residual category applied to all other
investments of the Company excluding investments
in subsidiary and joint venture. Such financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized (i.e. removed from
the Company's Balance Sheet) when any of the
following occurs:

a) The contractual rights to cash flows from the
financial asset expires;

b) The Company transfers its contractual rights to
receive cash flows of the financial asset and has
substantially transferred all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset;

c) The Company retains the contractual rights to
receive cash flows but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows without material
delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-
through' arrangement (thereby substantially
transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset);

d) The Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially allriskandrewards of ownershipand
does not retain control over the financial asset.

In cases where Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the financial asset, but retains control of the
financial asset, the Company continues to recognize
such financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the financial asset. In that case, the
Company also recognizes an associated liability.
The financial asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset, (except as
mentioned in (i) under classification above for
financial assets measured at FVTOCI), the difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration
received is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
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Impairment of financial assets:

The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of loss
allowance on the following:

a) Tradereceivables and lease receivables.

b) Financial assets measured at amortized
cost (other than trade receivables and lease
receivables).

In case of trade receivables and lease receivables,
the Company follows a simplified approach wherein
an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognized as loss allowance.

In case of other assets (listed as (i) above), the
Company determines if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial asset since
initial recognition.

If the credit risk of such assets has not increased
significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL
is measured and recognized as loss allowance.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognized as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial
asset improves such that there is no longer
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expectstoreceive (i.e, all cash shortfalls), discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting
from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of
the lifetime ECL which result from default events that
are possible within 12 months from the reporting date.

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect
unbiased and probability weighted amounts
determined by a range of outcomes, taking
into account the time value of money and other
reasonable information available as a result of past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Asapracticalexpedient, the Company usesaprovision
matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of
trade receivables. The provision matrix is prepared
based on historically observed default rates over
the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted
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for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date,
the historically observed default rates and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are updated.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal)
recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
under the head 'Other expenses’.

Investment in subsidiaries and joint venture:

The Company has elected to recognize its
investments in subsidiaries and joint venture at cost
in accordance with the option available in Ind AS
27, 'Separate Financial Statements’ Investments in
subsidiaries and joint venture are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount
of the investment is assessed. Where the carrying
amount of aninvestment is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount and the difference is
transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
disposal of investment, the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial Liabilities:
Classification as debt or equity:

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deductingall ofits liabilities. Equity instrumentsissued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognizes a financial liability in
its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value minus,
in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial liability.

Where the fair value of a financial liability at initial
recognition is different from its transaction price, the
difference between the fair value and the transaction
price is recognized as a gain or loss in the Statement

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED
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of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value
is determined through a quoted market price in an
active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input)
or through a valuation technique that uses data from
observable markets (i.e. level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level
1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference
between the fair value and transaction price is
deferred appropriately and recognized as a gain or
loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the
extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change
in factor that market participants take into account
when pricing the financial liability.

Subsequent measurement:

Al financial liabilities of the Company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Under the effective interest method, the future
cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial
recognition value using the effective interest rate.
The cumulative amortization using the effective
interest method of the difference between the
initial recognition amount and the maturity amount
is added to the initial recognition value (net of
principal repayments, if any) of the financial liability
over the relevant period of the financial liability to
arrive at the amortized cost at each reporting date.
The corresponding effect of the amortization under
effective interest method is recognized as interest
expense over the relevant period of the financial
liability. The same is included under finance costin the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on
substantiallydifferentterms, or the termsofanexisting
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the Derecognition of
the originalliability and the recognition of anew liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration
paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
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not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

1.21Fair Value Measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such
as investments and derivatives at fair values at each
Balance Sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either:

+ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use, or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The
Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, categorize the use of
relevant observable inputs and categorize the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities (for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements) are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

« Level 1 —Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable other
than quoted pricesincludedin Level 1.

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year
from the Balance Sheet date and which are not carried at
fair value, the carrying amount approximates fair value due
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to the short maturity of these instruments. For assets and
liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

1.22 Cash Flow Statement and Cash and Cash

Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank
balances, deposits with banks (other than on lien) and all
short term highly liquid investments / mutual funds (with
zero exit load at the time of investment) that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash flows are
reported using the indirect method, where by net profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of
income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities are segregated.

1.23 Dividend distribution:

Final equity dividends on shares are recorded as a liability
on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim
equity dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

1.24 Operating Segment:

Operating segments have been identified taking into
accountthenature of the products/ services, geographical
locations, nature of risks and returns, internal organization
structure and internal financial reporting system. The
Company prepares its segment information in conformity
with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the Company as a
whole. These operating results are regularly reviewed by
the company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘*CODM).

1.25 Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptionsthataffectthereportedamounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying
disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
couldresultinoutcomes that require amaterial adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

Critical judgements and estimates in applying
accounting policies:
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a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, Plant and Equipment represent a significant
proportion of the asset base of the Company. The
charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected
useful life. The useful lives of the Company’s assets
are determined by the management at the time the
asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including
at each financial year end. The lives are based on
historical experience with similar assets as well as
anticipation of future events, which may impact their
life, such as changes in technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements
in production or from a change in market demand of
the product or service output of the asset.

Estimation of Defined benefit obligation:

The costs of providing post-employment benefits
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
accordance with Ind AS 19 'Employee benefits’ over
the period during which benefit is derived from the
employees’ services. The costs are assessed on the
basis of assumptions selected by the management.
These assumptions include salary escalation rate,
discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and
mortality rates. The same is disclosed in Note 2.39.

Refund liability: Refer Note 1.12(d)
Provision for inventories:

The Company provides for obsolescence on slow
moving & non-moving inventory based on policy, past
experience, current trend and future expectations of
finished goods and raw materials depending on the
category of goods.

Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments:
Refer Note 1.21

Impairment:

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which an asset's or cash-generating unit's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount to determine
the recoverable amount, management estimates
expected future cash flows from each asset or cash
generatingunitand determinesasuitableinterestrate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. In the process of measuring expected future
cash flows, management makes assumptions about
future operating results. These assumptions relate to
future events and circumstances. The actual results
may vary and may cause significant adjustments to
the Company’'s assets. In most cases, determining
the applicable discount rate involves estimating
the appropriate adjustment to market risk and the
appropriate adjustment to asset-specific risk factors.

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LIMITED

)

h)

(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and
joint ventures:

The Company conducts impairment reviews of
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
whenevereventsorchangesincircumstancesindicate
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable or
tests for impairment annually. Determining whether
the investments in subsidiaries and joint venture
are impaired requires an estimate of the value in
use of investments. In considering the value in use,
the management has anticipated future cash flows
and other factors of the underlying businesses /
operations of the subsidiaries & joint venture and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due
to changes in the above-mentioned factors could
impact the carrying value of investments. Periodic
external valuation reports are also obtained.

Determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal as aLessee:

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies
to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease requires significant
judgement. The Company uses significant judgement
in assessing the lease term (including anticipated
renewals).

The Company determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not
to exercise that option. In assessing whether the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to
terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive
for the Company to exercise the option to extend
the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate
the lease. Any subsequent change in certainty of
exercising option to extend lease term could impact
the carrying value of right of use asset and lease
liability significantly.

Estimation of provisions and contingencies:

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain amount or timing
recognized where a legal or constructive obligation
exists at the balance sheet date, as a result of a past
event, where the amount of the obligation can be
reliably estimated and where the outflow of economic
benefit is probable. Contingent liabilities are possible
obligations that may arise from past event whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
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or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 1.26 New standard issued / modified but not effective
events which are not fully within the control of the as at reporting date

Company. The Company exercises judgement and Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new
estimatesinrecognizing the provisions and assessing standards or amendments to the existing standards under

the exposure to contingent liabilities relating to Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules asissued
pending litigations. Judgment is necessary in from time to time.

assessing the likelihood of the success of the pending
claim and to quantify the possible range of financial
settlement. Due to this inherent uncertainty in the
evaluation process, actual losses may be different
from originally estimated provision.

For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind
AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS
116 - Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions,
applicabletothe Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company
has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on
its evaluation has determined that it does not have any
significantimpact in its financial statements.
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2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets o Deseriptionofthe Blockor GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION NET BLOCK
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION NET BLOCK As at Additi Deductions/ Asat Asat Depreciation/ Deductions/ As at As at 3
Sr. Description of the Block of , T 01/04/2023 MONS " Discarded 31/03/2024 01/04/2023 Amortisation  Discarded 31/03/2024  31/03/2024 g
No. Assets As at Additions Deductions As at Asat Dpreciation/ Deductions/ As at Asat c
01/04/2024 I Discarded 31/03/2025 | 01/04/2024 Amortisation Discarded 31/03/2025 j 31/03/2025 a Property Plant & Equipment (Tangible Assets) %‘
a Property Plant & Equipment (Tangible Assets) 1 Freehold Land 2,37561 - - 237561 - - - - 237561 >
1 Freehold Land 2,375.61 503.26 - 2,878.87 = = = = 2,878.87 2 Building 5,383.93  564.18 - 5,948.11 1,071.38 200.78 - 1,272.16  4,675.95
2 Building 5,948.11 = 495 5,943.16  1,272.16 257.19 0.84 1,52851 4,414.65 3 Furnitures &Fixtures 116.04 2.43 10.05 108.42 100.32 11.65 9.08 102.89 553
3 Furnitures &Fixtures 108.42 981.66 9.37 1,080.71 102.89 66.64 0.53 169.00 911.71 4 Plant and Machinery 3,131.81  454.26 41.86 354421 1,799.10 305.82 2298 2,081.94 1,462.27
4 Plant and Machinery 354421 248.73 60.07 3,732.87 2,081.94 245.37 43.50 2,283.81 1,449.06 5 Computer 289.08 33.00 1.04 321.04 219.51 38.79 0.79 257.51 63.53 o
5 Computer 321.04 47.06 = 368.10 257.51 45.54 - 303.05 65.05 6 Office Equipments 408.70 15.01 11.94 411.77 301.06 31.60 11.28 321.38 90.39 {O,'
o
6 Office Equipments 411.77 33.86 5.60 440.03 321.38 27.08 5.52 342.94 97.09 7 Vehicles 367.28 113.44 - 480.72 191.16 42.62 - 233.78 246.94 3
(0]
7 Vehicles 480.72 160.16 = 640.88 233.78 58.16 = 291.94 348.94 Total of Property Plant & 12,072.45 1,182.32 64.89 13,189.88 3,682.53 631.26 44.13 4,269.66  8,920.22 ®)
i (0]
Total of Property Plant & 13,189.88 1,974.73 79.99 15,084.62  4,269.66 699.98 50.39 4,919.25 10,165.37 equipment () 2
Equipment (a) e Intangible Assets (other than internally generated) 2
e Intangible Assets (other than internally generated) 1 Software (Acquired) 160.76 5.76 - 166.52 136.18 10.41 - 146.59 19.93
Software (Acquired) 166.52 13.01 = 179.53 146.59 8.65 - 155.24 24.29 Total of Intangible 160.76 5.76 - 166.52 136.18 10.41 - 146.59 19.93
Total of Intangible 166.52  13.01 - 17953 146.59 8.65 - 155.24 24.29 Assets (e)
Assets (e) b Right of Use Assets ko)
b Right-of-Use Assets 1 Land 204.05 - - 204.05 12.21 3.05 - 15.26 188.79 3
1 Land 204.05 = = 204.05 15.26 3.05 - 18.31 185.74 2 Building 1,801.75 660.66 58.28 2,404.13 390.95 363.35 58.28 696.02 1,708.11 g
2 Building 2,404.13 3,445.82 150.03 5,699.92 696.02 614.06 150.03 1,160.05 4,539.87 Total of Right of Use 2,005.80 660.66 58.28 2,608.18 403.16 366.40 58.28 711.28 1,896.90 c<_3
(0]
Total of Right of Use 2,608.18 3,445.82  150.03 5,903.97  711.28 617.11 150.03 1,178.36  4,725.61 Assets (b) 3
Assets (b) c Capital Workin Progress 2
. ; (cwip)
c Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) .
1 PlantandMachinery - 12939 10762 2177 - - - - 2177 ! Plantand Machinery 12690 28521 41211 : : : : : :
2 Furnitures & Fixtures . 55096 53867  12.29 12.29 2 Building - 56418 56418 - ; - ; - :
Total CWIP (c) - 680.35  646.29 34.06 - - - - 34.06 Total CWIP © 126.90  849.39 976.29 ) . . : : )
. d Investment Properties )
d Investment Properties e Q
Building 255.91 - - 25591 13267 2.93 - 13560 12031 ! Building 255.91 - T 29591 12974 2.92 T 13267 12524 R
Total Investment 25591 _ _ 25591 13267 293 ~ 135.60 120.31 Total Investment 255.91 - - 255.91 129.74 292 - 13267 123.24 2
; properties (d) ®
properties (d)
Grand total 16,220.49 6.113.91 876.31 21,458.09 5,260.20 1,328.67 200.42 6,388.45 15,069.64 Grand total (a+b+c+d+e) 14,621.82 2,698.13 1,099.46 16,220.49 4,351.61 1,010.99 102.41 5,260.20 10,960.29
atb+c+d+e
( ) 2.1.1 Investment Property
(Zinlakns)
Particulars m March 31, 2024 %)
Rental income derived from Investment property 121.99 116.30 %
Direct operating expenses (Including repair and maintenance) 2.58 258 3
Income arising from Investment properties before depreciation 119.41 113.72 §
o
Depreciation 293 2.92 a
Income from Investment properties (Net) 116.48 110.80
The Company obtains Independent Valuations for its Investment Property by a Expert in valuing these type of Investment Property. The best estimate
of Fair Value in current prices in Active Market for similar Properties. Fair Value is ¥ 949.28 lakhs (PY.Z 949.28 lakhs). The company has a policy to conduct
valuation of Investment Properties on periodic intervals. =
2
3
(<)
=)
w
5
o}
3
(0]
3
@
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(zinlakhs except as otherwise stated)

2.1.2 Ageing schedule of Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP)

(Zinlakns)
Amount in CWIP for a period
a) Capital Work-in-Progress - Total
Lessthan 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years Morethan3years
Projects in Progress 34.06
Projects temporarily suspended = = = = =
Note: Figuresinbracketsindicate previous year’s figures
b) There are no capital work-in-progress, whose completion or cost compared to its original plan is overdue.
c) Amount capitalised under building block includes Z Nil (PY. 564.18 lakhs) being the amount of capital expenditure incurred on

self-constructed assets. Further such amount included under CWIP is aggregating to Z Nil (PYZ Nil).

2.1.3 Building includes the value of 14,000 (PY.14,000) shares of Rs 100 each in Synthofine Estate CHS Ltd. and value of 10 (PY.10)
shares of Rs 50 each in Gautam Chemical Industrial Premises CHS Ltd.

2.1.4 Right-to-Use - Building includes building constructed on lease hold land having Gross block of ¥ 226.65 lakhs (PY. % 226.65
lakhs).

2.1.5 In the year 2014-15, the Company has acquired freehold land with integrated structures for a composite value whose
conveyance is registered and municipal records updated. The value of the structure is determined based on estimated
depreciated value of structures and the balance is considered as the value of the land. In respect of the land, the Company
has undivided share in land. Also an insignificant portion of land is unlawfully occupied by an illegal occupant and the said
occupant had raised some illegal structures which were demolished by the Municipal Corporation. The said illegal occupant
has filed a suit in the Hon’ble High Court for his alleged claim in respect of the portion of the land illegally occupied by him.
The company has refuted the alleged claim of the illegal occupant and is defending the suit. The Company has filed an
Eviction suit against the illegal occupant in the Hon’ble Small Causes Court. Both the said matters are sub-judiced. There is
insignificant impact of these litigations on the financial position of the Company.

2.1.6 The Company does not have any proceedings initiated or pending against it, for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

2.1.7 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or
investment property during the current or previous year.

2.1.8 Title deeds of allimmovable properties are in the name (including erstwhile name) of the Company and all lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the Company.

2.2 Investment In Subsidiary And Joint Venture
Long-Term Investments - Carried at Cost

As at Asat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade Investments (Unquoted)

a) Investmentin Joint Venture White Knitwear Private Limited

In Equity Shares

330,000 (PY.330,000) Shares of face value % 10 each, fully paid up. 33.00 33.00
In Preference Shares

3,125,000 (PY. 3,125,000) 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of face value 312.50 312.50

of %10 each fully paid up.
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Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

b) Investment in Subsidiary

In Equity Shares - Kewal Kiran Developers Limited (formerly known as Kewal Kiran Designer
Studio limited) (formerly known as K-Lounge Lifestyle Limited)

91,000,000 (PY. 8,000,000) Shares of face value ¥10 each, fully paid up. 9,100.00 800.00

In Equity Shares - Kraus Casuals Private Limited
166,505,000 (PY. NIL) Shares of face value ¥10 each, fully paid up. 16,359.69 -
25,805.19 1,145.50
Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments 25,805.19 1,145.50

2.2.1 TheCompany hadinvestedinaggregate ¥ 34550 lakhs in Joint Venture “"White Knitwear Private Limited"" (WKPL). The WKPL
had acquired land in Surat Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and constructed factory building for setting up of manufactur